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China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is a fast grow-
ing business conglomerate which covers integrated project investment, construction engineering, operation management,
technology development and equipment manufacturing, focusing on the environmental protection and alternative energy
sectors. The business of the Group is classified into environmental energy, environmental water and alternative energy. Its
projects mainly include waste-to-energy, methane-to-energy, wind power, biomass integrated utilisation, solar photovoltaic
energy, industrial solid waste and hazardous waste treatment, water restoration and reusable water. The Group operates in
Jiangsu, Shandong, Guangdong, Anhui, Zhejiang, Hainan, Hunan, Henan, Sichuan, Beijing, Shanxi and Shaanxi provinces
etc. in the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) and also in Germany.

In December 2014, China Everbright Water Holdings Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, spun off its environmental
water business into a water restoration company listed on the Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited via a
reverse takeover, and it was renamed as China Everbright Water Limited.

With its highly trained and dedicated management team, as well as strong support from China Everbright Group Ltd., the
Group is fully prepared to further explore and develop the environmental protection market and strives to obtain new environ-
mental protection projects, with the aim to become a leading player in the environmental protection industry in the PRC.
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_— Design Concept %=t
‘Setting Salil for New Horizons' is the theme of this annual report. With strong determination
to further its development, China Everbright International Limited will grasp the business

NEW HORIZONS ' 4 opportunities, and lay a solid foundation for the next round of development and thereafter

drive forward its position as the navigator of the industry. The photos of the essential

components of a ship in this report highlight the Company’s business philosophy of Endless

Exploration, Forging Ahead, Bold Innovation and People-oriented, which aims at establishing

arenowned Environmental Protection brand.
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Financial Highlights

BRI

2014 2013 Percentage
T —F—= Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 Bt
ST T BT 28
RESULTS E¥
Turnover S 6,355,120 5,319,866 19%
EBITDA* BRFE - FIE - TER
BSM BT R T 2,795,219 2,217,929 26%
Profit attributable to equity A% 58 fE {5 Z 7]
shareholders 1,703,147 1,324,667 29%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) A& & 4 EH(%) 11.49 12.20 -0.71 ppt
Basic earnings per share SRR EAEF)
(HK cents) GEAL) 37.99 32.60 17%
FINANCIAL POSITION AR
Total assets BEEEE 31,199,794 23,471,047 33%
Total liabilities BfEBE 13,356,824 9,691,926 38%
Shareholders’ equity &% B R 2 16,263,256 13,374,264 22%
Net asset value per share % R FEAE TR
attributable to equity BEFEGEEIT)
shareholders (HK$) 3.627 2.983 22%
Gearing ratio (%) BEABLE(%) 43 41 2 ppt
Current ratio (%) MBI (%) 170 231 -61 ppt

# EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation,

depreciation and amortisation.

FRAE - BIE - WERBHENBRAANBAL  BE -
FELRBHA 2 AFERTF -
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Corporate Milestones tEAXEHE

01/2014

02

Secured Anhui Ma’anshan Waste-to-energy
Project

Secured Yiyang Waste-to-energy Project,
the Group’s first environmental protection
project in Hunan Province

Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project Phase I, the
first waste-to-energy project of the Group in
Zhejiang Province commenced operation

RS R YEBIL IR S EEA

RS EEPH DL & ERRER — 2R
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££ B HOH T 46 0 2 (B SR 9 B TE B R R
TEE - WIRAEE

/2014

Announced 2013 annual results, with profit
from operations increased by 43%

PN _T—=ZFEL2FZRE RBLERNESE
43%38 &

03/2014

Included as a constituent stock of Hang
Seng Mainland 100 Index

Secured Changzhou Xinbei Waste-to-energy
Project

Everbright International Environmental
Protection Charitable Foundation supported
Earth Hour Hong Kong 2014 as the lead
sponsor

Secured Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project
Phase |l

TE 4R N B A AR E A 4B 100458 BRI A%
BSEMFIL bR EEIEE
HRBEBRRRARESEHFENE B [HIk—/)
52014 |

BSERRFEEIER —H
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e o o o

05

06

/2014

Secured Xuyi Biomass Integrated Ultilisation
Project

Awarded Best Investor Relations Company
and Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, was awarded
Asia’s Best CEO at the 4th Asian Excellence
Recognition Awards 2014 by Corporate
Governance Asia

Secured Dangshan Waste-to-energy Project
Convened 2014 annual general meeting of
the Company

Secured Xinyi Hazardous Solid Waste
Treatment Project

Secured Nanjing Gaochun Waste-to-energy
Project

WS REMEFRSKRIERR
E(EMNEEER) MIEFIE M E AR
2014 ZXEREEBAERTF ] ARBITHAAE
RNFEEESZAD [ DMNZEERRTE
G IL N R EEEIER

BRI _ZT-NFRRBEFKE
HSHT e BE R 12 1R B
MEERS A REEIEE

/2014

Secured Tengzhou Waste-to-energy Project
Ningwu Wind Power Project finished its wind
resources assessment and started project
preparations

SR R EEIE B
ERATEEB KRR MBEERSN - BREIA
B ATER T 1

/2014

Secured Suqgian Biomass Integrated
Utilisation Project

Secured Lianyungang Guanyun Biomass
Integrated Utilisation Project

Everbright Environmental Protection “EBEP”
was officially authorized as a registered
trademark

Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project Phase |
completed construction and commenced
operation
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Corporate Milestones ¥ AEHE

07 /2014

Ningbo, Nanjing, Pizhou and Sanya waste-to-
energy projects obtained subsidies of RMB100
million from the National Development and
Reform Commission

Pizhou Waste-to-energy Project completed
construction and commenced operation
Acquired all Veolia’s stakes in Qingdao
Waste Water Treatment Project
Cooperated with Suez Environment
Group for the construction of Changzhou
Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment Project
through a joint venture

B BN BMNRSTHREEEEEER
ZECHBAARKIET

TRM By 3 2B I B B IRE

W EHFEE S TKERIER 2 ks
HEFTREEESCERREMNEEREER

08/2014

Secured Pei County Waste-to-energy
Project

Secured Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project
Phase Il

Secured Xinzheng Waste-to-energy Project,
the Group’s first environmental protection
project in Henan Province

Commenced Zibo Reusable Water Project
Phase Il and Boxing Waste Water Treatment
Project Expansion and Upgrade
Announced 2014 interim results, with
profit attributable to equity shareholders
amounting to HK$801,866,000

Secured Huaiyuan Biomass Power
Generation Project

Secured Dingyuan Biomass Power
Generation Project

SmEah R EBEEER
?T&nﬁ%EEE—%
W%%l%ﬁﬁé%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ*%%ﬁﬁ%
TIEE
RRBSEFI/KIEE — B R BE)5KEREIER B
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DT —FFEEE  BSRREGAT
A7 #801,866,0007T
BEEREYEEEIER
RS EREYHEEEEE

09/2014

Became a constituent stock of the Hang
Seng Corporate Sustainability Index
Secured Sanya Sludge Treatment and
Disposal Project
BEMABERFEERPEEEKNR
BE=05kREREHEE

10/ 2014

Secured Anhui Lingbi Waste-to-energy and

Biomass Power Generation Projects

Secured Hangzhou Yuhang Waste-to-energy

Project

Secured Jiangsu Rudong Biomass

Integrated Utilisation Project
BISEREBEENREEREMEREEA

H SN RIA R EIR B

BISIHNRAEYE RS RIERA

11 /2014

Invested in the construction of Anhui Hanshan
Distributed Photovoltaic Energy Project

BREZRLZB WU MHANIREEER

12 /2014

Self-developed grate furnace product series
received European Union’s CE Mark
Guanyun and Binhai hazardous solid waste
landfill projects completed construction and
commenced operation

Spun off environmental water business into
a Singapore Exchange listed company via
a reverse takeover and renamed as China
Everbright Water Limited

Sanya and Shouguang waste-to-energy
projects completed construction and
commenced operation
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Chairman’s Statement =E#&%E

Carry forward the spirit of
CHINA EVERBRIGHT

Strive to establish a renowned
Environmental Protection brand

RENXRNEE FRRKERE

CHAIRMAN &
Tang Shuangning &2

In 2014, the global economy recovered gradually against a backdrop of multi-polarization, while China’s
economy entered into a ‘New Normal’ and its environmental protection industry continued to develop rapidly.
As a leading influential enterprise in China’s environmental protection industry, the Group observed trends,
strengthened technology, improved its management, sustained robust growth and maintained a driving force to
pursue future growth opportunities.

During the year under review, the Group was selected as a constituent stock of the Hang Seng Mainland 100
Index and the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index, as well as topped the Top Ten Influential Solid Waste
Treatment Enterprises in China once again, after being selected as a constituent stock of the MSCI China Index
and the Hang Seng China-Affiliated Corporations Index. Recognition of the Group by various markets, the
government, industries and society was steadily on the increase.

During the year under review, the Group secured 27 new projects, with the total number of projects and
investment reaching a record high. The Group also obtained remarkable achievements in technology research
and development. Everbright Environmental Protection ‘EBEP’ was officially authorized as a registered
trademark and was able to enter international markets. The spin-off of the environmental water business sector,
the success of the reverse takeover of HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited, as well as the listing of
China Everbright Water Limited on the Singapore capital market, were all clear indications that the Group had
embarked on a new starting point in its history.

—TOF  EREEESEBEHEHES  PEKEENERBTEA HMEE] PERREFEBES[REER
BB - ERTERRTESEFENRELE AREBAY - il - BEE  #EFRFRYER  BEREEE
E2 bl

CEFER - NEEE [MSCIIRRTEEH L [BAFBRELEREMMNKIR - FRAZE [ELFEANM1005EH
B [BARFKESRROFEHNNK ] BEERPRBEBETETATZENCESE - MSHERT - T¥ELE
HAEEN R EARE -

CEFEENR  AEBEEE27EHER  HEABERESHAFELHNS  MEMEXRBA - KXRRRESR [EBEP]
s BSEEETTE - RRKBEE2H LT - RIRAKBEMREMEEBERAR - PEEAKBEER AR
EABEFINEEARTS - AEBEKRBRFTAE LR -



Annual Report 2014 <| 1
“E-MEFR

During the year under review, the Company further explored the potential of its internal management and
hence the operating profit continued to increase. Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$1,703,147,000, approximately 29% higher than that of last year (2013: HK$1,324,667,000).

Given the satisfactory operating results and healthy financial position of the Group, and taking into account its
long-term sustainable development, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has proposed to pay
equity shareholders of the Company a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend
of HK5.0 cents per share in 2014, the total dividends for the year amounted to HK11.0 cents per share (2013:
HK8.5 cents per share).

Looking forward to new journeys and fresh visions, the Group would like to leverage the achievements it has
accomplished over the last decade and its business presence in China’s 9 provinces and 43 counties and
cities and in Germany, and 100 environmental protection and alternative energy projects with a total investment
amount exceeding RMB28 billion to actively expand into international markets by capitalizing on China’s
economy. The ‘New Normal’ of China’s economy will certainly give the environmental protection industry a
new direction of development. The Group will embrace wider and bigger market space and more development
opportunities.

I would like to express my sincere thanks to the Group’s management and staff for their achievements
accomplished in 2014, and extend my heartfelt gratitude for the consistent support of all shareholders, fellow
Board members, mainland China and Hong Kong citizens, and employees from various departments. We will
continue to work hard to generate better returns for our shareholders and to further contribute to the community
and the sustainable development of the environment.

CEEFEN  NRAFE—SERASEENE N  KLWRBEIRA - AR ERBEREREFHEE1,703,147,0007T
BEFEREL20%( - T — =4 : A¥1,324,667,0007T) °
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KBERMEER ©

"TANG SHUANGNING
Chairman

B

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report 1TBUERRE

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS %ol fE £

Operating Results &% % &

In 2014, the global economy generally maintained a moderate growth trend; however, economic development
differed around the world. The United States achieved robust economic recovery, while the European and
emerging economies experienced weak economic growth. As the People’s Republic of China (“China”)
continued to transform its economic structure and deepen reform, the country entered into a ‘New Normal’
economy. As environmental problems become increasingly prominent, it is imperative to form a new model of
economic growth with a green, low-carbon and cyclic development. China’s green economy and environmental
protection industry will therefore embrace a historical opportunity for long-term development.

The nation has further improved the laws and policies governing the environmental protection industry. The
newly revised Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China was approved by the National
People’s Congress in April 2014 and came into effect on 1 January 2015; the Water Pollution Control Action
Program formulated by the Ministry of Environmental Protection of China was submitted to the State Council
of China for examination and approval at the end of 2014 and the basic ideas for environmental protection
during the period of the 13th Five-Year Plan have been compiled, showing a clear direction for the development
of the environmental protection industry in China. Meanwhile, local governments across the country further
strengthened capital investment and policy support for environmental protection and environmental restoration.
Many local governments regard environmental protection as the top priority for the development of local societies
and people’s livelihoods. As the demand for environmental protection and alternative energy continues to
increase, the Group will continue to enjoy an expanding market space and various development opportunities.
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During the year under review, the State Council of China approved the restructuring plan of China Everbright
Group Limited (“Restructuring of Everbright Group”). China Everbright Group Limited was restructured into a
joint-stock company from a solely state-owned enterprise with name changed to “China Everbright Group Ltd.”
(“China Everbright Group”). Restructuring of Everbright Group has optimized its ownership structure and as
the industrial flagship of China Everbright Group, the Group will also benefit from the restructuring. The Group
will have new development opportunities under the guidance and support from the development plan of China
Everbright Group.

2014 was the 11th year following the Group’s move to the environmental protection business and the beginning
of a new round of developments. With a strong sense of social responsibility and the determination to protect
the environment, the Group adhered to the business philosophy of Development, Reform and Innovation, which
was determined at the beginning of 2014, and made extraordinary achievements, further strengthening its
leading position in the industry. Meanwhile, in order to drive a new round of developments, the Group proposed
the strategy of Leveraging Talent, Science and Technology to Expand from Coastal Areas to Inland Cities, from
Cities to Rural Areas, and from Domestic to Overseas Markets with High Standards, which it implemented
pragmatically, yielding remarkable achievements. During the year under review, the Group’s various business
sectors experienced rapid development and maintained robust growth momentum. The Group steadily advanced
the long-acting mechanism of its talent strategy, greatly improved its strengths in science and technology, and
achieved fruitful results in investment and capital market.

CIEFEER - PEEBKELETPEER(EE)RAAFNEETR(IEASEEA]) - ARBBEE RIS AN H
NE ZHEBEL [PEAAKERNOARN([HEEAREE]) - AAKEEHEE(CTHBESRE > AEEELSTED
AREBEETHERES  THXERNAAREEEA  EFEXREENEREBNESI LT T - AREROFLH -

“E-MERAKEERRFREXENE T —AFE  TEAKEHF —HERNVABZF - AEEEGFNETN (&
B E - AFEREE  USENHEETRMHERERNAZTER  AITTRANGEE £ PREEETENRE
Mz o R - REEEFT —WHOBE  AEERLTIUAT - BHERAEsS SREEETERA - T RE -
REARESNHEREEELFEE TIAKS - WS THERK - BBEFERN  AEEXEBREREZERILIRTEDE
R®E - ATBREMEGILERE  BREHNAKNER  BEAMERREERKRERE -

An enterprise is not only the Creator of Wealth

but also the Safeguard of Environmental and

Social Responsibility

TETERNENENAEE FRRARSEEANAESE
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report 1T B8 & 3R &

During the year under review, the Group focused on China’s Western Development Strategy and further
deepened its market development model, which comprised 4 representative offices in Beijing, Shenzhen, Nanjing
and Jinan as well as existing project locations. It further expanded its business into mid-west provinces and
entered Hunan and Henan provinces. The Group has successfully secured 27 environmental protection and
alternative energy projects, including re-launched Shanxi Xinzhou Ningwu Wind Power Project (“Ningwu Wind
Power Project”) Changfangshan Phase | and Zhaojiashan Phase | and Jiangsu Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy
Project Phase I, Zhejiang Ningbo Waste-to-energy Phase Il, and Shandong Boxing Waste Water Treatment
Project Expansion and Upgrade, etc, commanding a total investment of RMB9.223 billion. Both the number of
projects and the investment exceeded those of the last 2 years’ sum.

To improve the Group’s comprehensive strength, further expand its environmental water business, and enhance
market competitiveness, China Everbright Water Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
completed the reverse takeover of HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited (“HanKore Environment”) on 12
December 2014. HanKore Environment has become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and was
renamed to China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water”). It remains listed on the Mainboard of Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). The spin-off and listing of Everbright Water marked another
milestone for the Group’s development and will accelerate the development of the Group’s environmental water
business. Meanwhile, it is also conducive for the Group to expand its environmental protection project portfolios
to locations including Beijing, Shaanxi, and Henan and enlarge its market share as well as reduce its overall
operating costs through synergistic efforts. This will have a positive effect on the operation and development of
the Group’s overall business.

CIEFERN  AEEERERAIARMBEERE  EFRCAER R mREREENERKENRIREGIERMENS
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During the year under review, the Group effectively improved the overall effectiveness and profit of the projects
through its innovative and continuous reforms in both project construction and production processes, and
reached an annual operating profit of HK$2,680,443,000, an increase of 26% as compared with 2013.
Leveraging its rich experience, the Group has good preparation in the preliminary stage, moved forward projects
under construction in line with their targets, and continued to maintain the stable operation of operating projects.
This facilitated continuous growth in the Group’s revenue and fostered a strong profit growth driver. During
the year under review, the Group continued to maintain sustainable development. It actively explored various
funding channels and enhanced its financial strength. During the year under review, the Group not only signed
loan agreements with various commercial banks but also signed a strategic cooperation agreement with China
Development Bank and obtained a facility support of RMB6 billion, reserving sufficient funds for the development
of its projects. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash on hand amounting to HK$5,150,149,000 and
maintained a reasonable gearing level and healthy financial position. The Group achieved a steady growth of its
business and further enhanced its competitive strength.

In order to realize the effective integration of the Group’s resources and enhance the brand’s image, awareness
and influence of the Group’s products, the Group’s trademark “EBEP” was approved by the State Administration
for Industry & Commerce of China and was officially authorized as a registered trademark during the year under
review. The registration of the trademark represents an important step for the Company in further boosting
the effective development of its environmental protection technology products and building an external sales
network. In addition, the Group’s 5 different self-developed grate furnace products received the European Union
(“EU”")’s CE Mark, showing that all of the Group’s existing furnace products have met the safety and export
requirements of all EU countries. As an effective passport for breaking international trade barriers, the certificate
allows the Group to accelerate its expansion into international markets and further enhance the awareness and
competitiveness of the Group’s self-developed products.

CEFTFEN  AEEBERBEERNEERENTERNERN BRUEAEE RATBEUE - 2FKLERFEBE
2,680,443,0007T - M- T ——FER26% - ARBEREEENEEZLER  HHERBEE MO T oA EE - £R1B
BiZEZESHE  BLEHEHERBEBETET  RENSFENER  AREESIEAMAENNFEERE - BIEF
EA AEBEERBUFELE BRARZEMERE  WRELEN FAEEREEFEARTHZREER
TEEEXHBZI  BEHEKHAFRTESBREERS  BESARKOETHERBESR  REHENERMTT
TENESEE RZZT—WF+A=+—0 AEEFHFHELEBES5,150,149,0007T * BEKFEE - FHARR
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Over the years, the Group’s outstanding operating performance, potential for long-term development and
excellent management approach have been widely acknowledged by the capital market and the community.
The Group strives for excellence in corporate governance, technology innovation and internal risk management.
During the year under review, the Group was included as a constituent stock of the Hang Seng Mainland 100
Index and the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index for the first time. The Company received the Best
Investor Relations Company and the Company with Most Potential under the Corporate Governance award
category from Corporate Governance Asia; the Best Investor Relations Company and the Best CEO from
Institutional Investor magazine; and was voted one of the Top Ten Green Innovation Companies by International
Financing Magazine. In addition, the Group won first place once again in the “Top Ten Influential Solid Waste
Treatment Enterprises in China”. These honours demonstrate the Group’s excellent performance in corporate
governance and management as well as portraying the wide recognition and acknowledgement by the
investment community and the society.

Over the years, while continuing to achieve remarkable operating results, the Group has also actively carried
out its social responsibilities. The Group’s environmental protection projects not only help improving the local
environment but have also become local publicity and environmental protection education bases. Everbright
International Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation Company Limited (the “Foundation”) lent full
support to a major environmental protection event “Earth Hour 2014” organised by WWF Hong Kong and
became a Double Diamond member in an effort to promote environmental protection and energy conservation,
and nurture public awareness of environmental protection causes. During the year under review, the Group has
established strategic partnerships with the Chinese Ecological Civilization Research and Promotion Association
and the Chinese Society for Environmental Sciences, to promote education about environmental protection in
China.
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The Group actively followed the State’s environmental protection policies and applied for government subsidies
on all government levels. During the year under review, the Group obtained a subsidy of RMB100,000,000
under the scheme of the Central Budgetary Investment Plan and special funds from the provincial budget for its
Ningbo, Nanjing, Pizhou and Sanya waste-to-energy projects, showing how its high-quality project construction
and operation received recognition from the central and local governments. The Group also continued to receive
tax benefits in China. During the year under review, it received a value-added tax refund and profit tax refund of
RMB79,618,000 and RMB23,808,000 respectively.

In 2014, the Group’s construction projects progressed smoothly, driving substantial growth in construction
service revenue. As for operating projects, the Group is committed to reducing costs and exploring internal
potential to optimize its revenue structure, driving the continued growth of its overall operating efficiency. During
the year under review, the Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to HK$6,355,120,000, an increase of
19% over HK$5,319,866,000 of 2013. The EBITDA amounted to HK$2,795,219,000, an increase of 26% over
HK$2,217,929,000 from 2013. Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year of 2014
was HK$1,703,147,000, 29% more than HK$1,324,667,000 of 2013. Basic earnings per share of 2014 were
HK37.99 cents, HK5.39 cents more than the HK32.60 cents in last year.

The Group remains dedicated to enhancing value for its shareholders (the “Shareholders”). To reward the
Shareholders for their support and considering the Group’s need to achieve long-term sustainable development,
the Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per share to the Shareholders. The total dividends
for the year are to be HK11.0 cents per share (2013: HK8.5 cents per share).

AEBRGEARRBERERTAREARSAREREY -DBEFERN  AEEEESTPRBERNREFEREREE
BESHPARBIEL  AAZHASEETVAER B HINKR=-0MNREEEE - FRTAEESRENIE
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Environmental Protection and Alternative Energy Business

To cope with the rapid development of the environmental protection and alternative energy industries, the
Group actively explored business opportunities in all areas of the environmental protection and alternative
energy business. As at 31 December 2014, the Group secured 122 environmental protection and alternative
energy projects, with a total investment of approximately RMB30.267 billion. Of these projects, those that had
completed construction accounted for a total investment of approximately RMB14.605 billion, while those
currently under construction accounted for a total investment of approximately RMB4.454 billion. The total
investment of projects in the preparatory stage is approximately RMB9.907 billion, excluding the investment of
RMB1.301 billion in the biomass power generation projects which construction has been postponed.

During the year under review, the turnover from the environmental protection and alternative energy business
sectors amounted to HK$6,346,690,000, in which construction service revenue increased by 16% to
HK$3,627,456,000, the operation service revenue was HK$1,764,721,000, an increase by 21% as compared
with 2013 and the finance income was increased by 28% to HK$954,513,000. The proportion of the revenue is
as follows: construction service revenue 57%, operation service revenue 28% and finance income 15%.

BR K ERER

REARREFERTESRERNBY  FAEERHENRSRRLFERES BE_T-—NF+_A=+—8H "
AEEDEENRRLIERIER H12218 - LREVHARKSB02.67ET  EXRTHEBAREBEHARK146.05(8
T ERAEMAREROAREILLAET  MREERERNEDERETRAZAREROARBI3.01ET &
EHRIRBE P RERERNRARE.O7TET °
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Major financial data of the environmental protection and alternative energy business in 2014 is summarised in the
table below:
—MERERMERES 2 T E2MBEIBENT

2014 2013 (restated)
“E-mE 25--f (8R)
Environmental  Environmental Alternative Environmental  Environmental Alternative
Energy Water Energy Energy Water Energy
Projects Projects Projects Total Projects Projects Projects Total
RREOFEE  RRKEER  HERER ait  BREREE  RRIBER  MEREE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000
RRTT BRI BRI BRI ARTT ARTT ARTT BT

Tumover 228
- Construction senices  —RERH 3,165,556 112,079 349,821 3,627,456 2,516,997 49779 150,804 3117,580
- Operation services -BERE 843,043 627,960 292,818 1,764,721 642,529 564,772 246 454 1,453,755
- Finance income -BHA 642,520 310,715 1,218 954,513 466,887 276,189 1310 744,386
4,652,019 1,050,754 643,917 6,346,690 3,606,413 1,290,740 398,568 5,315,721

EBITDA RHE BB

fER

EinEd 2,152,185 570,800 259,502 2,982,487 1,540,294 670,770 136,444 2,347 508

The Group attaches equal importance to both economic and social benefits and adheres to the principles of
protecting the environment and fulfilling its responsibilities through all of its energy conservation and emission
reduction indicators which are constantly setting new standards. During the year under review, the Group
processed 5,365,000 tonnes of household waste and 57,000 tonnes of hazardous waste, 345,000 tonnes of
agricultural waste and generated 1,982,525,000 kWh of green electricity. This output can support the annual
electricity consumption for 1,652,000 households and is equivalent to saving 793,000 tonnes of standard
coal and reducing carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions by 2,257,000 tonnes. Meanwhile, the Group treated
584,792,000 m® of waste water, 1,169,000 m® of leachate from waste-to-energy plants and reduced COD
emissions by 211,000 tonnes. Since the Group’s first environmental protection project commenced operation
in 2005, it has processed an accumulated 21,233,000 tonnes of household waste and 301,000 tonnes of
hazardous waste, 1,202,000 tonnes of agricultural waste and generated 7,160,789,000 kWh of green electricity,
which can fulfill annual electricity consumption for 5,967,000 households and save the equivalent of 2,864,000
tonnes of standard coal, reducing CO, emissions by 8,673,000 tonnes and preventing 930,903,000 trees from
being cut down. The Group has treated 3,764,386,000 m?® of waste water, 3,812,000 m?® of leachate from waste-
to-energy plants and reduced COD emissions by 1,435,000 tonnes.

AEERKRBERFELEREEEERSITE  DFRFHEFTTES  SERESBEZEITS - ASERDEFE
M5 Bl EE IR A SE 7 3% I 15 B4 BE 22 405,365,000 N2 57,0008 » & 2 BF 2 #)345,000MF + R4 & F 511,982,525,000
TFEE - aJ#1,652,000ffKRE—FEH - HERENLZE/K 793,000 - & > = &L ik BEM2,257,0000F : EIE 5K
584,792,000 /K » K7 B EAYZIE AR 1,169,00037 A K - CODIFHE211,0008 - B — T TR F & ERRIBEE
TR - Bt o lRIE AR R BB EE 21,233,000 &2301,0001F » £ 2 EEZE¥)1,202,000WF @ 24 BE S
7,160,789,000F FLis + AJ {45,067, 000K EE—F (= A + HE R ENLIZ K 2,864,000 + 5 = E b HxHERR8,673,000
I8 % 8 > A BB 48 K AR £, 930,903,0004k ° &R 32357k 3,764,386,00032 77 K » 17 3K % B ik 492 )8 % 3,812,000 77 K
CODjRiHE1,435,000MF °
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 36 waste-to-energy projects, 10 industrial solid waste and
hazardous waste treatment projects, 2 methane-to-energy projects, and 1 sludge treatment and disposal
project, commanding a total investment of about RMB18.666 billion. These facilities are designed with an
annual household waste processing capacity of approximately 11,770,000 tonnes, which is able to generate
an annual on-grid electricity of 5.15 billion kWh. The annual hazardous waste (including industrial waste and
medical waste) treatment capacity (including landfill, incineration and physio-chemical processing) is about
270,000 tonnes, while the annual sludge treatment capacity is approximately 18,000 tonnes.

Waste-to-energy projects remained a focus of the Group’s business development. In 2014, the Group
secured 12 such projects, a record high. These projects commanded a total investment of RMB6.12 billion,
with an increased designed daily household waste processing capacity of 11,300 tonnes, boosting the total
daily waste processing capacity to 32,250 tonnes. This enabled the Group to keep a leading market share in
the sector. Besides consolidating markets in Jiangsu and Shandong provinces, the Group further expanded
markets in Zhejiang and Anhui provinces, as well as entering the markets in Hunan and Henan provinces.
New projects included Jiangsu Nanjing Gaochun Waste-to-energy Project, Jiangsu Changzhou Xinbei
Waste-to-energy Project, Jiangsu Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project (“Nanjing Project”) Phase I, Jiangsu
Xuzhou Pei County Waste-to-energy Project, Shandong Tengzhou Waste-to-energy Project (“Tengzhou
Project”), Anhui Ma’anshan Waste-to-energy Project (“Ma’anshan Project”), Anhui Dangshan Waste-to-
energy Project, Anhui Lingbi Waste-to-energy Project, Zhejiang Hangzhou Yuhang Waste-to-energy Project,
Ningbo Beilun Waste-to-energy Project (“Ningbo Project”) Phase I, Hunan Yiyang Waste-to-energy Project,
and Henan Xinzheng Waste-to-energy Project. In addition, the Group also secured 2 hazardous waste
treatment projects, Jiangsu Xinyi Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment Project and Changzhou Hazardous
Solid Waste Treatment Project, which boosted the Group’s designed annual industrial hazardous waste
incineration processing capacity by 39,500 tonnes. Additionally, the Group secured 1 sludge treatment and
disposal project, Hainan Sanya Sludge Treatment and Disposal Project.

In 2014, the Group made a breakthrough in its investment model by introducing new partnership models. By
introducing the public-private-partnership model (PPP), the Ma’anshan Project partnered with a firm affiliated to
the local government to establish a joint-venture company which invests in environmental protection projects.
In addition, the Group and the Sichuan Energy Industry Investment Group formed a joint venture called Sichuan
Everbright Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Investment Co. Limited, based in Chengdu,
to explore waste-to-energy projects and other low-carbon industrial projects in Sichuan province and nearby
areas. The Changzhou Hazardous Waste Project was jointly established and operated by the Group and a
globally-recognized environmental protection company, and the joint-venture model enhanced construction
and operation of the project. By introducing a series of partnership models, the Group has seen even more
expansion in the environmental protection sector in domestic and overseas market.
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During the year under review, the Group had 5 waste-to-energy projects and 2 hazardous waste treatment
projects that completed construction and commenced operation, including Ningbo Project Phase |, Nanjing
Project Phase |, Hainan Sanya Waste-to-energy Project (“Sanya Project”), Shandong Shouguang Waste-to-
energy Project, Jiangsu Pizhou Waste-to-energy Project (“Pizhou Project”) Phase |, Jiangsu Lianyungang
Guanyun Hazardous Waste Landfill Project (“Guanyun Hazardous Waste Project”), and Jiangsu Binhai
Hazardous Waste Landfill Project (“Binhai Hazardous Waste Landfill Project”), with other projects under
construction as scheduled. The Group is also committed to improving operational efficiency by enhancing
the electricity generated by each tonne of waste and lowering the volume of electricity consumed by
factories. It has achieved good results with continuous growth in operation service revenue. During the year
under review, Jiangsu Changzhou Waste-to-energy Project, Jiangyin Waste-to-energy Project and Yixing
Waste-to-energy Project were approved to increase their waste processing fees.

The progress made in market expansion is mainly due to the stable operation of the projects and compliance
with discharge standards. The Group address to its goal of construction and operation, which meets the
highest industry standards. The gas emission of waste-to-energy projects of the Group has fully complied
with Euro 2000 Standard and the leachate treatment has met the national Grade 1 emission standard. All of
these factors lay a solid foundation for the Group’s leading position in China’s waste-to-energy industry.

During the year under review, the Group’s environmental protection projects processed a total household
waste of 5,365,000 tonnes, industrial and hazardous waste of 57,000 tonnes, and generated a total
on-grid electricity of 1,654,513,000 kWh, an increase of 21%, a decrease of 16% and an increase of
55% respectively as compared with 2013. The environmental energy projects contributed an EBITDA of
HK$2,152,185,000, an increase of 40% over 2013. The increase in profit was mainly attributable to the
recognition of construction service revenue and construction cost savings during the year, as well as the
increase in the operation service revenue which was boosted by continuing increases in the total processing
volume of operating projects.

CEFEN  ANEBMEASENREETEL REARERBEEEKIRE £ BFEE 8 mREE—H -
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Major operating and financial data of the environmental energy business in 2014 is summarised in the table
below:

—E-MEERFREREH I IBELEPBEEMMAT

2014 2013
(restated)
—Z2-NEF —E-=F
(E®R)
Waste-to-energy and WIREER
methane-to-energy projects BREEEAR
Waste processing volume (tonne) Fr R = (WR) 5,365,000 4,423,000
On-grid electricity (MWh) FRBEEKEE) 1,654,513 1,069,434
EBITDA (HK$’000) BFE B TER
BiHA AN (BB TT) 2,032,938 1,407,202
Industrial and hazardous TENRBEEEEH
waste projects
Waste processing volume (tonne) WIREIEE (HE) 57,000 68,000
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRAE - BB - ITER
BiHm BN (BB TT) 119,247 133,092

B. Environmental Protection Industrial Parks 7, * IR{RE % [E

The Group actively encourages environmental protection. Under the principle of Implementing Projects with
One Success Followed by Another, the Group works closely with relevant local government authorities to
design and build environmental protection industrial parks, making full use of local resources within the park,
sharing infrastructure and optimizing available land resources. The goal of this exercise is to achieve efficient
recycling of solid waste and to enhance energy conservation and emission reduction efficiency, making it
easier for the government and enterprises to implement a centralized management system and ultimately
achieve Nil Discharge. The parks will be established as modern environmental protection industrial parks and
educational hubs for environmental protection.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 9 environmental protection industrial parks in Suzhou, Changzhou,
Sugian, Zhenjiang New District, Yixing, Lianyungang Xuwei New District, Nanjing of Jiangsu province,
Weifang of Shandong province and Ganzhou of Jiangxi province.

AEERGHESIRR - BRHBAAERILERRRERE  RERIEHEHRIIRERAR - KW [KA—EER
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 38 waste water treatment projects, 4 reusable water projects and 2
waste water source heat pump projects, commanding a total investment of RMB5.906 billion. These projects
are designed to have an annual waste water treatment capacity of approximately 938,050,000 m?, to provide
annual reusable water of 22,334,000 m?3, and to offer a heating and cooling service to an area of 312,000 m?
via waste water source heat pump projects.

During the year under review, the Group continued to move forward the development of environmental water
projects; it secured Shandong Zibo Reusable Water Project Phase Il and the extension and upgrading of
Boxing Waste Water Treatment Project. Meanwhile, the Group proactively continued to grow its business
scale by acquiring and merging with similar businesses. It acquired a 78% equity interest in Qingdao Veolia
Water Operating Company Limited and a 40% equity interest in EB-VW HK Holding Company Limited from
Veolia Water S.A., a French company, for a total consideration of RMB92 million. The deal enabled the Group
to lead and manage the Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (Haibohe and Maidao Plants).
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In December 2014, the Group further integrated its environmental water projects. It completed the reverse
takeover of HanKore Environment and listed its water business on the SGX, effectively expanding its asset
scale, market reach and project diversification. Everbright Water has become a new publicly-traded entity,
which focuses on the investment in and operation of comprehensive waste water treatment projects,
covering a number of regions in China, such as Beijing, Jiangsu, Shandong, Shaanxi and Henan.

In addition to achieving stable operations and complying with discharge standards, the Group reduced
operating costs by saving electricity consumption, closely monitoring water quality changes and making
adjustments accordingly, as well as adopting centralized procurement. During the year under review, the
Group’s environmental water projects treated 584,792,000 m® of waste water, up by 11% from 2013. The
environmental water projects brought an EBITDA of HK$570,800,000, a decrease of 15% as compared with
2013, mainly due to recognition of construction cost saving in 2013.
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Key operating and financial data of the environmental water business in 2014 is summarised in the table
below:

“E-FEERRABEBZ T RELEPHERDT

2014 2013
(restated)
—E—F —EF—=F
(EHH)
Environmental Water Projects IR{R/KHIE R
Waste water treatment volume (m®) KBS (3L 5K) 584,792,000 526,485,000

EBITDA (HK$'000) BRALE -~ BE - ER
B BN CERETIT) 570,800 670,770
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[ll. ALTERNATIVE ENERGY = - ¥R
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 24 alternative energy projects, including 9 photovoltaic energy
projects, 13 biomass integrated utilisation projects and 2 wind power projects, with a total investment
of approximately RMB5.285 billion. The total designed annual processing capacity of agricultural waste
was approximately 3,156,000 tonnes, the annual on-grid electricity generated was approximately
2,068,927,000 kWh, and annual heating supply reached approximately 1,502,000 tonnes.

Due to the Chinese government making great efforts to deal with air pollution and haze, the biomass
integrated utilisation sector has seen policy-driven opportunities, bringing about a new direction for the
Group’s biomass business. During the year under review, the Group developed 7 biomass integrated
utilisation projects, with a total investment of approximately RMB1.711 billion, an increased annual
agricultural waste and straw processing capacity of 1,512,000 tonnes, and 116,000 tonnes of pellet fuel.

The Group addresses to the strategy of expanding from cities to rural areas, and continues to explore
breakthroughs in collecting, reserving, transporting and processing straw in rural areas. By constantly
maximizing on its current project management experience, the Group also encourages diversified
development models, such as biomass centralised heating projects in Jiangsu Sucheng, biomass heat
and electricity cogeneration projects in Jiangsu Guanyun and Xuyi, biomass direct combustion and power
generation projects in Anhui Hanshan, Dingyuan and Huaiyuan, biomass pellet fuel processing project
in Jiangsu Rudong, rural and urban waste integration projects in Anhui Dangshan and Lingbi, and straw
integrated utilisation demonstration projects that cover 4 cities and 6 counties of Chengdu of Sichuan
province. Such projects are able to effectively solve air pollution problems caused by straw burning
nationwide and therefore have huge market potential. It is also the Group’s key growth direction in the
biomass energy sector.
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During the year under review, Anhui Hanshan Biomass Power Generation Project (“Hanshan Project”)
commenced operation. In order to reduce the wear and tear of biomass raw materials in the open air and
to make full use of the roof areas, the Group planned to develop the Hanshan Distributed Photovoltaic
Energy Project on the newly constructed roof cover of biomass raw materials. The project will become a pilot
project of the Group; and relevant operating experience will be used as reference for other biomass power
generation projects.
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In addition, Ningwu Wind Power Projects Changfangshan Phase | and Zhaojiashan Phase | were included in
the 4th approval scheme of wind power generation projects in the 12th Five-Year Plan of the National Energy
Administration in February 2014, and were approved by the Shanxi Development and Reform Commission
in April 2014. Ningwu Wind Power Projects have finished their wind resources assessments and are
commencing project construction.

During the year under review, the Group’s alternative energy projects provided a total on-grid electricity of
325,009,000 kWh, an increase of 35% as compared with 2013. The alternative energy business contributed
EBITDA of HK$259,502,000, up by 90% as compared with last year. The increase in profit was mainly
contributed by the construction of Hanshan Project and the increase in profit contribution due to the
optimization of the fuel structure and improvement of operating efficiency at Anhui Dangshan Biomass Power
Generation Project.

Major operating and financial data of the alternative energy business in 2014 is summarised in the table
below:

R ZEREESEEREU-HAMER LR _Z-—HNF_ABIABRRERB [+ -« A IFNUHRAEEB X
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2014 2013
(restated)
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Alternative energy projects ¥ eeREH

On-grid electricity (MWh) FREBEEKER) 325,009 239,921
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By establishing a standardized engineering management system and process, making the most of its
management experience and enhancing its core competencies, the Group was able to provide high quality
construction engineering services and enhance the comprehensive efficiency of the construction and operation
of various projects. During the year under review, the Group undertook its highest number of projects and
contracts, with 11 projects completed construction and commenced operation, making the total number of
completed construction and commenced operation projects to 73, with a total investment of RMB14.605 billion.
In addition to this, there are 44 projects under construction or in the preparatory stage, commanding a total
investment of over RMB14.161 billion.

During the year under review, 5 waste-to-energy projects completed construction and commenced operation.
Sanya Project was the first waste-to-energy project that the Company invested in and constructed in Hainan
province and was a key municipal project of Hainan province as well as Sanya City. The project was awarded
the Top Quality Construction Project of Hainan Province. Ningbo Project Phase |, a new landmark along the
coastal area of the East China Sea, commenced operation earlier than expected and is a demonstration project
for the waste-to-energy industry in Zhejiang province. Nanjing Project Phase | also completed construction
and commenced operation. Nanjing Project Phase | acted as supporting infrastructure for the Nanjing Youth
Olympic Games 2014, another major development for Nanjing City and Jiangsu province. In addition, Guanyun
Hazardous Waste Project and Binhai Hazardous Waste Landfill Project, Shandong Zhanggiu Waste Water
Treatment Project, Ling County Waste Water Treatment No. 1 Plant Upgrading Project, and Hanshan Project
also completed construction and commenced operation during the year. The completion of construction and
commencement of operation of the projects not only helped to establish demonstration projects but also created
strong growth potential for the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 17 projects under construction, including 6 waste-to-energy
projects, 1 hazardous waste treatment project, 2 wind power projects, 1 biomass integrated utilisation project,
6 water restoration projects and Changzhou Equipment Manufacturing Project Phase II. With more new projects
continuously commencing construction, construction service revenue is expected to be the main revenue driver
for the Group. The Group is committed to the principle of First Class Quality, Advanced Technology, High
Standard, Outstanding Efficiency with regards to project construction. It strives to create benchmark projects
across the country.
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The Group, which has always upheld an operating philosophy of planning based on scientific theory, meticulous
organization, bold innovation and practice, has consistently increased its R&D investment, enabling it to be at
the forefront of developments in technological trends. The Group has established a set of R&D system to ensure
robust scientific development and introduced first-class technology from China and overseas to improve its
technological development capabilities.

During the year under review, the Group focused on 10 fields in R&D which were planned at the beginning of
2014 with a total budget of more than RMB44 million. Upholding the ideology of the Integration of Production,
Teaching and Research, the Group continuously encouraged international technology cooperation, actively
working with Tsinghua University, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Zhejiang University, Harbin Institute of
Technology, Southeast University, and other domestic science research institutes in various technology
fields. This included the research and production of the 750-tonne/day incinerator, the R&D of high efficiency
anaerobic jars, gas treatment technology, and biomass integrated utilisation, achieving a number of technology
breakthroughs. These breakthroughs included the production of large scale grate furnaces, production line
equipment for agricultural biomass and straw pellet fuel, purification systems for gas emitted from waste-to-
energy plants, and leachate treatment technology.

During the year under review, the Group’s self-developed 750-tonne/day grate furnace was produced
successfully and reached international standards. It is now in the progress of patent application. In addition,
the 500-tonne/day grate furnace was operated at the Nanjing Project Phase | and Ningbo Project Phase I.
The product achieved great success in both electricity generation per tonne of waste and various parameters
of operating systems. With the help of the advent of its new generation incinerator technology, the Group has
entered the global ranks of advanced incinerator technology. In addition, it has commenced and promoted
research in harmless treatment of household waste, agriculture and forestry biomass, hazardous waste
incineration, gas emission purification, sludge treatment and disposal techniques, and environment remediation.

During the year under review, the Group was granted 3 software copyright licences and 17 patents, of which 7
were invention patents and 10 were utility invention patents. The Group will continue to strengthen its efforts in
advancing R&D to develop its business, and to fuel the expansion of the Group’s business scope and sustainable
development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING IR{R & Rl iE

In 2014, the Group achieved new breakthroughs in environmental protection equipment manufacturing, which
has gradually become a new business sector for the Group. The Group’s production base for environmental
protection equipment is located in Changzhou City of Jiangsu province (“Changzhou Environmental Protection
Equipment Manufacturing Project”). It mainly manufactures incinerators, leachate treatment systems, gas
emission purification equipment and other major equipment for use at the Group’s waste-to-energy projects.
Changzhou Environmental Protection Equipment Manufacturing Project is now expanding Phase Il, which is
expected to commence commercial operation in the first half of 2015. Upon completion, the project’s production
capacity will be doubled.

During the year under review, the Group completed the unit assembly and commissioning of 7 sets of
incinerators (including 2 sets of 750-tonne/day prototypes). The Group also implemented an overhaul of the
incinerators in the Changzhou Waste-to-energy Project, Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase | and Phase
II, and Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project, and advanced the centralized purchase and supply of backup
products for operating projects. The Group’s self-developed, multi-step hydraulic mechanical household waste
grate furnace series received the EU’s CE certificate. The outstanding results from the environmental protection
equipment manufacturing have encouraged the Group to build high-quality projects and also helped it to further
improve effectiveness and lower operational costs.

In addition to the projects within the Group, the Group has actively developed sales of its equipment and
technical services. During the year under review, the Group signed a series of equipment supply and technical
service contracts for both domestic and overseas markets, with a cumulative total value of contracts amounted
to RMB141 million. The breakthrough into the sales market not only enhanced the Group’s branding influence in
terms of products and services but also added new bright opportunities for the Group’s future profit growth.

—T-mE  AREHERABWERHE THORE LRV — O RBIE - (ROTHRE BN D RARR
HBRBBWE L FNBBREER RS EELES R OSERERRERHLSHORREE - 1
HFAEEOTREEERER - BMREREEE —HEETEE - B ST -DF LR FRANE - BNERS
oA —fx -

BIREAERER - AEEER T7A RS - Heh2 6 A750M B ATBH MO B RE R AR - FEBER RN
FEER  WNSRBEEA —  HRETAREEE A B A R ARS8 A ARG — R B
BT TR A EFEEENS RERA £ E R R EE YA R MES TRACERERE « ERER/E
BUEFBSMEEARA - TEAKEETERAIAR TIRIBHT ANNLHE « T EBHAEEE — SR M RIEE
BEAA -

FREEBAERRT E SN - AR E N FHBEREMEMRGINETS - QBEFER > AEERE T — RJBEARLSIIRK
BHEULREMRE AR - GRZFHEFEARE141ET < SMETISHORBMEGHE AL R T A K B E m LIREH
miETE N MABASAKREARRNBAERBERTHOZH -



88 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBEFRBER AR

Chief Executive Officer’s Report 1T B8 & 3R &

POST-RESULTS EVENTS #4& H#& =18

The Group secured 2 biomass power generation projects and 3 waste-to-energy projects in the first quarter of
2015. The total investment in the Anhui Chuzhou Nangiao Biomass Power Generation Project was approximately
RMB320 million and the plant has a designed annual agricultural waste and straw processing capacity of
approximately 280,000 tonnes. It is expected to generate green electricity of 200,000,000 kWh annually. With
a total investment of approximately RMB320 million, Sichuan Mianzhu Biomass Power Generation Project
is designed to have an annual agricultural waste and straw processing capacity of approximately 300,000
tonnes and is expected to generate green electricity of 200,000,000 kWh annually. Sichuan Mianzhu Waste-to-
energy Project Phase | has a daily household waste processing capacity of 300 tonnes with a total investment
of approximately RMB180 million, generating 32,500,000 kWh of green electricity annually. Shandong Pingdu
Household Waste-to-energy Project Phase | has a designed daily household waste processing capacity of
600 tonnes, commanding a total investment of approximately RMB360 million. It is expected to generate
70,000,000 kWh of green electricity annually. Hainan Sanya Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il has a designed
daily household waste processing capacity of 350 tonnes, commanding a total investment of approximately
RMB166 million. It is expected to generate 33,150,000 kWh of green electricity annually.
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The year 2014 was another year of “Setting Sail” for the Group. Due to its successful development in the
environmental protection business over the last decade, the Group has built a solid business foundation, multi-
business strategic layout, and a leading management team. In order to grasp new market opportunities, the
Group has adhered to the principle that an Enterprise is not only a Creator of Wealth, but also the Safeguard
of Environmental and Social Responsibility, with a focus on environmental protection and alternative energy.
The Group has developed a series of first class quality projects with high standards, advanced technology,
and outstanding efficiency, and in doing so, has become a leading one-stop integrated environmental solution
provider in China and abroad.

2014 was the first year that China deepened its economic reform and it was also a bumper harvest year for the
environmental protection industry. The central government and the public paid close attention to environmental
protection with a series of related policies which were implemented gradually. The National People’s Congress
approved the refined Environmental Protection Law, another milestone for the legislative history of China’s
environmental protection. As controlling and strictly enforcing the law on pollution becomes the ‘New Normal’ in
the environmental protection sector, the industry’s market demand will grow accordingly.

The Chinese economy is in the ‘New Normal’ development stage, encouraging the development of the
environmental protection industry. In addition to the implementation of the new Environmental Protection
Law, there are other new trends that will definitively and largely change the industry’s operational system and
business model, for example, the gradual improvement of emission trading, public demand for the Regulations
on the Implementation of the Environmental Protection Tax Law, and emerging of the PPP model’s third party
management. According to the 13th Five-Year Plan, China’s investment in environmental protection will reach
RMBG trillion during the period between 2016 and 2020, with continuous large scale growth in the environmental
protection industry. This ambitious goal has brought about lucrative market opportunities. The Group will
implement forward-looking strategic plans to explore the opportunities, making the best of the enterprise’s
management resources, as well as closely following market trends in order to grow its business healthily and
steadily and increase its operational efficiency.
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While strengthening its two traditional core business segments, environmental energy and environmental
water, the Group is now actively expanding into other advantageous business segments including biomass
integrated utilisation projects, environmental protection industrial parks and environmental protection equipment
manufacturing, and will implement the segment’s cooperative development with an innovative business model,
integration of business segments, and flexible cooperating models. The Group will continue to adopt a clear
market position and strategy, focusing on technological innovation and R&D, and will constantly enhance its core
competitiveness through portfolio diversification in various regional markets, creating synergies and strong brand
influence to expand market share.

As market trends change, the Group believes that more market opportunities and challenges lie ahead in 2015.
The Group will monitor and discover the market direction in real-time in order to capture the best opportunities
while paying attention to risk control and strengthening the foundations of the business. Against a complicated
and ever-changing international and domestic economic backdrop, the Group will monitor the possibility of
market risk more and analyse market demand so as to ensure the steady development of the Group’s business
and create maximum value for shareholders.

The Group is confident about its future development which will ride on the nation’s long-term support for
the environmental protection industry, be guided by the national policy of ecological civilization and strongly
supported by China Everbright Group. As one of the leaders in China’s environmental protection industry, the
Group will adhere to its visions, gather collective wisdom, and leverage advanced operating and management
skills and strategic plans to develop its business and make new achievements. The Group will pursue
comprehensive development of its business, and at the same time fulfill its commitment to environmental
sustainability and responsibility to the community in order to further contribute to social development, economic
growth and the well-being of society.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 @5 :m o AT

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had assets totalling HK$31,199,794,000 and net assets amounting to
HK$17,842,970,000. Net asset value per share attributable to equity shareholders of the Company amounted
to HK$3.627 per share, an increase of 22% compared with HK$2.983 per share at the end of 2013. As at 31
December 2014, gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of the Group was 43%, 2 percentage points
higher than the 41% as at the end of 2013.

Financial Resources

The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and financial management to ensure proper risk control and
low cost of funds. It finances its operations primarily with internally generated cash flow and loan facilities
from banks and the holding company. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash and bank balances of
HK$5,150,149,000, representing a decrease of HK$664,457,000 as compared to HK$5,814,606,000 at the
end of 2013. Currently, most of the Group’s cash, representing 99%, is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi.

Borrowings

The Group is striving to increase its banking facilities to reserve sufficient funds for the development of its
environmental protection business. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
HK$9,136,511,000, representing an increase of HK$2,215,390,000 as compared to HK$6,921,121,000 at
the end of 2013. The borrowings comprised secured interest-bearing borrowings of HK$5,961,222,000 and
unsecured interest-bearing borrowings of HK$3,175,289,000. The borrowings are mainly denominated in
Renminbi, representing about 57%, with the remainder denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
Most of the borrowings are at floating rates. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had banking facilities of
HK$13,715,016,000, of which HK$4,859,601,000 have not been utilized. The banking facilities are for one to ten
year terms.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi. The Group mainly
settles business expenses in Mainland China with Hong Kong dollar remittances and income in Renminbi. It does
not need to use any financial instruments to hedge against bank borrowings in Renminbi, which are used mainly
to meet the capital requirements of its business in China. The Group closely manages foreign currency risk by
monitoring the proportion of its non-Renminbi borrowings.

Pledge of Assets

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured by certain revenue and receivables in connection with the
Group’s service concession arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and equity interests of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate net book value of assets and
equity interests in subsidiaries pledged amounted to approximately HK$13,801,583,000.

Commitments
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had purchased commitments of HK$1,844,637,000 outstanding in
connection with construction contracts.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had issued financial guarantees to 5 wholly-owned subsidiaries. The
directors do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the Company under the guarantees. The
maximum liability of the Company as at 31 December 2014 under the guarantees issued is the facilities drawn
down by the subsidiaries of HK$1,375,024,000.
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Internal Management

Strengthening management and risk control have always been important duties during its business development
of a corporation. The Group adheres diligently to a management principle of People-oriented, Pragmatism,
Creativity and Systematic Management and is committed to building a comprehensive risk management
culture. With the efforts of the Risk Management Advisory Committee, the Engineering Technical Management
Committee and the Budget Approval Management Committee, the Group has formulated strict regulations on
investment in, and the construction and operation of environmental protection projects.

During the year under review, the Group held Management Committee meetings on a monthly basis to review
all the projects under construction and operation. The Group also strictly enforced the compliance of various
systems to improve internal management. In addition, in order to refine the Group’s rules and regulations,
it issued 3 corporate standards for waste-to-energy projects, including technology standards, management
standards and work standards, with a view to strengthening operations through systematic management. By
following the relevant standards, newly commenced projects would be able to enhance management standards
in the fastest possible way. Given the expansion of new businesses this year (wind power, hazardous waste
incineration, biomass straw integrated utilisation), the Group is currently forming a set of relevant operation
procedures and business management measures in order to cope with the forthcoming commissioning of
completed projects.

With its continuous business development, the Group has a number of investments in environmental protection
projects in a single region to achieve greater synergies. The Group started a pilot scheme in Changzhou, where it
carried out integrated management on the existing personnel and properties of the equipment company, energy
company and hazardous waste treatment company. Back-office supporting units such as administration, human
resources and finance will be merged in order to centralize coordination work and enhance overall management
efficiency. In addition, to further increase the efficiency of preparation work, the Group formed assessment
methods for projects under preparation. The preparation period for new projects will be determined according to
their actual situation, so as to facilitate assessment and provide a basis for awards or penalties.
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Committed to Maintaining Safe and Stable Operations in compliance with Discharge Standards, and with
the goal of ensuring no major safety and environmental accidents, the Group embarked on several projects
to save expenses, increase income sources and efficiency, reduce energy consumption, and lower costs.
The comprehensive auxiliary power consumption rate of waste-to-energy, biomass power generation and
photovoltaic energy projects as well as the unit operating cost of waste water treatment projects decreased as
compared with 2013, contributing to an improvement in efficiency.

Human Resources

The Group highly values its human resources and puts great emphasis on staff training. It believes that realizing
the full potential of its employees is crucial to its long-term growth. The Group continued to improve its human
resources through internal training as well as local, overseas and on-campus recruitment. During the year under
review, the Group held training sessions on safety and financial management to enhance the overall quality of its
staff. To facilitate the integration of newly recruited staff, the Group held the 11th and 12th round of execution
training for more than 450 participants. It also arranged for managers and senior technical staff to participate in
a CEO Course (the 4th Session) and a Master in Engineering Course (the 3rd Session) at Tsinghua University.
To ensure employees’ development was in line with the Group’s sustainable development, the Group completed
a competitive selection of middle management and support managerial personnel for the Mainland China
headquarters, motivating staff and helping them to achieve greater success in their careers.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 3,000 employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Employees of the Group are remunerated according to their qualifications, experience, job nature, performance
and with reference to market conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance bonus, the Group also provides
other benefits such as medical insurance and a provident fund scheme to employees in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the confidence of the Shareholders. They are
crucial for the development of the Group’s business and protection of the Shareholders’ interests. The Group
upholds the management principle of People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic Management, and
through a set of rules and regulations, has continuously strengthened internal controls and risk management.
Furthermore, by full and timely public disclosure of information, the Group has maintained transparency and
accountability which also enhanced its corporate values. The Board meets regularly and has set up Board
committees, namely Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Disclosure Committee and Management Committee. For risk management, the Group has set up a Risk
Management Advisory Committee to monitor and assess risks regularly, boost related management standards
and evaluate investment projects. Regarding technological risk management, the Group has in place an
Engineering and Technology Management Committee which is responsible for assessing the technologies used
in different investment projects. For financial control, the Group insists on stringent budget management, and
has set up a Budget Approval Management Committee that focuses on monitoring construction budgets. In
addition, the Group has also set up an Internal Audit Department to perform internal audits to bolster the Group’s
management standard.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) has been duly adopted by the
Board as the code on corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Company has complied with the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2014, except that the Chairman
of the Board was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company on 28 April 2014 due to other
business engagements. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code which
requires the Chairman of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Tang Shuangning (Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and 5 other
executive directors, namely Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond
and Mr. Cai Shuguang. Its main duties include performing the duties assigned by the Board as well as exercising
the authority and rights authorized by the Board. The general mandate in relation to the Executive Committee in
written form has been established.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4 independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Mar Selwyn
(Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao, is primarily responsible for
reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as discussing and reviewing
internal control and financial reporting matters of the Group etc. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management and KPMG, the Company’s
auditors, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s internal
control and financial reporting matters, including review of the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2013 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2014.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao (Chairman), an independent non-executive
director, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer, and 3 other independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey. Its primary responsibilities
include making recommendations to the Board on appointment of directors regarding the qualifications and
competencies of the candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The terms of
reference for the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

BITESEZES

HITEFZECMEFCIRBEERE(BEEER) AAIANATESERBELE  ROFEE  TRESLE
BMBAAEREEXNELEN  HXIZBERREBTEFTSRENRBERTEEMBETHENEESD - ATEER
BeREEmM —RIERE -

BEREE"
ERZEeRRB2BNBYHNTES  EESARTLEEEER)  BCHBALE  FHELXLEREERREMR
Ko EETZRECRFHNAKEMRAN G RULEN  Iwhkis ASEREIMBERESE - AHREXZES
B S0 B O B R A A R AU 1A o

REBEFER  EREZECCBERERARAGBMETHSFMEEMBHNAKREMRAZ SRR RED - X
WEZARENAREZNYBREEEE(BREHNARRBE T =F+ A=+ HLZFEXENEE_"F
—OFERNRA=ZTRIERNBEAZFHEE)ETHR -

REEES
REZEEERMBUNFNTESTREBLLE(EELER)  TRASRNFRE  URAI=(IBIIFRTESE
CHBLtE  BSRELELRFHEESLEANX HFZRBEERAEFENEFTNRMRLER  FRIREANERS M
N UNERIBRAHBALMAZAE - BHARAZESNBELED SN ARRMNBIEA



Annual Report 2014
“E-MEFR a7

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), an independent
non-executive director, Mr. Liu Jun, the Vice-chairman of the Board, and 3 other independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Zhai Haitao. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, which are disclosed on the website of the Company, set out the duties of the
Remuneration Committee, including determining, with delegated responsibilities, the remuneration packages of
the individual executive directors and senior management.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee currently comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Wang Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief
Legal Officer and the Company Secretary. The Board has delegated the day-to-day execution of its continuous
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Committee to ensure the compliance of the Company with its disclosure
obligations. The terms of reference for the Disclosure Committee have been established in writing.

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wang
Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Cai Shuguang,
Mr. Hu Yanguo, Mr. Chen Tao, Mr. Qian Xiaodong and Mr. An Xuesong, 5 Deputy General Managers, as well
as the person-in-charge of the Legal Compliance Department. The Management Committee is responsible for
the management of daily business operations, formulating and implementing annual work tasks and medium-
term development plans for the Group, etc. The Management Committee is the decision-making body for day-
to-day business activities and makes collective decisions on major matters relating to the Group’s daily business
operations, management and personnel matters, etc. The general mandate in relation to the Management
Committee has been established in writing.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions
by directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiries to the directors of the Company, all directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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Loan Facilities with Covenants Relating to Specific Performance of the Controlling Shareholder
On 11 January 2012, China Everbright Environmental Energy Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was granted a 5-year term loan facility of USD100 million from Asian Development Bank (“ADB”).
Under the said facility, it will be an event of default if China Everbright Holdings Company Limited ceases to be
the single largest shareholder of the Company holding at least 35% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Upon the occurrence of the said event, (i) the said facility, and (i) a term loan facility of USD100 million granted
by ADB on 3 September 2009 for a term of up to 3 September 2019 (together with the said facility, the “ADB
Facilities”)), and (iii) all accrued interest and any other amounts accrued under the ADB Facilities may become
immediately due and payable and/or payable on demand.

As at 31 December 2014, the circumstances giving rise to the obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules
continued to exist.

Final Dividend

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per share (2013: HK5.0 cents per share) to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 5 June 2015. Subject
to approval by the Shareholders of the final dividend at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
dividend warrants will be dispatched to the Shareholders on or around Friday, 26 June 2015.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 21 May 2015 to Wednesday, 27 May 2015, both days
inclusive, on which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attendance of the annual general
meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 May 2015.

The register of members will also be closed from Wednesday, 3 June 2015 to Friday, 5 June 2015, both days
inclusive, on which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 June 2015.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the listed securities of the Company by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.
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Love the Earth Love the Planet we live in
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We believe a BETTER WORLD
for generations to come
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The Group commenced its environmental protection business
in 2003, and has been taking advantage of the opportunities
arising from the PRC’s comprehensive implementation of
scientific development and emphasis on energy conservation
and emissions reduction, environmental protection as well
as building a community with ecological balance, from which
the Group will take the responsibility to create a beautiful
environment and benefit the general public, while at the same
time commit to the eco-mission and pay back the society.
Under the strong support from China Everbright Group,
the Group, after a decade of Exploration, Deployment and
Development and with its quality professional management
team working with the philosophy of Integrity, Efficiency,
Pragmatism and Innovation, created a series of outstanding
environmental protection projects which are of first class
quality, advanced technology, high standard and outstanding
efficiency, therefore setting itself as a renowned brand that is
highly regarded by the peers.

While environmental protection is the key for creating a
balanced ecosystem, it is also crucial for the sustainable
development of the state. The Group will continue to actively
look for new development opportunities, enhance its effort
in research and development of environmental protection
technology, encourage innovation and make more significant
advancements with its environmental protection business,
so as to serve for the environmental protection of people
and the health of community, to which it is fulfilling the social
responsibility of an environmental protection guard.

Building a harmonious relationship with stakeholders
contributes to a long term company success. We welcome
and take seriously the views of our valuable stakeholders
by initiating genuine stakeholder engagement exercise on a
regular basis with the aim to strengthen the mutual trust and
respect. Stakeholder engagement is an ongoing process
between the Company and its stakeholders that extends
throughout the life of the project and encompasses a range
of activities and approaches. The Company has developed a
stakeholder participation plan for all our project companies to
follow suit. We carry out stakeholder engagement exercises
in a culturally appropriate manner to provide opportunities
for stakeholders to express their views and concerns during
project concept stage, detailed assessment stage, project
construction stage and project operation stage, and allow us
to consider and respond to them.

This is a brief sustainability section in the annual report.
The full version of sustainability report, in both English and
Chinese versions, will be available for public download at
http://www.ebchinaintl.com by May 2015.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Environmental excellence is an integral part of our business.
We are committed to putting our greatest effort to improve
our environmental performance by investigating and applying
advanced technology, and using resources efficiently. The air
emission performance of our waste-to-energy and biomass
power generation plants in the past three years is shown as
below:

EMISSIONS FROM WASTE-TO-ENERGY AND
BIOMASS POWER GENERATION PLANTS

Tonnes
7
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2012 2013

As an environmental protection enterprise, we strive to
adopt stringent emission standard on all our projects.
All our waste-to-energy projects meet the national
standards for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid
Waste Incineration (GB18485-2001), Integrated Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants (GB16297- 1996), Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants
(GB13223-2003 & GB13223-2011), applicable ADB’s
guidelines, and stringent European Union’s emission
performance standards (Directive 2000/76/EC and
relevant Annexes/Amendments).
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Our stakeholders can easily access our air emission data.
Government officials can monitor the data as our on-site
gas emissions monitoring systems have been connected to
the network of the government’s environmental protection
departments. General public can also get access to the instant
air emissions data from the LED display screens installed at the
entrance of the plants.

All waste water generated during the operation is treated
by on-site waste water treatment facilities complying with
the stringent national waste water discharge standards
— Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard (GB 8978-
1996), as well as the requirements described in the approved
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report. We continue to
put our best effort in conserving and recycling water resources.
In 2014, we used 36,459,709 m? of treated waste water for our
operations, equivalent to 82% of our total water consumption.

While we keep maximizing our operation efficiency, we
also look for the best way to minimise the amount of waste
generated for disposal. Majority of bottom ash generated from
waste-to-energy projects was reprocessed for brick making.
Meanwhile, all fly ash and bottom ash generated from the
biomass power generation projects were sold to third-party
recyclers. For all leachate generated from our waste-to-energy
projects, they were treated on-site by our self-developed
leachate system and reused accordingly to achieve Zero
Leachate Discharge.

Proper treatment of sludge arising from our waste water
treatment plants is another key issue. We treat our sludge
in accordance with applicable law and regulations. In 2014,
over 70% of the total sludge generated was recycled. For
sludge which eventually needs to be disposed of at the landfill,
we will reduce its water content and volume by dewatering
process onsite beforehand to alleviate landfill burden and lower
associated environmental impacts.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Safety is the prerequisite for us to effectively run our business.
Protecting the health and safety of our employees are always
our first priority. All our project companies have developed
occupational health and safety management systems with
internationally recognized OHSAS 18001 (GB/T28001-2001)
certification. We have also developed a risk management
system which identifies and manages all potential risk
associated with our operations.

All project companies have formed a safety management team,
which include general manager and other management officers
to oversee and manage all health and safety issues in various
project stages. The team is also responsible for conducting
safety inspections on a regular basis to identify potential
risks associated with the operations, and develop prevention
and mitigation measures to address those identified risks.
Moreover, our contractors are required to comply with our
safety policy, which is included as part of the contractual terms
in the agreement.

We are committed to protecting the safety and health of
our employees by strictly following relevant regulations
and standards through providing adequate protective
equipment for our frontline staff, adopting safety measures,
and organising comprehensive health check every year, etc.
To raise the safety awareness of our staff, all our project
companies have scheduled regular safety trainings, emergency
drills and exercises in accordance with our emergency plans
and applicable national laws.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

In 2014, our project companies kept the enthusiasm in
participating in various events promoting environmental
science and technology, and raise public awareness
on environmental protection, such as National Science
Popularization Day, World Water Day and World Environment
Day. In August 2014, the award presentation ceremony
for “2014 Everbright National Environmental Protection
Science Popularization Creativity Context” was held during
the annual meeting of the Chinese Society for Environmental
Sciences. The competition attracted 7,057 pieces of works
from individuals, studios and groups who are passionate
about environmental issues and scientific inventions, covering
animations, cartoons, mini films and photography, some of
which are of international standards.
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We utilize our existing resources to promote environmental
protection by opening our project companies regularly for
students, investors, government officials, counterparts and
the general public. We also believe this kind of activities can
enhance transparency and improve the interaction with our
stakeholders. The visits to our project sites allow the visitors
to have a hands-on experience in visualizing sustainability
concept in real life examples of green energy generation,
emissions reduction and waste water treatment, and cultivate
the interest of young generations in pursuing green career.
In 2014, there were 51,737 visitors to our environmental
protection projects.

PHILANTHROPY

In August 2013, we set up Everbright International
Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation Company
Limited in Hong Kong to manage and coordinate all
charitable projects funded by the Everbright International
Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation, which is
a Hong Kong registered charity focusing on environmental
protection, environmental education, energy saving, ecological
preservation, and community caring.

At 8:30pm, 29 March 2014, the countdown activity of Earth
Hour 2014 was successfully held at the Central and Western
District Promenade in Hong Kong. Everbright International
Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation was the
lead sponsor for the event in Hong Kong, which is the first
environmental protection charitable campaign that the
Foundation has sponsored since its establishment. Organised
by the World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF), Earth Hour is the
world’s largest campaign for the planet. It is not only about
putting out the light for an hour, but a common commitment to
environmental protection made by the residents, organizations,
businesses and governments worldwide. The theme of Earth
Hour 2014 Hong Kong is ‘Don’t give up, Give something
up’, which called on people to stop overconsumption and
conserve resources, so as to protect our Earth by adopting
a more sustainable lifestyle. The educating value of Earth
Hour fits perfectly with the vision of Everbright International
Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation, and we hope
to work together with WWF to put our long term pursuit of
environmental protection into practice.

Meanwhile, the Everbright Environmental Protection Charitable
Foundation established in China continues to help sanitation
workers and families in Suzhou who are in need of financial
and emotional support. In 2014, there were 262 people
being benefited from the foundation, accounting for over
RMB1,000,000 of consolation and relief fund.
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The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the confidence of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”). They are crucial for the development of the Group’s business and protection
of the Shareholders’ interests. The Group upholds the management principle of People-oriented, Pragmatism,
Creativity and Systematic Management, and through a set of rules and regulations, has continuously
strengthened internal controls and risk management. Furthermore, by full and timely public disclosure of
information, the Group has maintained transparency and accountability which also enhanced its corporate
values. The Board meets regularly and has set up Board committees, namely Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee, Disclosure Committee and Management
Committee. For risk management, the Group has set up a Risk Management Advisory Committee to monitor
and assess risks regularly, boost related management standards and evaluate investment projects. Regarding
technological risk management, the Group has in place an Engineering and Technology Management Committee
which is responsible for assessing the technologies used in different investment projects. For financial control,
the Group insists on stringent budget management, and has set up a Budget Approval Management Committee
that focuses on monitoring construction budgets. In addition, the Group has also set up an Internal Audit
Department to perform internal audits to bolster the Group’s management standard.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) has been duly adopted by the
Board as the code on corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Company has complied with the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2014, except that the Chairman
of the Board was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 April 2014 (the “2014
AGM”) due to other business engagements. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code which requires the Chairman of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE IN RELATION TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS &=
Composition and function AKX kKBS
The Board currently comprises 6 executive directors and 4 independent non-executive directors.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the financial year and up to the date of the report are set

out on page 106 of the annual report and currently are follows:

EEeRMAUNTESE OB IFNITESMAMN -

RAMBRFEARBEAREZANEETEXEB((EE)CHINFRAFI06E - MAKNEFTEREWT ¢

Name of Directors Title EEMA Bz

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Tang Shuangning Chairman BEEEE FE

Mr. Liu Jun Vice-chairman 2 mEA BlER

Mr. Chen Xiaoping Chief Executive Officer PR/ THER

Mr. Wang Tianyi General Manager FRELEAE FERCSES

Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond Chief Financial Officer =R A BT 4GS

Mr. Cai Shuguang Deputy General Manager EREYL S Bl a4 18

Independent Non-executive Directors BIHNTEF

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip Independent Non-executive — SB{ZEE5L A4 BYIFHITESR
Director

Mr. Mar Selwyn Independent Non-executive BB %4 BUEMITES
Director

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent Non-executive — ZE £ %4 BYIEMTES
Director

Mr. Zhai Haitao Independent Non-executive — Z/&/E5%4 BYIEHITES

Director
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) €& = (4#)

Composition and function (continued) R RB=E (&)

Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs. The Directors have disclosed to the
Company annually the number and the nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments. The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient balances that protect the interests of
the Shareholders and the Group.

Non-executive Directors provide the Group with diversified experience and professionalism. Their advices
and views as well as participation in the Board and committee meetings bring independent view, advice and
judgment on issues relating to the strategy and development, business operation and performance, risk control,
conflict of interest etc, to ensure the Shareholders’ interests are taken into consideration.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of
Directors as from time to time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any contractual or other
terms on which any Director may be appointed or engaged, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals, with a view
to maintain an effective segregation of duties between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Under the lead of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for
approving and supervising the overall strategy and policies of the Group, approving annual budget and business
plans, assessing the Group’s performance and supervising the work of the management. All Directors have
access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate information in a timely manner.
The Directors may, if necessary, seek legal or other independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company.
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Composition and function (continued) R R E (&)

In respect of regular Board meetings and audit committee meetings, the agenda is sent out to the Directors at
least fourteen days before the meeting and the accompanying papers are sent at least three days before the
meeting for information.

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has established the following committees with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the respective committee’s authority and duties:

1. Executive Committee
The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Tang Shuangning (Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and 5
other executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Wong Kam Chung,
Raymond and Mr. Cai Shuguang. Its main duties include performing the duties assigned by the Board as
well as exercising the authority and rights authorized by the Board. The general mandate in relation to the
Executive Committee in written form has been established.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee did not convene any meetings.

2. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mar
Selwyn (Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao, is primarily
responsible for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
discussing and reviewing the internal control and financial reporting matters of the Group etc. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management and KPMG, the
Company’s auditors, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
Group’s internal control and financial reporting matters, including review of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2014.
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Composition and function (continued) R BRBE (&)

3.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao (Chairman), an independent non-executive
Director, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer, and 3 other independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey. Its primary responsibilities
include making recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors regarding the qualification and
competency of the candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, and discussed and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming 2015 annual general meeting of the Company etc.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), an independent
non-executive Director, Mr. Liu Jun, the Vice-chairman of the Board, and 3 other independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Zhai Haitao. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, which are disclosed on the website of the Company, set out the duties of the
Remuneration Committee, including determining, with delegated responsibilities, the remuneration packages
of the individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed
performance of executive Directors and approved the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management.

The remuneration of all the Directors is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.
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Composition and function (continued) R R B= (4Z)

5.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee currently comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, the
Chief Legal Officer and the Company Secretary. The Board has delegated the day-to-day execution of its
continuous disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Committee to ensure the compliance of the Company
with its disclosure obligations. The terms of reference of the Disclosure Committee has been established in
writing.

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Wang Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Cai
Shuguang, Mr. Hu Yanguo, Mr. Chen Tao, Mr. Qian Xiaodong and Mr. An Xuesong, 5 Deputy General
Managers as well as the person-in-charge of the Legal Compliance Department. The Management
Committee is responsible for the management of daily business operations, formulating and implementing
annual work tasks and medium-term development plans for the Group, etc. The Management Committee is
the decision-making body for day-to-day business activities and makes collective decisions on major matters
relating to the Group’s daily business operations, management and personnel matters, etc. The general
mandate in relation to the Management Committee has been established in writing.

=HE

FRZEEHNSRITHRAHER N FaAE(BEER)  BEIBTRELE  WHEAEEHRILE  EZHBERAT
WEHEK EFSCREREZEeAERERREANARRITIIFUBRARARETHRERMT KELZES
HEEHHBESE -

ERZESNKERRITRARRNTFEE(BELTR)  AKLEITRELLE  MBLAETHRBLLE  AUAIRL
BEENELE HEELL  RBEL BEREENZSNAEL  UWERERTABEA -EEZESREH
FEBKLEEE  AEVNELERAKEFETEERRTHERRKESE  RAKEREERTHREDL 8
REBHEE B ASFTEAFHATERBRE EHEZEEREEEN RIERE -

Role of the Board #E€HA®

The Board directs and approves the overall strategies of the Group. It is the ultimate decision making body of the
Company except for matters requiring the Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has delegated day-to-day business of the Group to the management. All committees established
under the Board have their specific terms of reference clearly defining their powers and responsibilities.

EXefE REREEMEREE - BRERBAQRANERMA - EHRANNREMBERENMERARERRI AN =
HIN EEERARDAINRLIREEE

EEeREEEEEEAKENARRY EFC TRNZEFENENRERE - ARAEMMHNENMELL -
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) €& = (4#)
Corporate governance functions ¥ 8BS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as set out below:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

EXEQRERET MCEERNBE

1. FIERBAARRARNEEERBRRER - WIREES

2. BRAREREERaRERBAENBIRBETERR

3. BRI MERARREETERMNEERETENBRENER

4. HTE  RAREREERZFFNRTEILARFMIE) : &

5. MEARFESTF EHAAMEETOEERERTANERRE(REE RS ) NHBE -

Board Diversity Policy #E &R 8% t{b BE

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in August 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on
diversity of the Board of the Company.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse Board in enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and
corporate governance. A diverse Board includes and makes good use of differences in the skills, industry
knowledge and experience, education, background and other qualities of the Directors and does not
discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or religious belief. These differences are taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately.
ARBNZZB-=FN\AFIUEFEXNELT/IBE BNERARAERTERNENZ UL LM -

EEeAR - HAZ TN EEFS N R EFERNERCEEANEZE - Z LtV ESERRBEREFNH TR

Be ITEAMBNER  HE  BSENEMEE  MASEEERNER - Fik - UHIRRHOEE - ERAEREEFS
HEREZRZLFHRE  URAENSEENTE -
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EE € (#)

Board Diversity Policy (continued) EES K 8% (b LK (4#Z)

The Nomination Committee of the Company has responsibility for identifying and nominating for approval by
the Board, candidates for appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing the appropriate mix of
experience, expertise, skills and diversity required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the required
skills are represented on the Board and overseeing the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Board in relation to Board
diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part, dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and other qualities. The final decision will be based on
merit and contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any measurable objectives to implement the Board diversity
policy. However, it will consider and review the Board diversity policy and setting of any measurable objects from
time to time.

ARARRELEZECREVENERESREATESZSME  BEEEEMFNEEHATNAESREANLR -
BEEMNE  REMEZCAFTNEZTEER  ULEBEFTSMMIT -

REAZECRARFERANEFTEREERESTENENZLILERH »
EENIEnBREEREANERLEMETBRRELEFL  ROEEXSFARHNEZTERNESTTENTRE

BEANMAEEZSR  SRBREAFMFTONG LB R FESRLEMIRERER - REHAESSEORR
REANEHNKE/EFTSIELNER -

EXEERREFERENZ L BRMMNZTL  HRARLERE - HEENEE -

Bl REZEERNARNERESEREZ TEBERMTEEMAAIFERR - A - BREBZEEHETHEEMRF
EXZEMEZTUEBRRUNGTEEMAGFERR
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) €& = (4#)

Training for Directors E=1Z 3

Each newly appointed Director receives an induction package covering the statutory and regulatory obligation
of a director of a listed company. The Company continuously updates Directors the latest developments and
changes to the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. During the year under review, a director’s induction training had
been given to Mr. Liu Jun who was appointed as the executive Director and Vice-chairman on 12 August 2014.
Moreover, the Company provided Directors with monthly updates on the performance, position and prospects of
the Company. The Company also provides Directors with monthly analysis report on the Company’s stock price
performance and monthly journal of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training record in order to assist the Directors to record the
training that they have undertaken.

A seminar was organised for Directors in December 2014 in relation to the risk management and internal control.
Individual Director had also attended seminars and/or conferences or forums relevant to his profession and
duties as Directors.

Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received during the year under review:

BEFZENEFTRES ARSI ARBRLETRARNEFEXRIMREERELZ2EETNEN - ARAKERNESFR
HEBLTRAMEMEREERE 2RI EREN - WIRHIBINEREEHESOHMBMNKE - REEFER -
ARRRHEBF LEEI TR _ZE—OFN A+ REZERATEERA T ENRIREL - I - ARFAEFR
HERARRRR - MRAEAMENEBAEHEN - ARBATAEFEARREEARRRERENDOITRE - UEE
AAT -

ARPEBMEE2NHEEEER  UERTYTHEENHRMNKEE - RAREHBEIIRE - U EFLHME
e -

ARAR-ZE-HF+ _ARESEMEHAEAREENANEZNEXRE - BAHESE2 N T FRESENERR
BEEIIRER A eBRHE -

REEFERN  BEFMEINBIIBENT ¢

Type of trainings

Name of Directors EEUE b=l ki
Mr. Tang Shuangning e C
Mr. Liu Jun 2| EhA A,B,C,D
Mr. Chen Xiaoping BR/NF S A,B,C
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE A,B,C
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =R E AB,C
Mr. Cai Shuguang BB A A,B,C
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BCEERE A,C
Mr. Mar Selwyn BRELE A,C,D
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE AL AC

Mr. Zhai Haitao BEELE AC
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) €& = (4#)
Training for Directors (continued) EE1Z 3 (4Z)
A: attending seminars/conferences/forums

B: giving talks at seminars/conferences

C: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, environmental protection business or
director’s duties and responsibilities etc

D: attending site visit arranged by the Company

A HEEHRE B8R ®

B: MEH#E &€& LHE

C: MEBHLE BRREBIEFREZZHE  TIWREHEH

D: ZHEARALHHRISER

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management E£ ;& 5 & &% 8 & ¥

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set
out below:

BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFESREREZ2HMAERIMT :

Remuneration bands (HK$) Number of persons A £t AR (BEIT)

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1 1,500,0017c%2,000,0007T
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 3 2,000,0017c22,500,0007T
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 1 2,500,0017c23,000,0007T

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements,
respectively.

BRELTRAMBICARETMHEARTRERSHEEREZE—FTFHE - DRERMBRERMEERI -
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
RATE OF DIRECTORS £ g hZE 2@ 2R R LZSEFHNLFE A

The following shows the number of regular Board meetings and committee meetings held during the year under
review as well as the attendance rate of the Directors.

Attendance rate HE R

Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Disclosure  Management
Name of Directors Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
EEMS Ex® Ek%ZE8g REZE® FWEBEe REZEg® EHEZE9
Mr. Tang Shuangning 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
FEELLE TiEA TEH NiE s NiE s NiE
Mr. Liu Jun Mee 2/6 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A N/A
2 BEkaH T TEH NiE A NiE
Mr. Chen Xiaoping 6/6 N/A 2/2 N/A 11 14/14
BRANE A TiEA RiEM
Mr. Wang Tianyi 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 11 13/14
IFRELE T A NiEA
Mr. Wong Kam Chung,
Raymond 5/6 N/A N/A N/A 11 14/14
=KL T T TER
Mr. Cai Shuguang 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 13/14
BEXEE TiE A T T TiEmA
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip 5/6 3/3 2/2 1/1 N/A N/A
BIEBEE TEH TEA
Mr. Mar Selwyn 5/6 3/3 2/2 1/1 N/A N/A
BAERRE NiE NiE
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 6/6 3/3 2/2 1/1 N/A N/A
TEERE TEH TNEH
Mr. Zhai Haitao 6/6 3/3 2/2 1/1 N/A N/A
EEYS NiE R NiE

Note: Mr. Liu Jun was appointed as the executive Director and Vice-chairman and a member of the Executive Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 12 August 2014.

g RIE-EIFNAA+TZH BELRZERNTEERELIE  URARFANTZEGNHFNEESES -
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THE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES BETWEEN THE CHAIRMAN AND

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER /@ MITHBEH v BEH T

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate. The Chairman’s responsibility is
to manage the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

The main duties of the Chairman include providing leadership for and overseeing the functioning of the Board;
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company; ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings and giving each Director an opportunity to express his view at Board meetings;
ensuring that Directors receive adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner;
ensuring that the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities; ensuring that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner; drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board
meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in
the agenda; taking responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established; encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company; ensuring that appropriate steps are
taken to provide effective communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders are communicated
to the Board as a whole; and facilitating the effective contribution of Directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Chief Executive Officer include taking responsibility for the Group’s operation and management;
implementing decisions and plans approved by the Board; making day-to-day operational and managerial
decisions; and coordinating overall business operations.

TRETRESNBUEEE, - TFEEEFTENREETRANEEARREBNBERABMOER

IFRNIEREERBAEEZSOLNEREZSYR  HIEARABBRMEREK  BRESSLMAESTHEENE
ERMNEERGERESAEESFELREARANKE  BRREFELFUIZTINENR  MEBERTLATHEA
F HEREFSAMEE ARTREEEMT  BALKKMMEEENEESRET IR ETAMASRESES
FNEE EEEBAT  EBRTEANREMEFRENABZENETAEE  FEFERARANERTNEEE
AERLEN  ZEMAEFENRAETEREER  XUSFR BREFETENEARARENR © BEAKIE
ESRRBERRASBE  URERBRERIEZIREE=RS  MEELEEFTUESTSHFLANER - LEEARHR
TEFEFNTET ZMHFTERENRE -

ARARNBEREEEARENEENEE  RITEESNRRRE  (FRAEEENARRE  RIpHLERE
BHEE -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS &y FFH1TE =

The current 4 independent non-executive Directors hold office for a term until 31 December 2015. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent (except that for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under
Rule 3.13(7), he had been a non-executive Director prior to his re-designation as an independent non-executive
Directors) and the Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate communications containing names of
the Directors. An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive Directors and the roles
and functions of the Directors is maintained on the website of the Company.

AR BFRTEEFNEREE T —AF+ A=+ —HIL - FFEIRETARANERMUBEEARERER
B EEZRE o

RIFETRBEIABGME 2 BULIERES EERRERBUIINTEFTIARBL AL (FRRE LTRRIFEI.13(7)
o SECBAEERBERBIFATESIAFNTESSI)  MELBIFATEFTERELTRAUNKEAARR
ARRMABEBIYENFERARASE

ARABEMBHBEFTELNARBEAT  EABKBBEUIFNTESESND - ARRAZENEZTRECSHNARAN
WYL - EABIERTERSOHRIAEEAE LB -

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS EZ#1THERX S
RAE<T R

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries to the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2014,

AEERALTRANMETAABE(ETRERTAESETIESFRNRETRN(RETIVERETETARARRR
SEENIES - RAMAEFFELREERR  ARRMAEFORRBENBE T NF+ _A=+T—"BLLFERN
—HETRETRIMHNBRE -

COMPANY SECRETARY R alf#ZE

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and reports to the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer. She is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For the year under
review, the Company Secretary has obtained the practitioner’s endorsement certificate for 2014/15 issued by
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and confirmed she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

REAMERALFTZRES  YRNEFTSIFENTRARER REENELFERNESTSREES - ROEAFE -
ARAMECHEHEEFINE RS HHM2014/15FENRERETE MEREEEIIIR+ R/ ENABEE

=l
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS #8485 Z= 2 3014

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
REIEFE  NATEEERT RS o

EXTERNAL AUDITORS 4MNEZE4% & Em

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on the Company’s financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Company, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), and for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of the independent auditor’s report.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, KPMG, the Company’s external auditors, also carried out
interim review of the Group’s results and provided other services in compliance with the requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, KPMG, the external auditors received the following remuneration from
the Group in connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to the Group:

RHEMBERRERSEZTENER  UMBHRRFLBYER  YRRBFBZIFE B+ _EX8EHNT A
ARG DM R11EB0IRMRE - HARBMES—ERBELRSE - FRibzi  ZWMETABEEMRE - RHEH A
BB BENAT  BEMEMBACAEIREEE -

AEBENINERBE AR TR EAMELF  BEFREBERBEIN  TEAAKSENTHEE LA AREIZR LD
fi ) b B Sk CRAR) FHERPI R 2 MR HE A ARF -

BE_T-NF+_A=+—"HLEFER INEZBEEFTH S EHARIRHEZ R IFEZRSE T A5 B M UER
THBE

2014
—T—MOF
HK$’000
BT
Financial statements audit services and B MR EZRE &
interim review services BRI B E B AR 7,716
Other services H b AR 7%
— assurance services in connection with the requirement — IR B R ARETEE D
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance AR TEZERS 6
— due diligence, tax advisory and —BAE R ER
other services in connection with merger EBAE - TBERA R
and acquisition HE AR 5,596

13,318
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INTERNAL CONTROL R 3pRES 1z

The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s internal control system, which includes the establishment of a
defined management structure with specified limits of authority. The system is designed to help the achievement
of business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulation. The internal control system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective internal controls are as follows:

EE2RAEAKENAMERERS SRV EERBIERNERABBAREEREBRR - REEEND
AEEEEARLE - BARGFA EREHREARRAIENMEER AR E RSB ER - WHERETHBED R
MA BERARASE(BLFBH)REISGHBEERNRERAKELX -

REEBRNARER  EXGEYLT TIIEZERF

- Organisational Structure #H#221&
An appropriate organisational structure is in place with defined operating policies and procedures as well as
responsibility and lines of authority.

AEBECHIFIABEARERE  BREIFRENELBRMEN - BERER -

— Authority and Control £ & E5 4%
The executive Directors and senior management are delegated with respective levels of authorities to carry
out the corporate strategies and policies and the related matters formulated by the Board.

HITEEREREEABERNBERITESSHINDLERE  BREREEER -

- Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting 78 & 122 % & B 75 R &5 #¢ 41
The Group implements budget management, and financial budget is executed upon approval by the Board.
Relevant procedures have been established to assess, review and approve major capital and recurrent
expenditures, and regular review and comparison between operating results and the budget are made.

The Group has established appropriate internal control procedures to ensure the keeping of accurate and
complete accounting and management records on a timely basis. Examination and review are carried out
regularly to ensure that the financial statements are properly prepared in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

AEEETEEEE  MBBREREFSEURRIT - ARECTLABREFUFEG - e MMt EZNEANE
MBI - R B BE 2 ERERE -

AEEEREENAMEERF - BREE - ERIEERTHRETREEER - ERETR REEL - R
BHRERORENT A —RRBANEAER - KESFEE - LRERRERIER -
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued) NEFESYE (4)

- Internal Auditing A8 F#Z
The Group has its Internal Audit Department, which has regularly conducted internal audit to review whether
the internal control procedures are implemented appropriately.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. This review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget. Any
internal control weaknesses detected by the Internal Audit Department of the Company will be reported to
the Audit Committee members and the management of the Company. Accordingly, the management will
take remedial actions and the Internal Audit Department will subsequently follow up and review whether
the remedial actions are in place. The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters.

AEBREAMEED - AEMETAREZUARTAREZEFREUENT

—\\

EXeCRIAREANMEZRFRNARE - ZF RN EREMEAEENGE  FHZRMFER - BFEE 68
ERkERERINE  AEBARES nJr&Eﬁk[#EHﬂz ETENER  BIBEERKERELTRN  AREBIME
ENRIIRELEHEBEERTRRE - WERBRERNARRANIEZNGE  AEEAREANARANEREZES
ZENEEEER -Fit  EEEYSRIERNYEERLBABBTHERRENECAEBULERRSTE
B oo dbsh ARBHET BRBRLRS  BEEAREDHRMBER  ABEENEMTEATREEENTIEETR
RHEE -

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & £ 3t 81 7%
HREFEENET

The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial statements.
The Finance Management Department of the Company is taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer. With the
assistance of the Finance Management Department, the Directors ensure that the Group’s financial statements

have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and applicable accounting principles.

A statement by KPMG, the auditors of the Company, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 114 to 115.

EEHRANREAKEM BRI AEEREL -

ARAMMBEENMYBRERREE - AV BEERNHE T  EFEFRAKEMBRENRRNTABERER KL
Rz 'R -

ARRGRBMESHEAMEEMRAEET BHRERMEZ RHRETERINENF4EEFNE 2B IR HBENRE
A o
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS R% & &4 7

The Company recognizes the importance of good communications with the Shareholders and the investment
community and also recognizes the value of providing current and relevant information to Shareholders and the
investors. The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting out the principles of the
Company in relation to the Shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders and
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to current and relevant information about the Group.

The Company maintains on-going dialogue with Shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their
participation through annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered Shareholders are notified by post for the Shareholders’ meetings. Notice of meeting contains agenda,
proposed resolutions and postal voting form.

All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend annual and extraordinary general meetings, provided that their
shares have been recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance information to
Shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides a forum for Shareholders to exchange
views directly with the Board, which together help enhance and facilitate communication with Shareholders.
Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may complete and return to the Company’s Share
Registrar the proxy form enclosed with notice of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another
Shareholder or chairman of the meeting.

ARRHAAEBRREREERFRIFBBNEEZN SR ARRRREERHEMNLABEEANEE EES
ETBRRBABE  JHARRARBRREBMA R §EBRRRRRKRESE - eREHEK - HE EROARE R
FTAARAE R o

ARBBUBBRRBFAGHEMBRAGHARR - ERFBRL BB RFSEBRK

i3

o

BRBRRABESARBBERAGRESE  AGRASHEHRE  RENMAZRLBERERR -

EAECHROBRLERRBEFAE MERFHIAE @ ERFHNRMDUACELRRRAMA

FERTHRESBRERLLENVBEERANFRENREARANBRRBFASARREHEETENEEER
BERNKE SRR INENEEBRRAER -  REHFERRASGHRRAEZBHNASBENRRZERR

UREARBEMDBFRE  NWEEREZRREAS - BRRIAGEFERBENRE -
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CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING ON REQUISITION BY
SHAREHOLDERS ERE Zk A FRE & A

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the members of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general meetings may request the Directors to
call a general meeting. The request must state the general nature of business to be dealt with at the meeting and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request may consist of several documents in like form and may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form and must be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the request proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening a general meeting
is given, the members concerned or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a general meeting, provided that the general meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from such date.

The general meeting convened by such members shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

RIFARHEDIFEE661F - EARNBERAE LRENEERRERZIEEZ LSRN ARARR - AIBREFTAFKRR
A - AAERELEVABNE FREBENFENARLE  TARFRARE FEZHZIERNEG LDROVRER
B BREXRENRSZNHEADINOXM - WAEBBEARAXEFHEARARARRESY - BBBELHEEHERH
AT e

MEEEZEREFMBAMET —+ KA REEBRABRRRGBAERHAPR -+ \RALHFAR —RBEX
€ AIZEFRALEREBRA—FULBRRENGRA - ABTERRRAS - BN ARNBRRAE T EE
EaEERk B =@ A EMRERTT -

HEMRREFANBRRARES  ARAENBIEZARRRARENTAEH -

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSAL AT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Mg ERBEF K 12
a5

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, the members of the Company may request the Company
to give, to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request may be sent
to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and must identify the resolution of which notice is to
be given, be authenticated by the person or persons making it and be received by the Company not later than
6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the requests relates; or if later, the time at which notice is

given of that meeting.

RIBAFHEPIZEG151E - ARFRRABRAQAAARBBRERBFASBEENORRELAZRABS - MBARE
ERRBERAFASLEZEDRAIHRN G LPE - FRELENEBREATAREFHARARFRE - LAFHH
BPELBEMUUAESR  BEUAKAREERKOALIHRE  URARRLEATEREBBRFBFAGRTAHRN
HEERH(BR)BLBERBFASBENFHEZLEAWERE -
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSAL AT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued) P& 548
FRE LIEEEERE)

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received the requests from (a) members representing at least
2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who have a right to vote on the resolution to which the request
relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote on the resolution to which the request relate.

ARRHRBEETIALELNERER  BHRIRBE  QEEELBBRBRERENZBERBREEE D
2.5%MIR  H(L)EDVSOREERABABRREROIIR -

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR 122 R A TIRBEENERF
As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the procedures made
available under the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s website at www.ebchinaintl.com.

BRARBEMNATREEETNER  BLREARQABUiwww.ebchinaintl.comR P EE Al D IEF
2014 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING —Z— U RBAFE A=

At the 2014 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue,
including re-election of each retiring Director. All resolutions were duly passed by Shareholders by way of poll at
the meeting. The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the 2014 AGM due to other commitment. Certain
Directors and members of committees attended the meeting to answer questions of Shareholders. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. No other general meeting was
held during 2014. The attendance record of the Directors at the general meeting is set out below:

R-ZF-—NFEFRRBFAS  TEABEBUYUNFTHENREFLIRRER  HPEREESRIES - MBERERE
BRRZEFLARERARTNBE EFTFAEMAKHRELF T NERRAEFAE - BINEFTKEZES
MABHEEZMERERNER - ARBRELTRURENTARMMERRRER - R_F-UFFERLLARE
TTEMBRAE - EEHERRRG ZLENT

General meeting attended/held

Directors - HERERE, 2R RE
Executive Directors HITEEF

Mr. Tang Shuangning EEELAE 0/1
Mr. Liu Jun Nete 2 IEEAE N/AT i 3
Mr. Chen Xiaoping B /N A 1/1
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRESSE 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =IRER LA 1/1
Mr. Cai Shuguang EEEH A 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors HIHNTEF

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BLBLE 11
Mr. Mar Selwyn BRELE 1/1
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE AL 1/1
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEERE 0/

Note: Mr. Liu Jun was appointed as the executive Director and Vice-chairman on 12 August 2014.

g RIE-OFEAA+ZA ABELEZEANTESREILRE -
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS B & & H R KB R

The Company recognizes the importance of efficient and effective communications with the investor community.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted regularly to provide them with
up-to-date and comprehensive information about the Group’s development. Besides, the Company facilitates
the initiation and coverage of the Company published by research analysts of well-received investment banks
which are instrumental in providing investors with independent and professional evaluations of the Company.
Moreover, the Group participates in different international forums and overseas non-deal roadshows to elaborate
on the Group’s business development plans to global investors. Furthermore, the Company arranges site
visits for investors and media to our key projects in China. Last but not least, the Company has established
a function dedicated to investor relations and engaged an external public relations company to take care of
investor relations matters. The Company also maintains a website (http://www.ebchinaintl.com) which renders
Shareholders, investors and the general public direct access to the information of the Group on a timely basis.

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them to engage
actively with the Company, a shareholders communication policy of the Company has been established.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Company via the Company’s website
at www.ebchinaintl.com. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

RAREFERAREENSBALERNER - FAAFRISTHEAKEBREERMERTHRELEE  AES
REBEAEBERNTHANE - I AR RBAENRERITHORAESNAARRRBRESITRE - 1L
EFMRREREEBAARARANBE I REETMG - /N AEEHETENBEBERENGIINNIEZSKE AE
FEEEHMAAEENERLRERS - 240 RMNEZREMER  AREEFNEEETIAEBMCAFREANE T
EEHIEE - ARFACREEEREEBAENDE  WEBIFBABARFAAEREEFENER - KR A 2 &
(http://www.ebchinaintl.com)B ARG BRRE « WEERARATREBAERSE  MAKE 2 &HEZER A RHE
UHERR -

BTEEREANBOBRTTEEBROEN  YEOMBEELEARRE] - ARBRI T RRBARK - BRRAIEE
fa] 5 FE S8 3B AR A Bl A8 hwww . ebchinaintl.com A AN 2 B Xt P B M E TR DA o IR TR A AR R B H AR A
gLRE=SRLSEH -
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Zelnery (9

Daily Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment &AKRE operation ARERE FRES
BE BEER (AR ) m%E%H (1) (FRE)
Suzhou Waste-to-energy BOT for 28 years 489,443,000 July 2006 1,050 >100,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 284 —ELERFLHA
ERMNAREEIEE —H
Suzhou Waste-to-energy Same as Suzhou 450,000,000 June 2009 1,000 >100,000,000
Project Phase I Waste-to-energy —ZTNAFRA
BRI AR EIR R 1 Project Phase |
EERM R EEIEE
— 1A
Suzhou Waste-to-energy Same as Suzhou 750,000,000 January 2013 1,500 >158,000,000
Project Phase Il Waste-to-energy ZT—=%—H
ERMN AR EIR R = 1 Project Phase | &
Phase Il
EEM IR ETEE
— Rk —HA
Yixing Waste-to-energy BOT for 28 years 238,300,000 June 2007 500 >45,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 284 ZET+F XA

BEENFHERE —H

Suzhou Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |, Il and Il

ERINRREEIRA
—H - —HR=H




80 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBEFRBER AR

Project Highlights JE B B &

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued) =={REEIRIE B (&)

Operating Projects (continued) & BB (#&)

Daily Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment  #iR%E operation ARERE FREE
HE REEH (AR®T) mgEYR (g ) (TREE)
Jiangyin Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 388,740,000 May 2008 800 >77,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 —EEN\FHA
IR REEEE —
Jiangyin Waste-to-energy BOT for 27 years 205,000,000 March 2011 400 >37,000,000
Project Phase |l BOT 274 —T——%=H
TRNREEEE — A
Changzhou Waste-to-energy  BOT for 25.5 years 412,560,000 November 2008 800 >77,000,000
Project BOT 25.5%F ZZENF+—A
BMRREEIHE
Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 413,338,000 August 2011 1,000 >91,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 —ZE—%F)N\A
HTHIRHEIRE —H
Jinan Waste-to-energy Project  BOT for 25 years 900,920,000 October 2011 2,000 >188,000,000
BN IREEIRE BOT 254 —T——%+H
Sugian Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 324,152,000 December 2011 600 >64,000,000
Project BOT 304 —T——%+=ZA
BENNEEIEE

Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project
Tk EEIRE
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Operating Projects (continued) E& B R (#2)

Annual Report 2014 81
—T-MEFH

Daily Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment BmRE operation HEERE FREE
HH REER (AR% ) BXEER (1) (FE&)
Ningbo Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 560,000,000 January 2014 1,000 >112,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 —ZE-MFE-A
ERNRBEEER —H
Nanjing Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 1,030,218,000 June 2014 2,000 >220,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 ZE-MFRA
BRAREEEE —H
Pizhou Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 329,800,000 July 2014 600 >71,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 —E-MELA
BMsREEIRE —H
Sanya Waste-to-energy BOT for 27 years 425,646,000 December 2014 700 >75,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 274 —Z-mE+=R
—oNIREEEE —H
Shouguang Waste-to-energy BOT for 26 years 338,531,000 December 2014 600 >80,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 26%F —“T-ME+ZA
SHuRETHE -8
Suzhou Methane-to-energy BOO for 25 years 27,940,000 August 2006 N/A >18,000,000
Project Phase | BOO 25%F —EERENR TER
HMNBREBEE
Suzhou Methane-to-energy Same as Suzhou 12,750,000 September 2008 N/A >9,000,000
Project Phase I Methane-to-energy “EEN\FNA i
BN BRBEERE N Project Phase |
BEER)AREETIER
— e
L

Changzhou Waste-to-energy Project

FMNER B EIR A
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued) 3RIREEIRIA B (4)
Projects under construction or in preparatory stage (continued) EERHEEEZHIEH(£&)

Daily Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment arRE operation HEE#HE FREE
HE REEH (AR¥7) BXEEH (1) (FEE)
Boluo Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 446,959,000 2015 (expected) 700 >91,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 —T-RF(EY)
BENREEES -1
Weifang Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 585,600,000 2015 (expected) 1,000 >122,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 “T-RE(EH)
HHRREEFAE — 8
Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Same as Zhenjiang 200,000,000 2015 (expected) 400 >45,000,000
Project Phase I Waste-to-energy “T-RE(ES)
BTHIREBIRE — 5 Project Phase |
BETRETIER
R
Changzhou Xinbei BOT for 30 years 419,627,000 2016 (expected) 800 >94,000,000
Waste-to-energy BOT 304 ZE-NF(EH)
Project Phase |
BN EEIER —
Rizhao Waste-to-energy BOT for 25 years 349,631,000 2015 (expected) 600 >71,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 254 “E-RF(EH)
ARAREBIER —H
Ningbo Waste-to-energy Same as Ningbo 190,000,000 2015 (expected) 500 >56,000,000
Project Phase Il Waste-to-energy “T-AF(EH)
RN IREEEE — 8 Project Phase |
BERNREEIER
—HAHEA
Huidong Waste-to-energy BOT for 29 years 334,405,000 2015 (expected) 600 >104,000,000
Project BOT 294 “Z-nE(EH)
ERNREEEA
Yixing Waste-to-energy Same as Yixing 150,843,000 2016 (expected) 300 >31,000,000
Project Phase I Waste-to-energy “E-NF(EH)
HENRESEE 1 Project Phase |
HEENREEER
—H1ER
Wujiang Waste-to-energy BOO for 30 years 890,000,000 2016 (expected) 1,500 >146,000,000
Project BOO 30F ZE-NF(EH)
RITNREEIEE
Ninghai Waste-to-energy BOT for 28 years 360,000,000 2017 (expected) 700 >80,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 284 “T-LF(EH)
BN RESIRE 1
Heze Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 350,000,000 2017 (expected) 600 >64,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 “EE(EH)

SENREERR B
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Zelnrry OO

Daily Annual power
Total processing  generation
investment  Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment BRE operation AEERE GREE
HH REEH (AR¥r) HBxEER (W) (TRE)
Ma'anshan Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 449,983,000 2017 (expected) 800 >98,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 “E-E(EE)
SELAREEEE —H
Yiyang Waste-to-energy Project  BOT for 30 years 372,159,000 2016 (expected) 800 >81,000,000
wEREEIER BOT 304 “E-RF(EE)
Nanjing Waste-to-energy Same as Nanjing 987,000,000 2017 (expected) 2,000 >227,000,000
Project Phase || Waste-to-energy “T—tF(EH)
BRIk EEIER —H Project Phase |
EE RN R ETER
il
Dangshan Waste-to-energy BOO for 30 years 250,000,000 2016 (expected) 400 >41,000,000
Project Phase | BOO 30F ZE-NF(EH)
B RESEE — 1
Nanjing Gaochun BOT for 30 years 292,220,000 2017 (expected) 500 >54,000,000
Waste-to-energy Project BOT 304 T tF(EH)
HRmEAIREEIER
Tengzhou Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 339,000,000 2017 (expected) 600 >80,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 —T—tF(EH)
BMAREEEE — 8
Xinzheng Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 520,000,000 2017 (expected) 1000 >113,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 “EF(EH)
MEAREBIEE — 1
Pei County Waste-to-energy BOT for 25 years 250,000,000 2017 (expected) 400 >60,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 254 T tF(EH)
MEAIREEEE —H
Hangzhou Yuhang Waste-to- BOT for 30 years 1,800,000,000 2017 (expected) 3,000 >300,000,000
energy Project BOT 304 —T—+F(EH)
MMAMARESE R
Lingbi Waste-to-energy BOO for 30 years 250,000,000 2017 (expected) 500 >47,000,000
Project Phase | BOO 30%F “E-tF(EH)
BENREBER M
Mianzhu Waste-to-energy BOO for 30 years 180,000,000 2017 (expected) 300 >32,500,000
Project Phase | BOO 30F T —+F(EH)

SR EERA —H
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued) 3:R1x8EIRIE B (#)
Projects under construction or in preparatory stage (continued) EERHEEEZHIEH(£&)

Daily Annual power
Total processing  generation
investment  Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment BRE operation AEERE GREE
HE REER (AR%r) HXEEZAR (1) (TRH)
Pingdu Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 360,000,000 2017 (expected) 600 >70,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 304 “T—+F(EH)
FENRETER —H
Sanya Waste-to-energy Same as Sanya 166,000,000 2016 (expected) 350 >30,000,000
Project Phase Il Waste-to-energy ZE-NF(EH)
ShNREERE 8 Project Phase |
E=DhREERE —HHEA
Sanya Sludge Treatment and — BOT for 25 years 22,000,000 2015 (expected) 50 N/A
Disposal Project Phase | BOT 25% “Z-nF(EH) i
CHEREEEEEE —#
Operating Projects E& 18 B
Designed
Total storage
investment  Date of capacity Annual
(RMB) commercial (m?) Processing
Project Type of investment BRE operation HEERFBE  capacity (tonne)
HH REER (AR¥r) HBxEZR (XFK) FRERE(E)
Suzhou Industrial Solid Waste  BOO for 30 years 118,100,000  July 2007 512,000 40,000
Landfill Project BOO 304 —TE+E+A
(Phase | and Phase Il) (Phase )
N TEEREYRELER (=)
(—8k=8)
November 2011
—E——51—Ff
(Phase Il)
(=8)
Sugian Hazardous Solid Waste BOO for 25 years 99,090,000  January 2013 340,000 20,000
Landfill Project Phase | BOO 254 —T-=%—R
FEELEHEEA—H
Guanyun Hazardous Solid Waste BOT for 25 years 139,150,000  December 2014 300,000 20,000
Landfill Project Phase | BOT 25F —Z-mE+_A
EEEEREEA -
Binhai Hazardous Solid BOT for 20 years 186,000,000  December 2014 600,000 30,000
Waste Landfill Project BOT 204 —T-ME+=A

BBERRIEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued) RIREERIBE ()
Projects under construction or in preparatory stage 25 F i EZHI1EH

Daily Annual power
Total processing  generation
investment  Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment BRE operation ARERE GREE
EH REER (AR¥r) HXEZAR (1) (TEH)
Zibo Integrated Hazardous Solid -~ BOO for 50 years 400,000,000 2015 (expected) N/A Annual incineration
Waste Treatment Project BOO 50% “ET-RE(EH) TEA processing
HEERGAEEEE capacity: 40,000
Annual physico-
chemical
processing
capacity: 50,000
ERMIERIE : 40,000
EWEIE - 50,000
Shouguang Integrated Hazardous — BOO for 25 years 157,000,000 2016 (expected) 500,000 20,000
Solid Waste Treatment Project ~ BOO 254 “T-RE(EE)
StiEBFaREER
Lianyungang Hazardous Waste N/A 80,240,000 2016 (expected) N/A Annual industrial
Treatment Project TNEH —E-RE(BY) NEE hazardous
(Acquisition and upgrade) waste treatment
BEECERRER capacity: 9,000
(8 Bt AR si) Annual medical
waste treatment
capacity: 1,650
FIRBERE:
9,000
FRERENRSE
1,650
Xinyi Hazardous Solid Waste BOT for 28 years 100,000,000 2015 (expected) N/A Annual incineration
Treatment Project BOT 28% “ZT-RE(EH) TEA processing
MTERRERE capacity: 9,500
ENERE - 9,500
Changzhou Hazardous Solid BOO for 50 years 280,000,000 2016 (expected) N/A Annual incineration
Waste Treatment Project BOO 50% “E-RE(BY) TER processing

EHERREER

capacity: 30,000
ENERIE ¢ 30,000




86 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBEFRBER AR

Project Highlights JE B f§ &

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS IR{R7/K#IE B
Operating Projects (continued) E& 18 B (&

Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment ana operation HEkEEE
HR REER (AR%7T) HEEEH (LAK)
Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project BOT/TOT for 25 years 356,000,000 January 2005 220,000
(Haibohe & Maidao Plants) BOT/TOT 254 “ETRE-F  (Maidao Expansion Project
EEOKREER completed in July 2007)
(BRI RESHK) (RBRRER
RZZRLELATR)
Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project TOT for 25 years 354,276,000 November 2005 250,000
(Southern and Northern Plants) TOT 25% (Including investment of ZEZRE+—F  (Upgrading work
SETKEEER RMB130,221,000 for completed in May 2008)
(BB EILR) upgrading work) (FisETR
(BEARRETERES RZZZ\FRATK)
AR#130,221,0007)
Zibo High-tech Zone Waste Water BOT for 25 years 150,000,000 September 2007 100,000
Treatment Project BOT 25% ZERLENA
HERNETKEEER
Zibo Zhoucun Waste Water BOT for 25 years 70,000,000 November 2009 40,000
Treatment Project BOT 254 ZEENET-A
MERERNKEEER

1

@ m om pa m g [ -
TR e

e

Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project
IR 5K ERIEIE B
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) (RR/KFEIE B (#)
Operating Projects (continued) E& 18R (&)
Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (md)
Project Type of investment  #1RE operation ASkEEER
ER REEH (AR®R) HEEEZR (XAK)
Binzhou Boxing Waste Water TOT/BOT for 25 years 85,000,000 Phase I - April 2008 60,000
Treatment Project TOT/BOT 254 (Including investment of —H-—FZ)\EWA (ncreased from
EMNBERSKERER RMB65,500,000 for Upgrading work - 30,000 m? to 60,000 mé
upgrading work of Phase | December 2008 upon completion of
and construction of Phase Il) FHRZETi2— Phase Il in June 2009)
(BE-BARER-SRE —EEN\ETZR  (ZEENERAZHRK
TH2HE AR¥65,500,0007T) Phase II - June 2009 BIETRE  }30,0003L7
ZH-ZZTNERA REINE60,000U A K)
Jinan Waste Water Treatment TOT for 30 years 707,000,000 November 2006 500,000
Project (Plant 1 and Plant 2) TOT 30% (Including investment of —EESNF+-R (Increased from
EmsKERER (—HREZ/) RMB287,000,000 for 420,000 m* to
upgrading and expansion work 500,000 m? upon
for Plant 1 and Plant 2) completion of expansion
(BB SE R work in May 2009)
T72#%E AR %287,000,0007C) (ZZENFRATRER
Ti21% + H420,00037 5 K
¥ MZ500,0003 5 K)
Jinan Licheng Waste Water BOT for 28 years 138,000,000 October 2009 100,000
Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase | BOT 284 “ETNETAR

BRERSKEEER (ZF) 4

Jinan Waste WaterTreatment Project

B 5/KERIEIE B
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IR{R/KFIA B (&)

Operating Projects (continued) E&1EHE (&)

Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment &RE operation AGkEEE
EH REER (AE¥T) H¥EER (LX)
Jinan Xike Waste Water BOT for 26 years 72,680,000 June 2010 30,000
Treatment Project (Plant 4) BOT 264 ZE-TFRA
ERERKERER (M)
Ling County Waste Water TOT for 30 years 33,720,000 June 2010 30,000
Treatment Project (Plant 1) TOT 30 —E-TFRA
fegi k2B R (— )
Ling County Waste Water BOT for 30 years 58,000,000 June 2010 30,000
Treatment Project (Plant 2) BOT 30% “E-TERA
gk a7k 2B R (ZR/)
Jiangyin Waste Water Treatment TOT for 30 years 530,266,000 January 2008 190,000
Project (Acquisition and upgrade)  TOT 304 “ZTN\E-A
IkaKEEIER
(BRI R%E)
Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste Water BOT for 25 years 150,273,000 September 2013 75,000
Treatment Project Phase | BOT 254 “T-ZFNR

EMNEEKEEERR —

Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste
Water Treatment Project
EMNEE R TKEIRIER
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Operating Projects (continued) E&1EH (&)
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Zelnery  OY

Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?3)
Project Type of investment #&RE operation AEkKEEE
HE REER (AR¥T) B¥EER (LFEX)
Jinan Licheng Waste Water Same as Jinan Licheng 195,000,000 November 2013 100,000
Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase |l Waste Water B
ERESKEEER (= /) =8 Treatment
Project (Plant 3)
Phase |
EERERN KRR
HR (=F)—H1ER
Zhangqiu Waste Water Treatment BOT for 30 years 60,700,000 May 2014 30,000
Project BOT 304 “E-mERA
EESKERER
Ling County Waste Water Treatment ~ N/A 14,314,000 Upgrading work N/A
Project Plant 1 (upgrade) TNER completed in NEFA
P 5K R IR B — A Rk May 2014
ARSETIRR=F
—MERATR
Binzhou Development Zone BOT for 25 years 70,000,000 January 2012 40,000
Waste Water Treatment BOT 25%F —T-—%-f
Project Phase |
EMNRERTKEZER -8
Kunshan Development Zone BOT for 25 years 68,183,000 June 2006 25,000
Waste Water Treatment BOT 25%F ZZTRERA
Project Phase |
BILRERSKEEEE —H
Kunshan Development Zone BOT for 25 years 16,149,000 September 2008 25,000
Waste Water Treatment BOT 25%F “ZEN\ENA
Project Phase I
RILAZRSKEEEE 8
Yangzhou Jiangdu Development Zone  BOT for 34 years 24,760,000 May 2008 12,500
Waste Water Treatment BOT 34 “ZT\§1A
Project Phase |
BINIHAZEREKEREE 1
Lianyungang Dapu Waste Water TOT for 25 years 140,158,000 December 2001 100,000
Treatment Project TOT 254 “ET-%+ZH

BEANRKEEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IR{R/KFIA B (&)

Operating Projects (continued) E& BB (4#Z)

Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?3)
Project Type of investment  #i#%& operation ASKkEEE
EH REER ON: ) B¥EZA (LFEK)
Lianyungang Xugou Waste Water BOT for 25 years 100,000,000 December 2009 40,000
Treatment Project Phase | BOT 25%F “EENE+ZR
ETBEBSKEEEE 8
Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment BOT for 25 years 111,539,000 January 2010 40,000
Project Phase | BOT 25% —E-TF-f
BB KERER
Suzhou Wuzhong Chengnan Waste BOT for 27 years 558,512,000 January 2009 75,000
Water Treatment Project Phase | BOT 274 “EENEF-A
MR A KEEEE -5
Nanjing Liuhe Waste Water Treatment ~ BOT for 30 years 63,170,000 June 2011 20,000
Project Phase | BOT 30%F “T——%KA
FRAETKEIBER —H
Nanjing Liuhe Waste Water Treatment ~ BOT for 24 years 98,152,000 September 2013 20,000
Project Phase || BOT 24%F —T-ZFAR
MRAATKERER —H
Daxing Tiantanghe Waste Water BOT for 29 years 100,867,000 Deoember 2008 40,000
Treatment Project Phase | BOT 29F “TT\ETZAR
AERXET5KEEERE —H
Xianyang Waste Water Treatment BOT for 25 years 100,590,000 October 2006 100,000
Project Phase | BOT 25%F ZZERETA
BBRDKEEEE — 5
Xianyang Waste Water Treatment BOT for 30 years 140,000,000 December 2014 100,000
Project Phase || BOT 304 “Z-mE+ZA
BBREDEKEEER =
Sanmenxia Industry Cluster Area BOT for 30 years 74,378,000 February 2015 30,000
Waste Water Treatment BOT 30%F “E-1%-R
Project Phase |
=F5KERIEE B —H
Zibo Reusable Water Project BOO for 20 years 44,000,000 September 2011 4,800
Phase | BOO 204 —T—%NA

HETKER—
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Operating Projects (continued) E&1EH (&)

Annual Report 2014

Y2 limErg Il

Total Daily water supply
investment Date of capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?3)
Project Type of investment &K %E operation AftkE
HE REER (AR¥T) B¥EER (LH*)
Jinan Licheng Reusable BOO for 24 years 31,061,000 September 2011 42,000
Water Project BOO 24%F —2——%NA
BRI RKIER
Jiangyin Reusable Water Project BOO for 25 years 73,067,000 January 2013 10,000
IRHKIER BOO 25% —Z-=%-A4
Zibo Waste Water Source Heat Pump ~ BOO for 30 years 57,887,000 December 2011 Service area: 125,000m?
Project Phase | BOO 304 ZE——%+ZR  R#&#HE: 125,000F 5K
HETKRARER —H
Zibo Ceramic Park Heat Pump Project  BOO for 30 years 93,000,000 November 2013 Service area; 187,000m?
MERERRRER BOO 304 Z-Z51-8 [RBEHE : 187,000 5%
Transferred project 2B X IER
Daily waste water
Total treatment/water supply
investment capacity
(RMB) Date of (md)
Project Type of investment aRg transfer AEkEE k8
HE REEH ON:: ) BXAH (LFHX)
Xinyi BT Waste Water BT for 4 years 62,150,000 October 2010 10,000
Treatment Project Phase | BT 44 “T-T41A
AABTKGEER —H
Xinyi BT Surface Water Project BT for 8 years 385,110,000 June 2013 100,000
AMTBTHRKIER BT 8F “E-ZF5A
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IR{R/KFIE B (£)
Projects under construction 7715 B

Daily waste water

Total treatment/water supply
investment Date of capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment ang operation BEKRE /K8
HA REEH (AR¥ ) HEEEA (LHXK)
Binzhou Boxing Waste Water Same as Boxing Waste 64,000,000 2015 (expected) 20,000
Treatment Project Water Treatment Project “Z-RF(EH)
(expansion and upgrade) BB 5K EREE R
EMBEESKEEERRREAR
Yangzhou Jiangdu Development Zone BOT for 25 years 66,000,000 2015 (expected) 12,500
Waste Water Treatment BOT 254 “E-RE(EE)
Project Phase Il and upgrade
BINIHRERSKEREE ZHREE
Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment ~ BOT for 16 years 149,162,000 2016 (expected) 40,000
Project Phase Il and upgrade BOT 164 ZERNF(E)
BRRHSKEEEE ZHRRE
Suzhou Wuzhong Chengnan BOT for 19 years 224,610,000 2016 (expected) 75,000
Waste Water Treatment BOT 194 “ENE(EE)
Project Phase Il and upgrade
HEMRPmAEaKEEEE —BREE
Zibo Reusable Water Project Phase |l Same as Zibo Reusable 11,000,000 2015 (expected) 4,800

JEERKIER —H

Water Project Phase |

HEHBTACRE — R

—T-hE(EH)




ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS #rgE)R1E B

Operating Projects E# 18R

Annual Report 2014
Zelnrrn IO

Total Annual power
investment Date of generation capacity
(RMB) commercial (kWh)
Project Type of investment &K% operation EREE
&R REEHR (AR¥TT) HMEEZA (FEE)
Shenzhen Rooftop BOO for 25 years 27,917,000 November 2010 >1,480,000
Photovoltaic Energy Project BOO 254 —E-ZF+—R
AIEBRREEERE
Zhenjiang Ground Photovoltaic BOO for 25 years 73,490,000 December 2010 >4,059,000
Energy Project BOO 25%F —E-ZF+R
BDE AR EEIER
Sugian Rooftop Photovoltaic BOO for 25 years 52,720,000 December 2010 >2,205,000
Energy Project Phase | BOO 254 —E-ZF+RA
BEREEAREEEE 1
German Ground Photovoltaic BOO for 20 years 68,360,000 September 2011 >3,611,000
Energy Project BOO 204 —E——%fA
EEE A EEIER
Changzhou Rooftop Photovoltaic  BOO for 25 years 79,213,000 December 2011 >4,113,000
Energy Project BOO 254 —Z——%+ZA
FMETEXRAREEER
Zhenjiang Rooftop Photovoltaic BOO for 25 years 236,095,000 December 2011 >11,680,000
Energy Project BOO 254 —Z——%+ZA
HIETEAREEIER
Sugian Rooftop Photovoltaic BOO for 25 years 142,109,000 December 2011 >6,198,000
Energy Project Phase I BOO 254 —Z——%+ZA
BEREEAREEEE
Huaining Ground Photovoltaic BOO for 26 years 50,470,000 May 2011 >2,170,000
Energy Project BOO 264 “E——%AA
EEMENREEIER
Dangshan Biomass Power BOO for 30 years 312,468,000 September 2011 >184,000,000
Generation Project BOO 304 —T——FHA
BLENEREREE
Hanshan Biomass Power BOO for 25 years 320,000,000 August 2014 >184,000,000
Generation Project BOO 25 —Z-mFENR

BUEMEREER
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ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS (continued) ¥1g8)R1E B (#&)
Projects under construction or in preparatory stage f 25 FEEZEHIEH

Total investment

Annual agricultural
waste processing

(RMB) Date of commercial capacity (tonne)
Project Type of investment  #iRE operation FREEEBEREE
R REER (AR%T) HEEZR (1)
Xuyi Biomass Integrated BOO for 30 years 301,350,000 2015 (expected) 236,000
Utilisation Project BOO 304 —T-RF(EH)
FHANESAREES
Sucheng Biomass Integrated BOO for 30 years 174,600,000 2015 (expected) 120,000
Utilisation Project BOO 304 —Z-hF(EE)
BRENE A RAR
Guanyun Biomass BOO for 30 years 175,000,000 2015 (expected) 150,000
Integrated Utilisation Project BOO 304 —T-hF(EH)
EEEMERARIEER
Rudong Biomass Integrated BOO for 30 years 90,000,000 2015 (expected) 126,000
Utilisation Project BOO 304 —T-RF(ED)

MRENE iz aRIEIER
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ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS (continued) $1g8)RIE B (#&)
Projects under construction or in preparatory stage (continued) ERREEEZHIEH(£&)

Total investment

S

Annual power
generation capacity

(RMB) Date of commercial (kWh)

Project Type of investment &R E operation FREE

EAR REER (AR% ) HxEZR (TEB)

Huaiyuan Biomass Integrated BOO for 30 years 330,000,000 2016 (expected) >200,000,000
Utilisation Project Phase | BOO 30%F ZE-RF(EH)

BREYEGRERIEER -1

Dingyuan Biomass Integrated BOO for 30 years 320,000,000 2016 (expected) >200,000,000
Utilisation Project BOO 304 —E-RNF(EH)

TREVMERARERE

Lingbi Biomass Integrated BOO for 30 years 320,000,000 2016 (expected) >200,000,000
Utilisation Project BOO 304 “E-NF(EH)

BEAYEGSRIBER

Chuzhou Niangiao Biomass Power BOO for 30 years 320,000,000 2016 (expected) >200,000,000
Generation Project BOO 304 —E-NF(EH)

BNEEENEREER

Mianzhu Biomass Power BOO for 30 years 320,000,000 2017 (expected) >200,000,000
Generation Project BOO 304 T F(EH)

BEYEHEERA

Hanshan Distributed Photovoltaic  BOO for 25 years 62,720,000 2015 (expected) >5,161,000
Energy Project BOO 25% —“Z-RFE(EH)

BILREREEER

Ningwu Wind Power Project BOO for 20 years 848,130,000 2015 (expected) >230,000,000
(Changfangshan & Zhaojiashan) BOO 20% —“E-HE(EH)

ERENEEER (RFELKEZRL)

Xinyi Biomass Power BOO for 25 years 321,040,000 (construction temporarily >184,000,000
Generation Project BOO 254 postponed)

TEMERERE (EiEER)

Shuyang Biomass BOO for 25 years 339,610,000 (construction temporarily Power £
Cogeneration Project BOO 25%F postponed) >172,250,000 KWh FEL B

MG EMERERHIER (EizER) Heat 42

> 390,000 tonnes M

Linyi Biomass Power BOO for 25 years 320,000,000 (construction temporarily >184,000,000
Generation Project BOO 254 postponed)

EEAMEEEIER (EEER)

Laiyang Biomass Power BOO for 25 years 320,000,000 (construction temporarily >184,000,000
Generation Project BOO 254 postponed)

REEMEREER

(EEER)




96 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBEFRBER AR

Project Highlights 18 B &

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION INDUSTRIAL PARKS IR{RE % &

Expected number

Environmental Protection Industrial Parks Investment amounts of projects
BREXE RER BEBHE
Suzhou Everbright National Demonstrative Veinous Industrial Park RMB3.3 billion >10
FNTAARERFREXTEE ARHB33MET

Sugian Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park RMB1.6 billion 6-8
BEMARRRERE ARE16ET

Changzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park RMB1 billion 9
EMNTRARRERE ARE10ET

Weifang Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park RMB3.7 billion >10
TR ARRERE ARHITET

Yixing Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park HK$2-3 billion >10
BEEMARRRFRELE A H20-30 T

Nanjing Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park RMB4.2 billion >10
ERMAEARREREXE ARB42(8T

Zhenjiang New District Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park  HK1.5 billion 6-8
BINEXARREXE BEEA5ET

Lianyungang Xuwei New District Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park - RMBO.6 billion >10
REARTHBRRERELE NEHGIET

Ganzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park RMB?2 billion >10
BINAARRRFMERE ARE20ET

Suzhou Everbright
National Demonstrative
Veinous Industrial Park
BN T S K B =R B A
EFREE
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Directors and Senior Management EEXSHEEAE

DIRECTORS £%=

Executive Directors #{TEE

TANG SHUANGNING - CHAIRMAN

aged 60, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Tang is the representative of the 12th National People’s Congress
and the Vice-chairman of the Agriculture and Rural Affairs Committee of the 12th National People’s Congress.
He is also the Chairman of China Everbright Group Ltd., China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and China
Everbright Bank Company Limited. Mr. Tang is also the Director of Everbright Securities Company Limited,
Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Company Limited and the Chairman of China Everbright Limited. He also
serves as the Vice Chairman of China Society for Finance and Banking and the Consultant of China Society
for Investment. Prior to joining the China Everbright Group, he was the Vice Chairman of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission, the Director-General of the Banking Supervision Department |, the Director-General
of the Currency, Gold and Silver Bureau and the Director-General of the Credit Management Division of the
People’s Bank of China. He holds a Master’s Degree in Economics from China Northeast University of Finance
& Economics. Mr. Tang has extensive knowledge and experience in banking and finance management. Mr. Tang
joined the Board in July 2007.

EEgE(LE)

BFEOOm ' ARBEF  BEERF T _EZBEARKRAERE 2BEARKRRAGRRERNZE SR EAEZR
B BRITRTEAKREERNOAR  FEAREEEGRAFARPEAAARITRODBRARESERK - I BEETR
ARBFBRNDAERARARERKPAASRBERARES - URFBEXAIZERERAFER - BRETFHHESE
EREPEKESSER - REMATEAKXRERR  EETPERTEEBEREZEGR IR  PEARRBITRTE
E—-AlRk ERRBRARLEEEEAARERE - REATERIELMEABLHBE LT BN - FLEENRITR
TREENEREAFTEZNANBLTOLENLR BEEN _ZTLFLAMAESS -

LIU JUN - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 43, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. Mr. Liu is the Deputy General Manager of China Everbright Group
Ltd., the Vice-chairman of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, the Chairman of Sun Life Everbright Life
Insurance Company Limited and the Deputy Chairman of China Everbright Limited. Mr. Liu is a member of the
Eleventh Committee of the All-China Youth Federation, a standing member of the Fourth Committee of the Youth
Federation of the Central Government, the Vice President of the Second Committee of All-China Financial Youth
Federation and the Chairman of Financial Derivatives Professional Committee of National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Northeastern State
University of Oklahoma U.S.A. and a Doctorate’s Degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He holds the title of Senior Economist. He was formerly the Executive Vice President of
China Everbright Bank Co., Limited. He joined the Board in August 2014.

FIFE (BIEE)

BEFEAZRR > ARFREE  BIEERTEAXREBRNAREAKLE  FEAREEERAFEESR - XAKAA
SRBREARAFEETERFTEAARZERERAFAELIE - ZRAELER AT ELETFHREEE T RBREZEEZE - &
RAZKBEEFHESFENELZESEKZE 2R EARETFHARFE _RZEGIIFE  URPERITHETS
REBEHEERITEREXZEGIMARE - HHEXEBRRUABERIEMIABTIHEREXATEBMUMETEET
ABTHEESEELENM  YRESALBERBME - REEFEAKRRITROERAFANTR - FRER T K
FAAMAEZS -
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DIRECTORS (continued) &= (#&)

Executive Directors (Continued) $I{TE%(#&)

CHEN XIAOPING - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

aged 61, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Chen is the Non-executive Director and Chairman of
China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. He is also a Standing Director of
China Environmental Culture Promotion Association. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen had been a department
head in the Bureau of Investigation & Supervision of The People’s Bank of China, the Assistant Governor of China
Everbright Bank Company Limited and the President of the Bank’s Guangzhou Branch. He graduated from the
Department of Finance of the Southwest University in Finance and Economics, the PRC, finished the MBA class
of the Research Institute of Business Management of Sichuan University, the PRC and holds a Master’s Degree
with a major in Money & Banking from the Department of Finance and Trade of the China Research Institute
of Social Science. He holds the title of Senior Economist and Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. He was
also engaged as a researcher at the China International Economic Development Research Centre. He has rich
experience and extensive knowledge in banking, capital market and management. Mr. Chen joined the Board in
August 2001.

SRNF (T AER)

BE61R  ARATHAE  REERTEEAKBERAR (RARRIINE EHMB AR NIERTEERES
£ BOAASTEREXRESEHIES - REEMAARKER - LEBRTEARRITEZREE RE R NP B KR
TITRMEREMNRITOTIR - REXRNTEOEYEAZSRE - OIIKETHERMFTAMBAT R LM LFHFE
TEMSNEM ARV EMEERTEXRELEUE  AASAKLEMBEMEMSMER - BIAB ST EBEREL
BERMADOMES - RRRTT  EATESREEERTHRELEELREEZAE -REER ST —F/\AM
ANBEEEG -

WANG TIANYI — GENERAL MANAGER

aged 52, is the General Manager of the Company. Mr. Wang is the Executive Director, Vice-Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the President of Shandong Academy of Science. He was formerly the Deputy
Mayor of Jinan City of Shandong Province. He had been the Vice President, Dean and Professor of Economic
Management Faculty of Yantai University of Shandong Province. He is currently also a part-time professor and
doctoral tutor of Shandong University. He is also a member of HKTDC Mainland Business Advisory Committee.
He holds a Doctorate’s degree in Economics, a Master’s degree in Management and a Bachelor’s degree in
Electronics from Tsinghua University. He had pursued advanced studies at Harvard University and University of
California in the United States. Mr. Wang joined the Board in February 2010.

FRZE (FBAFE)

NEL2R » ARRAEIEIE « THEBPEAKXAKEERAR(KRARRFMPE LTOMERGMNITES  BIEER
FBE - ENMAREER  BALURERERRE - HASEUREAERMATR TETLEEEAAZIRE
REBHRRERELRIE - BMILURASEBHRBRNE T LEM  URESELERANEELANZESEE - HEFEE
ERBEEBE L  FESBPIRETBELN - FAEEEXERBRAEMMNABEBERE - TAEN T —TF
ZAMAESE -
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Executive Directors (Continued) $I1TEE (&)

WONG KAM CHUNG, RAYMOND - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

aged 51, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree,
a Master of Management Degree in Information Technology Management from Macquarie University, Australia,
and a Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of United Kingdom and a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. He has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and auditing areas. Mr. Wong joined the Board in December 2002.

=R (I HARE)

BES15R  ARAW AL - RAERBERMNERBEASTEERELM  SBERIH(EEEMMKER) ARk
BEWTAREHBREXELE  YABTBEHMAGEE  ZRERKHIHNAEEE  KERKTARGINAE
’éi;&@;%&i}ﬂ’%?ﬂ%%’?%%@%ﬁﬂﬁ%@@% cRABEEZEM  MBLRBER BAER_TT_F+_AMA
Exg-

CAl SHUGUANG — DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

aged 59, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the Vice-chairman of Everbright
Environmental Protection (China) Limited. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly Deputy General Manager
of Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Limited. He graduated from the Department of Computer Science from Shanghai
Fudan University and holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of Ballarat in
Australia. He holds the title of senior engineer. Mr. Cai has rich experience and extensive knowledge in corporate
management and project planning. Mr. Cai joined the Board in August 2010.

BB (BIAEAETE)

BELp  ARFRIBKLIE - WARKKRR(FE)ARAFNBESR - EREEMALEE R - BEBRIISE
BRERAFEBRLE REXNLBEERBERMEBR  UKARANECENRBARTIHERELEMN - AF
BARTIZEMBE SELECXERERARS T AL LERRNBEZANE - BEENR T -FF/\ANAESSE -

Independent Non-Executive Directors Bk TEE

FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP

aged 65, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of the following Hong Kong listed public companies, namely Hysan Development Company Limited, First
Pacific Company Limited and China Aircraft Leasing Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Fan is also an independent
director of Goodman Group, an Australian listed company and a member of the Asian Advisory Committee of
AustralianSuper, a pension fund established in Australia. He was formerly an independent director of Zhuhai
Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Ltd., a Shenzhen listed company and Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange until June 2013 and December 2013 respectively. He was also formerly
an independent non-executive director of HKC (Holdings) Limited, a Hong Kong listed company until December
2014. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master’s Degree in Operations Research
from Stanford University and a Master’s Degree in Management Science from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology. Before joining the Company in 1997, he was an executive director of CITIC Pacific Limited in
charge of industrial projects in China. Mr. Fan joined the Board in November 1997 and was re-designated as
the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in January 2010 and
December 2012 respectively.

SBLC#S

WECER  NAARZBUIFRITESR - RAR/ZHXEB LT AR (AIHERXARAAF - F—ANFARAFRFPER
BEHESEZBRARAR) B IFATESE - BRENRSGoodman Group(—KIBAME EHA AR NBLES
K AustralianSuper( —RKPOBEAMER T HRAES )W EMAERAZEGKE - REERETEEEROHDARRAF(—
FRARINETHRE) MR EENERERAR(—RNANESFZ M ETHRARNBLES  HREE_T—=
NARZZE—=F+_Al - BAEBBEFTEER(ZEBR)BRAF(—KBE LM RABNBEUIFRTETEE T
—HOFET AL - BAERBLEARAZIRELE  LARASBREERLANMEE T EREEMBBELIM - &
—HANEFMAKRRBZA - WEETEREERARATES  TEPEHIXRER - BERER—AAEF+— AN
ARRRAZERE  UDHRN T TF AR T —F+ _ARAERIFPNTEEFNBIUIRTES -
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DIRECTORS (continued) &= (#&)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued) B ¥k HTEE (&)

MAR SELWYN

aged 79, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Mar graduated from the London School
of Economics, University of London. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of United
Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a director of Nexia Charles Mar Fan
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Minmetals
Land Limited and Man Yue International Holdings Limited. He was the President of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1991. Mr. Mar is an
Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan University and appointed member of the Court of Lingnan University by the Chief
Executive of the HKSAR. He joined the Board in September 2004.

HAEE

RETI ARBZBIFATES - FAEEXNRIAERBALEERLER - RARBEFFARGHMAE R
BEGHMAGEREE - HALRAFTAEGHBTERAANESE - RTALBEBERARAFALEHREREEA
BRARHBIINTEENELZEGLIR - RER NN FHERESHMLEER - BEENRERAREKE
e RWEBFITHRETERREAGREFARKAEEERE - BN _STWUFNLAMAESS -

LI KWOK SING, AUBREY

aged 65, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He is the Chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong based financial advisory and investment firm, and has over 40 years’ experience in
merchant banking and commercial banking. He is also a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, Kunlun Energy Company Limited,
Kowloon Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Tai Ping Carpets
International Limited. Mr. Li has a Master of Business Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor of
Science in Civil Engineering from Brown University. He joined the Board in November 1998.

FE £

HECSE ' ARBZBIUFATES - FRAERELEBRARAB(—KNEMBEARKRENBEREM AR Z
ExRk BERBROTEPERTAABANTFLR - BARRERTARQBZIFATEERARLEEBRARA
A BERERERLAA  NEEZEERAR FEREXARAFALAFHEBRBERARZBIIFNTES - Fit
ERAIREEARIHERBRTBURMARBIATIRBETEM - WR—ANN\F+—ANAEES -

ZHAI HAITAO

aged 46, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He is the President and Partner of Primavera
Capital Group. He was formerly Managing Director of Goldman Sachs Asia LLC and Chief Representative of
Goldman Sachs Beijing Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Zhai worked at the International Department
of the People’s Bank of China in Beijing, and was Deputy Representative of the People’s Bank of China
Representative Office for the Americas based in New York. He holds a Master’s Degree in International Relations
from Columbia University, a Master of Business Administration Degree from New York University and a Bachelor
of Arts Degree in Economics from Peking University. He has extensive experience and knowledge in banking,
capital market and management. Mr. Zhai joined the Board in January 2011.

sy

RFA6ER * NRBIZBUIERTES - BAAERBEELRSENBHZREARA - FEIBRESREMNERETRATES
BRERRSEREELARRETFRER EEBRSBA  2ZEESRItEREBRTRARBITRITEER - WEHES
FRARBITEENEZE(BROEIRE - FRHEITREEABRHBEEEL  AHARBIEHEEELT - WEIERK
BOESEL o FRIRIT BEAMBRCEEE T ERELENEBRENHE BEER _ZS——F—HNMAESZ o
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HU YANGUO

aged 48, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the General Manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection (China) Ltd. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly the lecturer of mathematics
of Northeast Forestry University, the General Manger of Accounting Department of Guangzhou Branch of the
China Everbright Bank and the Deputy General Manager of Sunshiny Group. He graduated from the Department
of Infrastructure of Northeast Forestry University and holds a Master of Agricultural Degree from Economic
Management Faculty of the Northeast Forestry University. Mr. Hu holds the title of Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC. He has comprehensive experience in accounting and settlement, administration management,
construction management. Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 20086.

AHIE B

WEA8R - ARFEAZEE  TEAKRRR(PE)BERARMELE - HEEMAREER - BERIEMERBHER
EED - REEARITEMNDTV EHRELERERNEEERAFEELEE - FEXNRUAMEAREERB RLEEE
Bl RR2ELTH - HALERETEREIMES BT - RRMBEE  TRERE  IRERITEHEBRZERLANE -
HMAEER -_TENFOAMNMAREHE -

CHEN TAO

aged 51, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the Deputy General Manager and
General Manager of Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Ltd. and Everbright Environmental Protection
Technological Development (Beijing) Ltd. respectively. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly the lecturer
and laboratory supervisor of automation of Sichuan Light Chemistry Institute (presently known as East China
University of Science and Technology), the Chairman of Labor Union of Electronic Engineering and the Assistant
General Manager of Shenzhen Catic Intelligent System Co., Ltd. He graduated from the Department of Chemical
Instrument and Industrial Automation of East China Chemistry Institute (presently known as East China University
of Science and Technology) and holds a Master of Automation Degree from East China University of Science and
Technology. Mr. Chen holds the title of Certified Senior Engineer in the PRC. He has comprehensive experience
in construction management, technology development and administration management. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in April 2005.

RBES1  ARAREARKLE  TRARRR(FE)ARAFBEEELARXREBMBER (ER)ERAPEEE - R
FEEMARERR - SEBRINEC TSR (REERBEIRE) BBEHAEHA - BBEEREFELRYIHR
MEMARATAFCALE  AKEE RELEERERCISHRREEREIARBIIEERBBCTE
ZoGBGERETIASBIXAHCTIERLT - REEFAS R TR - BN TRER - RWHE  TREERS
EBEEEZEBEAH - REER _ZTZERFMWAMAREE -
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QIAN XIAODONG

aged 42, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the General Manager of Investment
Development Department and Everbright Environmental Protection Venture Capital (Shenzhen) Ltd. He
graduated from the Department of Heat Energy Engineering of Dalian University of Technology and holds a
Master of Environment Engineering Degree of Southeast University. He has comprehensive experience and
knowledge in market development of environmental protection industry, national environmental policies and
industrial trend. Mr. Qian joined the Group in July 2003.

R

RFA2p  ARFRIBKIEMNERRIPAEE - TARXKRREAFRECRYDBRARBREE - HAERHAERE
TARERETREELRRAASRETIRELN - NERREXEELEENMHARER - YERRREREEK - FHR
RITERASRABRR - BEAR_TZE=F L ANMALXEH -

AN XUESONG

aged 44, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. An is also the Executive Director and Standing
Vice-president of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. He holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree of Jinan University. He has comprehensive experience and knowledge
in project management, accounting management and risk management. Mr. An joined the Group in May 2002.

ZZHA
REA4RE - AAFRGIEE - R5ETAT ERAKSARA T (KR AR L TSR R) H9ITE B RS
BlH - REEHEEMARTHERALE - RN ATEEREHHRAREMABED - RATYE 2 REE
2 HBER  BRERER  RAER - FE-_FHANMAKEE -

YANG ZHIQIANG

aged 54, is the Chief Legal Officer of the Company. Mr. Yang is the Non-executive Director of China Everbright
Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly the
Legal Assistant and PRC legal consultant of Livasiri & Co., the lawyer of Beijing Xinghe Legal Firm and Jiade
Legal Firm, Shenzhen branch. He was graduated in Medical Science Department from Beijing Medical University.
He obtained the Professional Certificate of Law recognized by the Law Society of England and holds the title of
Lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Yang joined the Group in December 2003.
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POON YUEN LING

aged 47, is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the Group in
April 1994, with over 20 years of experience in company secretarial affairs.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Room 2703,
27th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 3 to
the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and
suppliers of the Group respectively during the financial year is
as follows:
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Percentage of
the Group’s total
EREBTIRE LA T

Turnover Purchases
EERE B
The largest customer BEREP 10%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAR 40%
The largest supplier SN ] 6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHEEEE 16%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water Treatment
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao EB-VW?”, a subsidiary of the Company,
currently known as Everbright Water (Qingdao) Limited)
entered into an operation and maintenance agreement
with Qingdao Veolia Water Operating Company Limited
(“Qingdao Veolia”, an associate of the Group, currently
known as Qingdao Everbright Water Operating Limited,
which became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company after the Group acquired additional equity
interest in Qingdao Veolia during the year ended 31
December 2014). Pursuant to the agreement, Qingdao
EB-VW will subcontract to Qingdao Veolia the provision of
the operation and maintenance services in respect of the
waste-water treatment plants (the “Plants”) in Qingdao, the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). During the year ended
31 December 2014, service fee for the operation and
maintenance of the Plants paid/payable to Qingdao Veolia
which are classified as continuing connected transactions
amounted to HK$31,185,000.

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW entered into a waste-water
treatment agreement with Qingdao Municipal Drainage
Company (“Qingdao Drainage”, a non-controlling shareholder
of Qingdao EB-VW). Pursuant to the agreement, Qingdao
EB-VW will provide waste-water treatment services
and other related services to Qingdao Drainage on an
exclusive basis. During the year ended 31 December
2014, waste-water treatment revenue received/receivable
from Qingdao Drainage amounted to HK$98,398,000.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if
there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report to the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter of Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed by the Group in the annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 116
to 265.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$1,765,043,000 have been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per share was paid on 30
September 2014. The directors now recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2014.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$1,470,000.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set
out in note 12 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29(c) to the financial
statements. These movements include the automatic inclusion
of the amounts standing to the share premium account and
the capital redemption reserve in share capital as from 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the New
Companies Ordinance, as part of the transition to the no-par
value regime.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year were:

Executive directors

Tang Shuangning, Chairman

Liu Jun, Vice-chairman (appointed on 12 August 2014)
Chen Xiaoping, Chief Executive Officer

Wang Tianyi, General Manager

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Chief Financial Officer

Cai Shuguang, Deputy General Manager

Zang Qiutao, Vice-chairman (resigned on 12 August 2014)

Independent non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip

Mar Selwyn

Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Zhai Haitao

In accordance with articles 73, 77, 78 and 79 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Wang
Tianyi, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Mr. Cai Shuguang
and Mr. Zhai Haitao will retire from the board at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The current 4 independent
non-executive directors of the Company hold office for a term
until 31 December 2015. They are all subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association as indicated above.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held
office at 31 December 2014 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that date as recorded in the register of
directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:
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Long position in shares of the Company RARBIRD 2B
Number of
Nature of interest shares Percentage
Name of director BEHS EatE e E BOL
(ordinary shares)
(Eimhk)
Chen Xiaoping BR/NE Personal f&A 9,000,000 0.20%
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond Egal Personal & A 2,000,000 0.04%
Fan Yan Hok, Philip piCEe Personal & A 8,500,000 0.19%
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEE Personal fE A 1,000,000 0.02%

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

E=BERMNEFER

ERFERNEMREE  AQF - EEAHER
A ZERAFSFRNBARLESEEME
B BEEERNEBEARAREAEMEAR
BzBEMHHEFMEEHE -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31 December 2014 amounting to

TERR M EAM A TERD KEBRD
RER L a MORR

ARBEBER _T—NFE+-_A=+—HEAX
NAEEITRMD 2 e ZD BT EBRS% A

5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue: EZBRERIAT

Short position Lending pool

Long position in ordinary in ordinary

in ordinary shares held shares held

sharesheld  and percentage  and percentage

and percentage of total of total

of total issued shares issued shares

issued shares  FisE iz ATSAEELZ

Nature of igsa-3led HER LEkk

Capacity interest HEREZHE  F2¥E%T  H2¥EET

L) EmitE BITRBBAL BHEDL BHBAL

Central Huijin Investment R RESHEBREL Interest of Corporate 1,855,951,910 - -
Limited (“Huijin”) RA([ER]) controlled interest Approximately
(notes (1) and (2)) GERAR) corporation NIl 5 41.39%
R D RIRER #141.39%

China Everbright Group REEAEERAR) Interest of Corporate 1,855,951,910 - -
Ltd. (“China Everbright ([hEYAZEE]) controlled interest Approximately
Group”) (note (2)) (F&E@) corporation  AflER 41.39%
REHARMER #141.39%

RRJ Capital Master Fund RRJ Capital Master ~ Interest of Corporate 318,360,000 - -
II, L.P. ("RRJ Capital”) Fund Il, L.P. controlled interest Approximately
(note (3)) ([RRJ Capital]) corporation NI S 7.10%
GER) RS ARAER 47.10%

JPMorgan Chase & Co. JPMorgan Chase & ~ Interest of Corporate 226,116,156 15,175,000 96,359,088

(“JPMorgan”) (note (4)) Co. ([BBA®]) controlled interest Approximately — Approximately — Approximately

(BisE@) corporation A afE 5.04% 0.34% 2.15%

RN AH R #5.04% #0.34% #2.15%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Notes:

(1) Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China and holds 55.67% equity interest of China
Everbright Group.

(2) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares of China
Everbright Holdings Co. Ltd. (“CE Hong Kong”). CE Hong Kong holds
(1) 100% of the issued shares of Datten Investments Limited (“Datten”)
which in turn holds 55% of the issued shares of Guildford Limited
(“Guildford”); (2) 100% of the issued shares of Everbright Investment
and Management Limited (“EIM”); and (3) 45% of the issued shares
of Guildford, respectively. Out of the 1,855,951,910 ordinary
shares, 1,758,215,910 ordinary shares are held by Guildford. The
remaining 97,736,000 ordinary shares are held by EIM. Accordingly,
China Everbright Group and Huijin are deemed to be interested in
1,758,215,910 ordinary shares held by Guildford and 97,736,000
ordinary shares held by EIM.

(3) The corporate interest of RRJ Capital was attributable on account
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dalvey Asset Holding Limited.
According to the register kept under section 336 of the SFO, as at
31 December 2014, RRJ Capital and its associates had interests of
318,360,000 ordinary shares (approximately 7.85% of the issued
shares of the Company before the Company allotted 430,000,000
ordinary shares to CE Hong Kong on 20 December 2013 pursuant
to a placing and subscription agreement dated 10 December 2013.
Details of the placing and subscription agreement were set out in the
Company’s announcement on 11 December 2013).

(4) The corporate interest of JPMorgan was attributable on account
through a number of its wholly-owned and a 49% controlled non-
wholly owned subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, the Company had not been notified
of any other interests by prescribed notices which had been
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2014.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS ISSUED
BY CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED,
A SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY

Share Options

The Company completed a reverse takeover of HanKore
Environment Tech Group Limited (“HanKore”) on 12 December
2014 (the “Completion Date”). On 15 November 2013,
HanKore (currently known as China Everbright Water Limited
(“CEWL")) granted 365,086,178 share options to certain key
management personnel and employees. The exercise period
for the share options granted is from 16 November 2014 to
15 November 2023.

As at 1 January 2014, the outstanding balance of the
share options of CEWL was 365,086,178 (before shares
consolidation from 10 to 1 (“Shares Consolidation”) on 27
May 2014). During the period from 1 January 2014 and before
the Completion Date, 36,508,606 share options (after Shares
Consolidation) were fully exercised and 11 share options were
waived due to the Shares Consolidation. As at the Completion
Date and as at 31 December 2014, there was no outstanding
share option of CEWL.

Warrants

As at 1 January 2014, the outstanding balance of the warrants
of CEWL was 64,134,198. During the period from 1 January
2014 and before the Completion Date, 47,692,402 warrants
(before Shares Consolidation) and 1,380,717 warrants (after
Shares Consolidation) were exercised.

As at the Completion Date and as at 31 December 2014,
details of the unissued ordinary shares of CEWL under the
outstanding warrants were as follows:

Date of issue Exercise price

ARAME AR R B AKBER LD
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Each warrant entitles the warrant holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in CEWL. The warrants do not entitle the
holders of the warrants, by virtue of such holdings, to any
rights to participate in any share issue of any other company.

As at 31 December 2014, except as reported above, no other
warrants to take up unissued shares of CEWL were granted
and no shares were issued by virtue of the exercise of warrants
to take up unissued shares of CEWL.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

Until 1 December 2014, Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip was an
independent non-executive director of HKC (Holdings) Limited
(“HKC”), a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
its business activities including property development and
investments, alternative energy investment, infrastructure, and
in particular, waste-to-energy and wind power, are considered
to compete or likely to compete with the business of the
Group. Although Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip was an independent
non-executive director of HKC, he did not engage in the daily
operation of HKC and thus the Group was capable of carrying
on its business independently from HKC.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report
and as far as the directors are aware, none of the directors
or their respective associates had any interests in a business
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group or any other conflicts of
interests with the Group.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set out
in note 25 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 266
and 267 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on
page 268 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local
eligible employees in Hong Kong under an approved defined
contribution provident fund (the “ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO
Scheme is administered by trustees, the majority of which are
independent, with its assets held separately from those of the
Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from
employees and employers at 5% each based on the monthly
salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may be used to
reduce the existing level of contribution by the Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
respectively. Employee can choose to contribute with a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to
June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

FREXFREES  RAFHTEBH  pES
FIA > SEFREFZEIBEAIRERER
SEEBERBFRAEBRET (THREERS
M) 2 EBHHEAEMAED  TEEREES
ERE AR SR -

RITERLEMES
ARRARAEER_FT-—OF+_A=+—RHZ
RITERREMEEFHITHER M B RERME5 -

hFEXEEME
AEBBERARAYHRFE EERNEESRE EH
BEHNFERFEC66E NF267H

IES
REBZFEYEFBEHNFRE268E °

BIRETE
ARFERABERELA S EREESRERAE
BHERALES ([BERKFTEROIFE]) - BX
B EMRDIGH B BEREA (KD BBILIER
ANER HEEBRARBZEENRFA - &
B M E E 1AM B RN BURGIET &I - »
B REE A#Hr5% o )R Z HR A MR EA
NEVRFAE MR -

E-_TTTF+_A—Hi AEBNBRERS
BEIMEATBEHEEIASESREREKAEER
R ARBIEEBERNRTIEMFINZEER
HAEFEATESFTE([ARERFE]) - BES
EARBYETATE Z TREEFURKEE -
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TR HREORAREEBALZI0%
5% EEHRAEREBEUNABAEETABE
30,0007t (== — M4 X ARl A& 25,0007T)
BER - mFrElfER 2 MRS EBEBAL -



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
the income statement during the year ended 31 December
2014 amounted to HK$54,859,000.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that
all independent non-executive directors are independent
and satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.13 (except that
for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under Rule 3.13(7), he had
been a non-executive director prior to his re-designation as
the independent non-executive director of the Company)
and the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By order of the board
Tang Shuangning
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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FEFABERARAR

Independent Auditor’s Report
R GRS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 116 to
265, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR IS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2015
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China Everbright International Limited

Consolidated Income Statement

FRBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &z —

T-mE+ = A=+ BLFEGAERTE)

2014 2013
—mE —T-=F
Note $°000 $°000
B zE FIT Ft
Turnover BERE 3 6,355,120 5,319,866
Direct costs and operating expenses BEENRARKEER (3,386,560) (2,944,458)
2,968,560 2,375,408
Other revenue H A es 4 219,163 144,190
Other income/(loss) EA A (E18) 5 32,321 (128)
Administrative expenses Se-§ (539,601) (392,238)
Profit from operations KERH 2,680,443 2,127,232
Finance costs B%E R 6(a) (380,775) (315,579)
Share of loss of an associate FTiEE 2 R REE (41) -
Share of loss of a joint venture &2t %EE (594) -
Profit before taxation BR T AT & 7 6 2,299,033 1,811,653
Income tax FiSHt 7(a) (533,990) (447,455)
Profit for the year NEFZEF 1,765,043 1,364,198
Attributable to: FE15 #B 15
Equity shareholders of the Company VNN 10 1,703,147 1,324,667
Non-controlling interests R 61,896 39,531
Profit for the year KEEBT 1,765,043 1,364,198
Earnings per share FRRER "

Basic K 37.99 cents fli  32.60 cents Ll
Diluted g 37.99 cents fli  32.57 cents il
The notes on pages 126 to 265 form part of these #HNFE126EEF2658 2 KT ANSHKIRE
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity 2 —& 5 o 4 R&F| 5 B I fEIR N F A Q7R

shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the — F .z SFBEENHIFE29(b)

year are set out in note 29(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SmEEXHEBRK

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) B2 —Z—NF+ - A =+—H It FE(AEBE)

2014 2013
—PaF —T—=F
Note $°000 $ 000
BsE Tt T
Profit for the year REZEZA 1,765,043 1,364,198
Other comprehensive income REEHMEE
for the year: WA
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEFTIEE Bk
profit or loss: ZHE -
— Surplus on revaluation of land and -BEERZ LR
buildings held for own use BFEHAH 12(a) - 107,153
— Tax effect relating to surplus on -FHEEBRZLHR
revaluation of land and buildings BF2EHARZ
held for own use HERSEEE - (16,641)
Items that may be reclassified B edi 52
subsequently to profit or loss: BamAXZHE -
- Exchange differences on translation of — — 2 &EIE X 7B 5 @®E
financial statements of subsidiaries FEZ bE 5= RE (361,274) 277,549
— Changes in fair value of TERSFAAEE
available-for-sale securities 129,260 (25,171)
— Tax effect relating to changes in fair - FEBHLANEEZSY
value of available-for-sale securities ARG E (19,113) 3,264
- Reclassification adjustment for amounts - B FIiE8H KR &5
transferred to profit or loss: ZEHOBRE
— Upon disposal of available-for-sale - HEFEESFE
securities (32,557) -
- Tax effect relating to the disposal -HEFERSFZ
of available-for-sale securities HEAT B2 4,883 -
e (278,801) ¢ 346,154
Total comprehensive income RFEEEZERALEE
for the year 1,486,242 1,710,352
Attributable to: JE(R &R 15 :
Equity shareholders of the Company RARIPRER 1,450,897 1,660,391
Non-controlling interests FEVE R M 2 35,345 49,961
Total comprehensive income RNEEZHEBALLTE
for the year 1,486,242 1,710,352

The notes on pages 126 to 265 form part of these financial R F126 B £ F2658 2 5k &Itk F M B W
statements. &~ — Bt
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China Everbright International Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet

FREERRR

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 7 —Z —

mE+=A=+—R(CABKEE)

2014 2013
—E-F —T-=
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
BizE T T Fr T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 12(a)
- Investment properties S -t ES 172,938 177,442
- Other property, plant and —HipE - BE
equipment B 1,510,878 1,374,138
— Interest in leasehold land - REL2HE
held for own use under BiEgRZ
operating leases FAE ke 35,717 35,739
1,719,533 1,587,319
Intangible assets EVEE 13 2,571,006 1,096,453
Goodwill FEES 14 834,845 20,793
Interest in associates BN AR 16 254,339 254,380
Interest in a joint venture /\ SEMEEDR 17 27,289 -
Other financial assets ﬁ’rmﬁﬁkéﬁ 18 229,012 176,710
Other receivables, HibfEIWEIE ~ ZE R
deposits and prepayments T TJ\IE 19 4,376,789 3,023,616
Gross amounts due from EURERFAHTRIE
customers for contract work FEkS] 20 12,630,020 9,035,315
Finance lease receivables Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%”ﬂli’&lﬁ 22 20,411 21,485
Deferred tax assets ERRBEE 27(b) 49,455 10,966
22,712,699 15,227,037
Current assets MEEE
Inventories 7E 21 117,450 75,524
Debtors, other receivables, FEUERZN « ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬂﬂl
deposits and prepayments Re RBEAT 19 1,973,567 1,376,719
Gross amounts due from FH&%}E'/\%’JIF 2IE
customers for contract work FEkS] 20 1,210,723 941,297
Tax recoverable EMZ@%FEIE 27(a) 34,684 35,359
Finance lease receivables MEMSEWIE 22 522 505
Pledged bank deposits BRIRITER 23 231,943 43,468
Deposits with bank BITEK 23 824,110 1,345,404
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 24 4,094,096 4,425,734
8,487,095 8,244,010
Current liabilities mEaE
Interest-bearing borrowings SEEE 25
- Secured —BHEm 1,348,783 939,146
- Unsecured — I 1,262,586 840,721
2,611,369 1,779,867
Creditors, other payables and ~ EfTBRZ « HAb B R
accrued expenses NEFER 26 2,302,381 1,733,757
Current taxation AHEIRIE 27(a) 67,660 58,413
498410 8,672,087
Net current assets MBEEFHE

3,505,685

4,671,973
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—E—PEFR
Consolldated Balance Sheet
=
meEEAER
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) A —Z—M4&E+— A=+—B (AB#1E)
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T T T T
Total assets less REAERABRE
current liabilities 26,218,384 19,899,010
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 25
- Secured —BHEA 4,612,439 3,381,733
- Unsecured —EER 1,912,703 1,759,521
6,525,142 5,141,254
Other payables H o e3R8 26 15,850 -
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEGE 27(0) 1,834,422 978,635
8,375,414 6,119,889
NET ASSETS BETH 17,842,970 18,779,121
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A K
Share capital: nominal value Bk EfE 29(c) - 448,371
Other statutory capital reserves  E A E & A - 6,957,043
Share capital and other PR Je B A SE
statutory capital reserves e 7,405,414 7,405,414
Other reserves Hia#E 8,857,842 5,968,850
Total equity attributable K Tﬂxi}f R
to equity shareholders
of the Company 16,263,256 13,374,264
Non-controlling interests JEiZAkiEzS 1,579,714 404,857
TOTAL EQUITY BB

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

31 March 2015.

Chen Xiaoping
BN
Director

EF

The notes on pages 126 to 265 form part of these financial

statements.

17,842,970 13,779,121

BN T AF=A=1+—HRERFAE

—Tro

=\

Wang Tianyi
FR&
Director

EZE

HRE126BEFE265B 2 M AL S
KZ—EpD o

R 75
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Balance Sheet
EEAEK

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) A = Z—P4E+— B =+—H (LUBKEE)

2014 2013
—E—MF “E—=F
Note $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
BisE T T Fr Fr
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #¥13 ~ iR M&E 12(b) 3,466 4,484
Interest in subsidiaries EPNEIE 3 15 8,680,195 6,867,022
Other financial assets B & & 18 3,899 3,899
8,687,560 6,875,405
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables, deposits HihEWIE - e &k
and prepayments SO 83,761 86,390
Deposits with bank RITER 23 717,358 1,300,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 24 1,105,920 2,352,446
1,907,039 3,738,836
Current liabilities mEaE
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 25
- Secured - HiEH 240,000 40,000
- Unsecured —EiRH 499,500 73,250
739,500 113,250
Other payables and accrued H A e 50B &
expenses JEZHE 50,179 35,692
789,679 148942
Net current assets MEBE TR 1,117,360 3,589,894
Total assets less BEERTHAE
current liabilities 9,804,920 10,465,299
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 25
- Secured —HiER 75,000 115,000
- Unsecured —EIRH 1,392,953 1,038,675
1,467,953 1,153,675
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JEfHTB A RIFUE 15 131,506 1,370,172

1,599,459 2,623,847

NET ASSETS BESH 8,205,461 7,941,452
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—T-mEFH
Balance Sheet
Pl ==
EESER
At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) A = Z—4+— f =+—H (At E)
2014 2013
—E-F —E-=F
Note $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
BsE T T T Fr
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR 29(a)
Share capital: nominal value A : EE - 448,371
Other statutory capital reserves  Ef 3= AR E - 6,957,043
Share capital and other PR Je B £ e & AR
statutory reserves B 7,405,414 7,405,414
Other reserves HiofEE 800,047 536,038
TOTAL EQUITY BReE 8,205,461 7,941,452

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on BEBZE@W _—_ZT—HF = A=+ —HZERFAI %

31 March 2015. 1T °

Chen Xiaoping Wang Tianyi
RN PN
Director Director
EF EF

HRF126 B EFE2658 2 MisE AL S B IHE
2 — 31D o

The notes on pages 126 to 265 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) B2 —Z—NF+ - A=+—H It FE(AEBE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAREELR.
Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Capital
capital premium reserve X _reserve
i RORE  RAEE  BEEE  AAEE
Note $000 §000 $000 $000 §000
ik r r r r r
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZB-=F
-A-B&&H 403841 3,370,598 - 70 3,300
Changes in equity for 2013: CE-CE R
Profit for the year REERA - - - - -
Other comprehensive income A 2ERA - - - - -
Total comprehensive income EFLONCES - - - - -
Dividend approved in respect of the BHELERIRE
previous year 29(o)(i - - - - -
Shares issued under share option scheme  BIEBRIE BT 2k 29(c)(i) 1,530 12,559 - - (3,300)
Issue of ordinary shares BILER 29(c)(i) 43,000 3573316 - -
Transfer to reserve fund BRZRER - - - - -
Capital contributions received by FRENEAAR
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from * &Wx%%}lﬁﬁ g2
non-controling shareholders mES - - -
Dividend declared in respect of BERAEERE
_ Mhecuentyear .. B0 S o o o SR
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-—=§
TZA=T-Bz&sH 448371 6,956,073 - 70 -
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZE2-ME
—R—Hz&% 448,371 6,956,973 - 70 -
Changes in equity for 2014 “E-MEEREE:
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - -
Other comprehensive income LUt ON - - - = =
Total comprehensive income TENARE - - = = =
Dividend approved in respect of HELEEZRE
the previous year \ 29(b)(ii - - - = =
Transition to no-par regime on RZE-ME=A=REE
3 March 2014 ERZEENE 20()() 6,957,043  (6,956,973) - (70) -
Transfer to reserve fund BREEES = = = = -
Capital contributions received by FRENBAAR
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from FERREMEMAE
non-controlling shareholders LES - - = = =
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi JEFE R 55 32 - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR 31(a) - - - - -
Dividend declared in respect of BEERAEE MRS
(. hecumentyear e 200 R o o o o ST
Balance at 31 December 2014 ﬁé:?ﬁ—m
+ZA= L 7,405,414 - - - -
The notes on pages 126 to 265 form part of these financial %@E’\%QBE F2658 2 Wik At S0 MRk

Z—&bin

statements.



Annual Report 2014

—T U
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARERRES
Goodwill Property
arisingon  revaluation Non-
consolidation reserve Exchange Fair value Other Reserve Retained controlling Total
GAER nx reserve reserve reserves fund profits Total interests . equity
EfymE O EfEE 0 EREE  DABRE  EbER BEE  REERN e FEkER  #Eaew
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T S S T T T T T i

(986) - 688,990 (4,144) - 182,135 3,705,955 8,349,759 320,650 8,670,409

- - - - - - 1324667 1,324,667 39,531 1,364,198
- 336,724 10,430 346,154

- 0512 67119 (21907) - - 1324867 1,660,391 19961 1,710,352
- - - - - - (o111 (121610) - (1o1611)
- - - - - - - 10,789 - 10,789
- - - - - - - 3616816 - 3616816
- - - - - {00875 (100875) - - -
- - - - - - - - 34,246 34,246
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - T Tm s - (ege) (410 - (141880
(986) 90512 956,109 (26051) - 283010 4666256 13374264 404857  13,779,12
(986) 90512 956,09  (26,051) - 283010 4666256 13,374,264 404,857 13,779,121
- - - - - - 1,703,147 1,703,147 61,896 1,765,043
- - (334723 82473 S S - (52250 (26551  (278,801)
- - (334723 82473 - - 1,703,147 1450897 35345 1,486,242
- - - - - - (224186)  (224,186) - (224,186)
- - - - - 126460  (126,460) S S -
- - - - - - - 5 86,127 86,127
- - 19,972 - (2,181) - - 17,791 (131,428)  (113,637)
- - - - 1,868,676 - - 1868676  1,184813 3,083,489
- - - - - - (224186)  (224,186) - (224,186)

(986) 90,512 641,358 56,422 1,866,495 409,470 5,794,571 16,263,256 1,579,714 17,842,970
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
an EE@/)ILE%‘:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &% —F— 04+ = A =+—RH I FE (LB HE)

2014 2013
“T—F —E-=F
Note $'000 $'000
(h T T
Operating activities BT
Profit before taxation BE AT EF 2,299,033 1,811,653
Adjustments for: SRR
Depreciation e B(c) 79,481 70,080
Amortisation of intangible assets B E R B(c) 34,674 19,433
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land held BRELEHERSEERZ
for own use under operating leases HE T s iy 6(c) 1,256 1,184
Finance costs IBER 6(a) 380,775 315,579
Dividend income from listed securities &R B WA 4 (10,477) (3,539)
Bank interest income H|ATH SHA 4 (62,437) (27,339)
Share of loss of an associate Frib & N RIEE M -
Share of loss of a joint venture ket XEiE 594 -
Gain on sale of listed securities HE FiEs Wz 5 (32,557) -
Net loss on sale of other property, LERMNE  BER
plant and equipment REZFRER 5 236 128
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes [EXEE & (26,036) 1,547
Changes in working capital: g@ﬁéx :
Increase in inventories FEEMm (36,466) (8,353
Increase in debtors, other receivables, FEMERTR - EAb R
deposits and prepayments B RIB IR (915,072) (481,807)
Increase in gross amounts due from FEHQE}E/\Z’]IF 08
customers for contract work rEEEIE (2,127,256) (2,229,425)
Increase in creditors, other payables and EEHEE%’X - E b EREUE R
accrued expenses fE=T B LN 402,581 296,019
Cash used in operations KEMEIA 7R (11,630) (234,840)
Interest received 2R S 62,437 27,339
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) BRREARLFE
income tax paid (TRE ) FTEH (173,341) (156,403)
Net cash used in operating activities &£ EEBREHE2ELFE (122,534) (363,904)
Investing activities REZH
Payment for purchase of other property, BEHMYE BE
plant and equipment HEZTIAE (216,220) (56,360)
Payment for additions of intangible assets MERTEEZE (869,846) (246,130)
Increase in non-current portion of prepayments  #EANTE 2 IAIEBIEAEH (5 (243,997) -
Payment for capital contribution to an associate ¥ &Ht& A 72 FUE = (254,380)
Payment for capital contribution to a joint venture JTE& &% 7 FIA (27,877) -
Payment for subscription of an investment fund ~ REREE S 2 78 (15,503) -
Net cash acquired from acquisition of WHERB AR e
subsidiaries Re 58 31(d) 262,690 -
Proceeds from sale of listed securities HE EMEFAEHRE 91,091 -
Proceeds from sale of other property, e & Hin lﬁﬁF‘&
plant and equipment RIBFTE R 535 191
Dividend received from listed securities B EEER S 10,477 3,539
Repayment from finance lease receivables MERERWFIEER 491 477
Repayment from loan receivable JERE FUEK 49,860 -
Decrease/(increase) in deposits with bank RITERRL,/($E0) 519,483 (397,749)
Net cash used in investing activities BEESMBA IR S RE (438,816) (950,412)
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—E-FFH
Consolldated Cash Flow Statement
n‘/T\ IE’@/)“JE%
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) B2 —Z—NF+ - A =+—H It FE(AEBE)
2014 2013
—mE —T-=F
Note $'000 $'000
Fisx T T
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans R TT Aﬁﬂgﬁ I8 3,208,668 3,403,959
Repayment of bank loans BEETE (2,021,772) (2,597,320)
Capital contributions received by FrE W%
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from e HXHQ%HQHXFE
non-controlling shareholders ZHER 86,127 34,246
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling Wk I iR 2 2 X
interest (113,637) -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BOLBRAEHE - 3,616,816
Proceeds from shares issued under R BRERT 2T
share option scheme {5 5UA - 10,789
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits 2RI (EM),JHL (47,489) 4,135
Interest paid BB (380,775) (315,579)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of EHK’D\ ARERE
the Company (448,372) (263,491)
Net cash generated from RMEEBMEL 2R EFHE
financing activites 282,750 3,893,555
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and  B&RIBEEEY
cash equivalents (R )/ijj[]a}%ﬁ (278,600) 2,579,239
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzHR&k
1 January ReEEY 4,425,734 1,806,868
Effect of foreign exchange Ex&g s pE
rates changes (53,038) 39,627
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-A=+—H
31 December ZBEeRBELEEY 24 4,094,096 4,425,734
The notes on pages 126 to 265 form part of these financial #HNWE126E % Bz RILEMB®REK

statements.
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FEFABERARAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& SAERRSN - FTE S EIABEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this
financial year and the comparative period continue to
be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangement for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FEREN  FrE & 2B E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THER(£)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) MR FEHELE

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associates
and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— investment property (see note 1(i));

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
securities (see note 1(g)); and

— derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.
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BMEERABZEREAEMRIELAEZ
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A - BRHEFZEZBNEFEES
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FEFABERARAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5

RSN - A BAERETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company:

- Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27, Investment entities

- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

- Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

— Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives
and continuation of hedge accounting

— HK(FRIC) 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new
or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as
defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities
are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss. These amendments do not
have an impact on these financial statements as the
Company does not qualify to be an investment entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FEREN  FrE & 2B E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THER(£)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) é“l‘BlﬁZﬁEfJ(fé)

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as they are
consistent with the policies already adopted by the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures
required for an impaired asset or cash-generating unit
whose recoverable amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The amendments have no impact
on these financial statements as the Group has no
impaired non-financial assets.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives
and continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets
certain criteria. The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as the Group has
not novated any of its derivatives.

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a
liability to pay a levy imposed by a government should
be recognised. The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as the guidance
is consistent with the Group’s existing accounting
policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& SAERRSN - FTE S EIABEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(q) or (r)
depending on the nature of the liability.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 7ERESN + FiE S BB E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@:TEER (£)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) BB RIFZERELR(E)

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture (see
note 1(e)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 1(m)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& SAERRSN - FTE S EIABEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (m)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate and
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

(f)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 1(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(w)(vii)
and (iv).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(m)). Dividend income from equity securities
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policies set out in note 1(w)(vii).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 348 7ERR5 -
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

U]

1)

Other investments in equity securities
(continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(l)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 1(w)(vi).

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(z)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, from 20 to 50 years after
the date of completion.

— Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

— Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the

remaining term of the
lease, if shorter

—  Furniture and fixtures 51to 10 years

— Motor vehicles,

electronic equipment
and other fixed assets

3to 12 years

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 348 7ERR5 -

B S BNBEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

U]

The intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(m)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets are
amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Environmental energy project
operating rights 20 to 30 years
— Environmental water project
operating rights 25 to 32 years

— Alternative energy project
operating rights 30 years

— Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years

— Computer software 5 years

— Backlog contracts 3 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, except that land held for own use
under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely that the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(j). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 1(m). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 348 7ERR5 -
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Leased assets (continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term except where the
property is classified as an investment property
(see note 1(i)).

(m) Impairment of assets

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& SAERRSN - FTE S EIABEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@FHKER(£)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued) (m) EEHB(E)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities () BRAFBZRERE M EW A S
and other receivables (continued) (%)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is MFEEMLEREE FEEER
determined and recognised as follows: WREEBENT

For investment in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements (see
note 1(e)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 1(m)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note

1.(m) ).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 7ERESN + FiE S BB E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EZ&&HEE (£)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued) (m) EERB (£)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities () RAZFFILE R M EWXKEZFE
and other receivables (continued) 1B (&)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an W H iz R EEBESER M
impairment loss decreases and the decrease W MEE LEERERER
can be linked objectively to an event occurring wEAEZENER  RIBE@RREE
after the impairment loss was recognised, the FEiEgHEERE - FBEBEZ

impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(1)

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
debtors included within debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.
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B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FEREN  FrE & 2B E)
FEGFTBOR (#)
(n) #&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(n) Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise construction materials,
biomass fuel, spare parts and consumables used in the
repairs and maintenance of the environmental energy
projects, environmental water projects and alternative
energy projects, are carried at cost less provision for
obsolescence (if any). Cost is calculated using the

FEFTZEEEDE  £9RE - B
REERRERRERER - BRKH
HE RFEERERE S RERER - H
BERABEREREBEERE(DE) T
IR o NAERMNEFHRAARXGTE -
ERERAGTER  BFHEGEZEEAEBEZR

weighted average cost formula. When inventories are BakPERRMAX -
consumed, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.
(o) Construction contracts (o) BEEN
Construction contracts are contracts specifically BEANEARNERFPIEE —HEE

negotiated with a customer for the construction of an S HHEEMARER 264 BB

asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able EPHRIERERFTCEZZLEHEBRD - 64
to specify the major structural elements of the design. WA Z &5 BUR SR M 3E1(w)(i) © 8
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out MR SEMEFTREEANZKNE - RIEH
in note 1(w)(i). When the outcome of a construction RAE ,Ei&iﬁﬁﬂizlﬁ,ﬁ’]nﬁk&rﬁ&
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are RETH o A HNEER A A 4
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of DB A - Ee B Hﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁw
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting T o MR ST IIRE N 2K

period. When it is probable that total contract costs RGO AREERRERERALZ S -
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

RBEMREHELETHZIRAN » &
BEEAZKAFEMEEERZBAN -
BRECHERZEBBRZERRSIZK
AAR XREERBERTR2INSTE

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in

the balance sheet as the “Gross amounts due from WEPEATEFIALEE I (EREE)
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the [ENEPANIRZELE]|(EAE
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract work” B)(RAEBER) - BFHAXNZEE
(as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet SRIBTE [ FEMERFR - EMEIRGRIE « e
paid by the customer are included under “Debtors, RIBRFIEIALR o

other receivables, deposits and prepayments”.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(m)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
1(v)(i), creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Company provides retirement benefits to all
local eligible employees in Hong Kong under an
approved defined contribution provident fund
(the “ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO Scheme is
administered by trustees, the majority of which
are independent, with its assets held separately
from those of the Company. The ORSO Scheme
is funded by contributions from employees and
employers at 5% each based on the monthly
salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may
be used to reduce the existing level of contribution
by the Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the ORSO Scheme. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 10% and 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, respectively.
Employee can choose to contribute with a cap
of monthly relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000
prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the retirement schemes operated by
the local authorities. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is the required contributions under the
schemes.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Employee benefits (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@:TEER (£)
(u) Income tax (u) FABH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)
(i) Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(v)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses in respect of that guarantee i.e.
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(w) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Revenue from construction contracts
When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue
and expenses are recognised in profit or loss
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference
to surveyors of work performed. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. An expected loss on a
contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Revenue from service concession arrangement
Revenue relating to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the work
performed, consistent with the Group’s accounting
policy on recognising revenue from construction
contracts (see note 1(w)(i)). Operation or service
revenue is recognised in the period in which
services are provided by the Group. When the
Group provides more than one service in a
service concession arrangement the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the relative fair
values of the services delivered.

Revenue from environmental energy project,
environmental water project and alternative
energy project operation services

Revenue from environmental energy project,
environmental water project and alternative energy
project operation services are recognised when the
related services are rendered.

(iv) Finance income

(v)

Finance income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Construction management fee income
Construction management fee income is
recognised when the related service is rendered.

(vi) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(x)

(v)

(vii) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

Repairs and maintenance
Expenditures on major overhaul, repair and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is both the Company’s presentation currency and
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

I ==
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before
1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THER(£)
(z) Borrowing costs (z) BERA

Borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(aa) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(aa) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(it

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@:TEER (£)
(ab) Segment reporting (ab) 2 WS
Operating segments, and the amounts of each EEDEHRMBMKRAE2®mMEHIBIE
segment item reported in the financial statements, B2 DRERSEERTAEES
are identified from the financial information provided TR Rt & o 56 M AP s E R IR i E 2B

regularly to the Group’s most senior executive REFAEESZSEEREABZUBE
management for the purposes of allocating resources B #EE o

to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not HUBREMS - ERHEEZEHHT
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the CEEREEW MO EBEYBEABRUL

ARUAREERRBHIEE « £ER
FieE - BRPRRSAS - HHERS
RUBHHRAZ A REERAME
HERBABRS BT S LR
ZyREHBARES LRABHE

segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of

the regulatory environment. Operating segments which B B4R E 2R -
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2 & & #Er &1

(a) EEERAAEEET BRRBAEZRE

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer
(“BOT”"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”) and Build-
Operate-Own (“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its
environmental energy projects, environmental water
projects and alternative energy projects.

gl i
EEEAERAASESTBRE - GF
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RS S 1L HF
ANEBRERRKRERER - RIFKBE
BRFERER  FILEE—EZE -
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)

The Group concluded that all the BOT and TOT
arrangements and certain BOO arrangements are
service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC) 12,
because the local government controls and regulates
the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry
of concession right agreement, the infrastructure
has to be transferred to the local government at nil
consideration. Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is
used in the service concession arrangements for its
entire or substantial useful life.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12(c), 14 and 30 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation
of investment properties, goodwill impairment and
financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 1(0) and 1(w)(i),
revenue and profit recognition on an incompleted
project is dependent on estimating the final
outcome of the construction contract, as
well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activity undertaken by the Group, the
Group makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached, the “Gross amounts due from customers
for contract work” as disclosed in note 20 will
not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the balance sheet
date, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of
the customers to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing
of the receivables, customer credit-worthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial
conditions of customers were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Impairment losses on goodwill

As explained in policy note 1(f), goodwill has to be
allocated to a cash-generating unit or to a group of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination for the
purpose of impairment assessment, which requires
significant judgement. The Group determined the
group of cash-generating units to which goodwill
was allocated reflected the lowest level at which
goodwill was monitored for internal reporting
and was not larger than an operating segment in
accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv) Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values
of investments in subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures, fixed assets, intangible assets and
other financial assets may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered impaired, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. The carrying
amounts of these assets are reviewed periodically
in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate
precisely fair values because quoted market prices
for the Group’s assets are not readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and
amount of operating costs.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

2t R EE (&)

(b) EREEHRAEEM 2GH(F)

(v) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassess these estimates at each
balance sheet date. Additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@) Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are construction,
environmental energy project operation (waste-to-
energy power plants, methane-to-energy power
plants, industrial solid waste landfills and hazardous
waste landfills), environmental waste water
project operation (waste-water treatment plants,
reusable water treatment plants and water source
heat pump projects), alternative energy project
operation (photovoltaic energy projects, biomass
power generation plants and wind power projects),
environmental technology, construction management,
equipment manufacturing, property investments and
investment holding.
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EEBEDEEmE (&)

(continued)

(a) Turnover (continued) (a) EX£5(E)
Turnover represents the revenue from construction EXEEERERBNE  KREIRREE
services, revenue from environmental energy projects, RIEEB « RIRKBIER RFERER 2
environmental water projects and alternative energy BERBWE - MBKA - Bl AR
projects operation services, finance income, rental IREEEWRA - FRDESEBPE
income and construction management fee income. ROSEEFEWABRINEENT -

The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

2014 2013
—T—MF —E-=F
$000 $'000
Tz Tt
(restated —
see note 3(b))
(EHR—
SHEE3(0))
Revenue from environmental energy RIRAEIRTE B 2iE RS s
project construction services 3,165,556 2,516,997
Revenue from environmental water IRIR/KFTE B 2iE Ris s
project construction services 112,079 449,779
Revenue from alternative energy eEIRIA B SR s
project construction services 349,821 150,804
Revenue from environmental energy RIRAEIRIE B & & RS U e
project operation services 843,943 642,529
Revenue from environmental water IRIR/KFTE B & 2 RIS s
project operation services 627,960 564,772
Revenue from alternative energy eEIRIA B & & s s
project operation services 292,818 246,454
Finance income BATEIRA 954,513 744,386
Gross rentals from investment REMEHSETE
properties 4,825 3,742
Construction management fee income Ti2EIE & U A 3,605 403

6,355,120 5,319,866
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(a) Turnover (continued)

3 EXBAOHHRE (#)

(a) B8 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
has transactions with a (2013: four) local government
authority in the PRC which individually exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenues. The revenue from
this PRC local government authority during the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to $649,622,000
(2013: $953,152,000). The revenue from the remaining
three PRC local government authorities during the
year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to a total of
$1,743,910,000.

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation services,
environmental water project construction and
operation services, alternative energy project
construction and operation services and finance
income derived from local government authorities
in the PRC amounted to $5,797,030,000 (2013:
$5,089,324,000) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The revenues are included in “Environmental
energy project construction and operation”,
“Environmental water project construction and
operation” and “Alternative energy project construction
and operation” segments as disclosed in note 3(b) to
the financial statements. Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in
note 30(a).

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following five reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments.

(b)
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£1,743,910,0007T °

HE-_Z-—MNE+-_A=+—HIt#HF
€ REFEEMERT#EZIRRER
HERERBELERBEKZE  BERKHB
HEgEREERB N E - MERE
BEEMEERBEKE XM BEBALR
%8 5 5,797,030,000 L ( — & — =4 :
5,089,324,0007T) - B @M EET A [ IR
REREBRENEZ DI~ [IRERK
HEBRENEE | D& FEERE
BREkES |0 (FRUBRRMT
3b) - BAZEEFHRZEFREER
%2 B E KT FES0(a) ©

DEHE

AEEZZBBERRBEI D /RZED
I AEIR - RIBABABHE RS
ERERBFEMANEESSEEEZ
BERZ—BEHR AEEE2HRT T5I
AERATHRENE - NAEBELES HHE
AREEDER - VA TR THmE DB
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of waste-to-energy
power plants, methane-to-energy power plants,
industrial solid waste landfills and hazardous waste
landfills to generate revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services as well
as finance income.

Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction, upgrade and operation of waste-
water treatment plants, reusable water treatment
plants, surface water treatment plant and waste
water source heat pump projects to generate
revenue from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance income.

Alternative energy project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of photovoltaic energy
projects, biomass power generation plants and
wind power projects to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation
services as well as finance income.

Environmental technology and construction
management: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection technology
research projects, the provision of construction
management services and manufacturing of
environmental protection project equipment to
generate management and consultancy fee income
and revenue from sale of equipment.

Property investment: this segment engages in
the leasing of office premises to generate rental
income and to gain from the capital appreciation of
the properties’ values in the long term.

3

EETE N D EEHRE (&)

(b) /‘“Bi&*t( A& )

RREERERZENES - BEK
DEEBBENES ni&?‘@f
BRIEEM - TXEERREYIEIES
N fEREIRIB S LAE?%HXEZ@HW%H&
73 EE R E R BA -

%%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw'miﬁ
DEEEEE  MENEESKE
B hAKEARER - HRKE

fiﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁiiﬂ RIBE - ARREGE
SR s B R E M
WA e

HeERBEBZENRES : WEKD

MEBRERELNXNNKREEHEAB
EMERBREBRMENEERE -
VABRERE 3 iR 7% e e ~ & 2 IR TG W
a3 MW e

RRMBREIRER - WEHDH
FBRETRAEARRMHIAR - =ZH#
TREERGERERRELER
B AREUERERERER KA
R HE Wt -

MERE  WEBHEEREER
NEEM - UHRBRESKA - ARk
KEHEBEZREEREESHRR
Wiz
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

EERBLADE®RE (&)

(b) D EEHE (&)

The Group redefined its business divisions during the
current year to align with its organisational structure
for the purpose of managing its strategic direction and
business acquisition. Accordingly, for the presentation
of segment information, methane-to-energy power
plants and waste water source heat pump projects,
previously included in “Alternative energy project
construction and operation” segment, have been
reclassified to “Environmental energy project
construction and operation” and “Environmental
water project construction and operation” segments
respectively. Goodwill has also been included in
segment assets for the monitoring by the Group’s
senior executive management. The comparative
segment information has been reclassified to conform
to the current year’s presentation.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interest in associates
and a joint venture, deferred tax assets and current
assets with the exception of investments in other
financial assets, intercompany receivables and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
current taxation, deferred tax liabilities, creditors,
other payables and accrued expenses attributable
to the activities of the individual segments and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
with the exception of intercompany payables.

RAFE  AEEREEARRERE &
MAEETEB DR - WEBEAEE
REDAREFUBEE - Bt - B0
MEBZ2®ME - RIATFHEREAR
BENGER | DB R ERE TR NS KR
ARBB D RIEH D EERREIREAR
EERESE DR [RRKKIEB 2E
NEZ|DE - BENCFADMEE
NEAEBSERERELETER - A/
DMZLBERCEHHE - UTE
FEZEHRHN -

() #EbR#E BEREE
SO BRRAERDEBEZERD
BEmE  AEEZESEEERT
JIREERSEATRED A ZE
mBERAE:

DHBEBRMBALEE B
BEE BE BERARRAELRE
o BEEHBAEERRDEE -
HErBREREMMBEEZRE
SEARRRZ BRFRBAREMDE
XEE -NHMEEERSEERND
MZEBESREE 2 NMHIEA -
EEBIARE - BAKRR - HME
NREREFERARAEED HBE
EEBEZEE HETEEEEAR
BIfE] Z FEHRR -
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.
However, other than reporting inter-segment
sales of equipment and provision of construction
management services, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including technical know-
how, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “EBITDA” i.e. “earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning EBITDA, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including
inter-segment sales and revenue from construction
management services), interest expense from
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.

3 =ZXH

DEERE ()

(b) “Bi&ﬁt(ﬁ)

(i

DEEAE BEREAE(E)
H& s RFAXT2ERTREDEM
ROz ERAEEZRAXHE M
"*BZﬁFFﬁFEZTﬁ%‘JZ%%Wﬁ
EEBAER - A B’%#&i"
uBF’ﬁZ RBHERREHRZTIREE
RIEHN » K= BRI S — /‘*NET/\
Z B (B FE R MBS ) I A&
BER -

AR#BED RN ZERRANA
[EBITDAL - B0 TBR A B ~ 18 -
MERBHEMABF] - 7%7 i
EBITDA @ RNE&EE 2 B F i 3t = A i
BRNMEM D 2IEE (flan: ESM
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S BEREMEREEHE T RIE
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EEHRDIREE)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) D EBIRE (&)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () DEEiE EEREEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable BHE-_Z—NFR-_ZT—=F+=
segments as provided to the Group’s most H:—i——EIJJ:if CAEBERER
senior executive management for the purposes of o BE 5 8B &% B8 R E A 1 M) AN 5 B &%
resource allocation and assessment of segment SEEERHBZATHRESBER
performance for the years ended 31 December N

2014 and 2013 is set out below.

Environmental energy ~ Environmental water Alternative energy  Environmental technology
project construction — project construction  project construction and construction

and operation and operation and operation management
BRERER FRKBEE ESEE BRHRR Property invesiment Total
BiRE: BiEhE: BihEe TR nERE £

014 2013 2014 013 2014 013 014 013 2014 013 014 2013
IRE CE-cf CRNE CR-zf CSNF CF-0f CRQE DT CEPF CF-0f CRME DRk
$000  §o00  $000  $000  So00  $ooo - SO0  fooo  $0O0  §000 S0 $000
r i T fr S0 i i i i r r i
(restated) [restated) (restated) (restated)

EE) (E®) (%) EE)

Revenue from extemal customers — RESMREFYNE 4,652,019 3626413 1,090,754 1200740 643917 398,568 3,605 403 4,825 3,742 6,355,120 5,319,866
Inter-segment revenue il e - - - - - - 086,378 661,893 - - 086,373 661,893

Reportable segment revenue BYgsoidhe 4652010 3626413 1050754 1200740 643917 308568 930078 662296 485 3742 7201498 5961759

Reportable segment profit BYaL A 8E7

(EBITDA) (EBITDA) 2,152,185 1540204 ~ 570800 670770 259,502 136444 616392 385,79 4,299 3216 3,603,178 2,736,520
Intrest income from bank deposits  FEEHEMA 1851 198t AT0 675 1618 B 362 2840 - - 05 1797
Interest expense flg s 180,212 1326% 72195 59982 2,761 1450 31978 43987 - - 32206 251,205
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 13,448 7489 24238 17187 46538 45180 2028 17697 - LI | ) VAT

Adaitons to fxed assets, intangiole ~ £EEFEE -
assets and non-cuent portionof -~ EFAEREN
prepayments TR HDEDR 502,042 340,188 249,004 12292 651,084 163372 55,261 24,763 - - 1457421 530,615

Addtions to non-curent porfion of ~ EE EEIFIER

other recevables and depostts A RENEP

and gross amounts due from ANTEESE

customers for contract work LENEEH 3453061 2809185 2,936,560 727,516 - - - - - - 6,389,621 3,626,701
Reportable segment assets BYRE,HTEE 152053%6 11216368 9,863,862 5,175,580 2288700 1505710 1,207,206 1030748 173,140 200,150 28738244 19,128,574

Reportable seqment iabilies ~ ZFHE7A58E 4717607 3939159 3074963 1369736 800387 541980 1000338 882925  B2% 8102 Q01617 6761902
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EEBRDIMEE)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 7B E (45) . \
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) Zéi#ﬁ%tﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁ CBF - BER
profit, assets and liabilities RIEZHE
2014 2013
—E-NF ==
$'000 $°000
Tt Tt
Revenue g
Reportable segment revenue AT S DR s 7,291,493 5,981,759
Elimination of inter-segment revenue K5 5 ZBRIU S (936,373) (661,893)
Consolidated turnover A EER 6,355,120 5,319,866
Profit Pl
Reportable segment profit BETHmEDEHERF 3,603,178 2,736,520
Elimination of inter-segment profit 38 5 2B R AT (733,511) (493,237)
Reportable segment profit derived KEXREBINATEEZ
from the Group’s external customers 7B T &5 ZBRE A F 2,869,667 2,243,283
Depreciation and amortisation e e (115,411) (90,697)
Finance costs Mi%ER (380,775) (315,579)
Unallocated head office and AOBBANT K
corporate income EWRA 43,106 9,401
Unallocated head office and FAOBCAA RN A M
corporate expenses PERE (117,554) (34,755)

Consolidated profit before taxation REBRBIRI&F 2,299,033 1,811,653
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

EEBAD
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D BB ()

(b) 2 EB3RE (&)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) BT#HESH Kz B BER
profit, assets and liabilities (continued) BEZHE(E)
2014 2013
— P4 —E-=F
$'000 $°000
Tt Tt
(restated)
(E®)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BATHEDEEE 28,738,244 19,128,574
Non-current other financial assets IEmBEMIIEEE 229,012 176,710
Unallocated head office and PN e NI
corporate assets TEEE 2,232,538 4,165,763
Consolidated total assets IREBEBRE 31,199,794 23,471,047
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities BATREDILEE 9,601,617 6,761,902
Unallocated head office and RO BLAER 7]
corporate liabilities PEEE 3,755,207 2,930,024
Consolidated total liabilities e BafEEE 13,356,824 9,691,926

171 |1
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers, (ii) the Group’s fixed
assets and intangible assets and (iii) the Group’s
non-current portion of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments and non-current portion of
gross amounts due from customers for contract
work. The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided. The geographical location of the assets
is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of fixed assets, and the location of the
operation to which they are allocated, in the case
of other receivables, deposits and prepayments,
intangible assets and gross amounts due from
customers for contract work.

EERBLADEWHRE (&)

(b) DS (42)
(iii) Hb[E EH}

TREJEBOAEEREINAR

Pz Wz

(VA EEZEEEER

B E B N (i) AN 5 B 2 H b 8 WK
B BE RFENRIAZ AN
REWEFPAEHNTERIBLE I
BB D 2 FRAE IR - P PR
BERGREMES D  c BEMRE
WwEiREEBERMELE (ABEEE
EME)  ARBRZEBZAEN
#h (AR A RUGRIR - e KT
HBREEREBREFANTIRE
HEBEME)ED -

Non-current portion of
other receivables,
deposits and
prepayments and
gross amounts due from

customers for contract work

ERL e
Revenue from Fixed assets and EeRBRTER
external customers intangible assets EWEEANTIRIE
RENREE i ETEEREVEE BE FAESH
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mF ZF-=f ZF-QmE - C—FT-mNF —FT-=f
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T
Hong Kong i
(place of domicile) (e ) - - 56,188 58,005 - -
Other parts of the PRC ~ HEIE (it 6,347,674 5312832 4,176,137 2,559,621 17,006,809 12,058,931
Germany B 7,446 7,034 58,214 66,146 - -
6,355,120 5,319,866 4,290,539 2,683,772 17,006,809 12,058,931
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4 OTHER REVENUE 4 Huplhzs
2014 2013
—ET—F —F—=
$’000 $°000
Tz T
Bank interest income SRITHIBIA 62,437 27,339
Dividend income from listed securities Em#ESH 2R BERA 10,477 3,539
Government grant* AT B & 13,692 4,273
Value-added tax refund™ 188 (B B 4B Fif 100,224 94,316
Others Hib 32,333 14,723
219,163 144,190

*  Government grant of $13,692,000 (2013: $4,273,000) was
granted during the year ended 31 December 2014 to subsidise
certain environmental energy, environmental water and
alternative energy projects of the Group in the PRC. There were
no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the
receipts of those grants. There is no assurance that the Group
will continue to receive such grant in the future.

** Value-added tax refund of $100,224,000 (2013: $94,316,000)
was received during the year ended 31 December 2014 in
relation to environmental energy and alternative energy project
operations of the Group in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts
of such tax refund. There is no assurance that the Group will
continue to receive such tax refund in the future.

*k

REBE-Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLEFE &
BB T BN €©18,692,000T (=2 —=
4 1 4,273,0007T) * LARBEAE B E FHBIRR
BEIR - RIRKIS RFTAERIER - BIEmA B EZ
LS 2 REKGHFRHAEIE - B AT TR
BAEER ARG AIHEREZEHYS -

REBEE-_ZT—NFEF+-_A=1+—HLEFE  £&
BEPEHERRERRMERELED E
B IEE R 100,224,000 (—Z T — =4 -
94,316,0007T) ~ HiEE BRI Z EHAEREH
ZARERIGHRNAEIE - BRI TRRBLAEER
B &G A R RS R ERRE -

5 OTHER INCOME/(LOSS) 5 HaU A (EE)
2014 2013
—E—E —FT—=

$°000 $°000
Tt Tt
Gain on sale of listed securities HE FmESF 2z E 32,557 -

Net loss on sale of other property, HEEMYE BEK&
plant and equipment BB FER (236) (128)

32,321 (128)
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B 35 B & A
BERAMEMER,(GTA)

2014 2013
—T—OF —ZT—=
$’000 $°000
Tt Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) MHBEMA
Interest on bank advances wholly HARAFAEHEEZ
repayable within five years RITIERZFI B 221,422 155,630
Interest on other bank advances HEMIRITE R R E A
and other loans B 2FE 159,353 159,949
380,775 315,579
(b) Staff costs (b) B TR A
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FUR IRFT B R
retirement plan 54,859 29,054
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHAMET 484,106 350,477
538,965 379,531
(c) Other items (c) Hfb1E R
Amortisation B 5K
— interest in leasehold land —IREBEEHEE
held for own use under BEERAZ
operating leases HE TS 1,256 1,184
- intangible assets —\mEAE 34,674 19,433
Depreciation e 79,481 70,080
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) P& 5 g8, (Was ) /# 58 46,133 (20,149)
Auditors’ remuneration % BRI BN
— audit services — EAZIRTE 7,716 3,900
— other services —HE MR 5,602 6
Operating lease charges: KEHEEBR -
minimum lease payments =EEEE R
— hire of premises —WEHRE 10,568 10,530
Research and development costs i % K BB AR 19,997 8,377
Rentals receivable from investment FERREYERS
properties (2013: less direct outgoings —E—=F 1R
of $119,000) H# & H119,0007T) (4,825) (3,623)
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBEmRIMEN

INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

(a) REBBERATZBER :

represents:
2014 2013
—T—MF —=—=
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong RHATRIE — B BEREH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year NEEEE - -
Current tax — PRC Income Tax ZAEFIIE — b EATEFH
Provision for the year RSB 210,399 149,707
Over-provision in respect of prior years  iB1F & E B # BT (27,136) (2,311)
183,263 147,396
Deferred tax EIER IR
Origination and reversal of temporary ERNERES
_ differences e#gE 350,727 = 800,059 |
533,990 447,455

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 as the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong sustained a loss for Hong

Kong Profits Tax purpose.

Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits under
taxation ruling in the PRC. During the year, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the standard

TR -

tax rates or fully exempt from income tax under the MIBEE -

relevant tax rules and regulations.

RBEBFEHME  AREE_T—IT
FER_TE—=F+_A=+—HItFE
AEBEAEBEIHEER © Ut
AEBEWERPEHREARBBFEH

X 2 IR IR ER T B AT B
TTEEBRER2%HE - FA - IRIEFM
B ERRER  ETHENBRRA
RIZEB R Z50% M AT IR EFTFH
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 BREBRRIMENE)
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REABEGFE2RESIHESHAR
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: ZHER -
2014 2013
—EF —E-=F
$000 $'000
Tt Tt
Profit before taxation [ F5 B & A 2,299,033 1,811,653

Notional tax on profit before taxation, — ZRIBEREEAER 2

calculated at the rates applicable AP S TR B BLBR R AT

to profits in the tax jurisdictions BANFEZBETIE

concerned 583,977 460,427
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N AJHIE Sz HH 2 T 1B 52 2 46,297 40,320
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBUMA 2 RIBFZE (16,154) (12,192)
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax AIZEHFERIEHRRESR

exemption in the PRC BNz HIBLE (162,355) (131,578)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KEAMAERERZ

recognised Tﬁmﬁﬁzmﬁ%; 21,536 16,132
Tax effect of withholding tax on TERRATIS TR P B E D

undistributed profits of PRC P2 R%ﬂﬁﬁwﬁ%%

subsidiaries 87,825 76,657
Over-provision in respect of prior years B F[E B E BT (27,136) (2,311)

Actual tax expense BEERBBEYH 533,990 447,455
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEM=
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BIETE B R ANRDI(£622F ) ER115E78
78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies I WELEFGBBRMEDN(E32E)E
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the 161 KIFEEZEEMENT -
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
is as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2014
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary  contributions Total
fees  E& - 2 bonuses BAKGE  —T-WF
550 KEDNMR [Si=praa i Fak)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T T T Fr
Executive directors HTES
Tang Shuangning BEE - 30 - - 30
Liu Jun (note (a)) 2 E(MiEa) - 15 - - 15
Zang Qiutao (note (b)) wIE (i EEb) - 790 - - 790
Chen Xiaoping R/ - 2,194 5,800 - 7,994
Wang Tianyi IXE - 1,599 1,800 - 3,399
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =758 - 1,417 1,700 449 3,566
Cai Shuguang £ - 1,253 1,600 49 2,902
Independent BT
non-executive EF
directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip B 250 60 - - 310
Mar Selwyn S8RE 250 60 - - 310
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE 250 60 - - 310
Zhai Haitao B§E 250 60 - - 310

1,000 7,538 10,900 498 19,936
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEM=e(®)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2013
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary  contributions Total
fees  H& 2B bonuses RIKGTE] Z2—=F
EEXka REMF = BYIETEAT R k]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITES

Tang Shuangning EEE - 25 - - 25
Zang Qiutao (note (b)) kR (b)) - 1,699 - - 1,699
Chen Xiaoping e /N - 2,175 5,280 - 7,455
Wang Tianyi ITXE - 1,585 1,700 - 3,285
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =352 - 1,325 1,600 290 3,215
Cal Shuguang KEN - 1,263 1,500 31 2,794

Independent BUMITES

non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip B 200 45 - - 245
Mar Selwyn E4% 200 50 - - 250
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZHE 200 50 - - 250
Zhai Haitao 285 200 50 - - 250
800 8,267 10,080 321 19,468
Notes: B &

(@) Mr. Liu Jun was appointed as executive director and Vice- (a) ZIEEER T NFENA+ _HEZTANTES
chairman on 12 August 2014. FElER -

(b) Mr. Zang Qiutao resigned as executive director and Vice- (b) B EBEXER T —NFN\A+_HBTHITESH
chairman on 12 August 2014. BIERE -
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9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 &= EMI{ERIA L=

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four ThHERaTMERALH EREz(=
(2013: four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed E-—=F:WNEB)REE FRNMSFE
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of RHTFHSHE - 8 T —REANALTZME &
the other individual are as follows: BB
2014 2013
—T-NF —=—=
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Salaries and other emoluments e RHEMME 1,117 1,204
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 1,500 1,300
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIE R 64 29
2,681 2,533
The emoluments of the individual with the highest EHE=HFMENA LT ZHMWER AT E
emoluments are within the following band: :
2014 2013
—ET-MF —T—=F
Number of Number of
individual individual
Emolument band =g FER] AE AE

$2,500,001 - $3,000,000 2,500,0017T - 3,000,0007T 1 1
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B AR » FTE S TS E)

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10 2R QB IR ek & A
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders RRARAIRREEEFEEBNBEEIE
of the Company includes a loss of $116,919,000 (2013: 116,919,0007T(=Z —=%F : 58,758,0007T) 2
$58,758,000) which has been dealt with in the financial PIAZRRA T2 B TEEREA o

statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s FHSBEERNRAREENEF,(EBIE) 2
profit/(loss) for the year: R -
2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Amount of consolidated loss attributable BIIARR R 2 B HRE
to equity shareholders dealt with in the N REELERE BB
Company’s financial statements (116,919) (58,758)
(Provision)/reversal of impairment loss on FEW I BB A B3R IR 2 FE B
amount due from a subsidiary B8 (BE) B OB (2,600) 9,900
Gain on disposal of subsidiary to HEMBAR TS —
a subsidiary NSl e - 16,681
Dividends from subsidiaries attributable to AT REEREF S -
the profits of the previous financial years, WA FARLET 42
approved and paid during the year LnpE=RNCI i) 831,900 15,277
Company’s profit/(loss) for the year KRABIRFERZ BT,
(note 29(a)) (E18) (FEE29(a)) 712,381 (16,900)
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity BN RENERRQRRE 2R EFIBEHNM T

shareholders of the Company are set out in note 29(b). 29(b) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 7ERESN + FiE S BB E)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $1,703,147,000 (2013:
$1,324,667,000) and the weighted average number of
4,4883,712,000 ordinary shares (2013: 4,063,329,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

Annual Report 2014
—E-WFEFR

11 ZRAEF
(a) BREARF

FREKRBFTIIRBAQ R L BRMEE
JE {5 B F11,703,147,000 L (=& — =
4 :1,324,667,00070) N FREBEITE
PR B AN HE 7 15 804,483,712,000 % &
B (ZZ— =4 : 4,063,329,000/% &
BRRFE - HEtE AT -

181 1N

Weighted average number of ordinary shares B R T 15 2L
2014 2013
—T-MF —F—=
000 000
T +
Issued ordinary shares R—A—BB%1T
at 1 January LA 4,483,712 4,038,412
Effect of ordinary shares issued EETERRCTE
(note 29(c)(ii) (Bt #E29(c)(ii)) - 14,137
Effect of share options exercised BEITEERECFE
(note 29(c)(iii)) (B EE29(c)(iil)) - 10,780
Weighted average number of W+-—A=+—82
ordinary shares at 31 December TmAT RS 4,483,712 4,063,329

Diluted earnings per share

(b) ER#E TR

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $1,703,147,000
(2013: $1,324,667,000) and the weighted average
number of 4,483,712,000 ordinary shares (2013:
4,067,373,000 ordinary shares), calculated as follows:

FREERR TYIRARQF) LB R E
{5 &F1,703,147,00070( =B —=4F :
1,324,667,0007T ) K& I i A% H0 & 19 &
4,483,712,000x EBR (=T —=4F :
4,067,373,000f% L@BAX) 5T E - HETE
FRT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) TR IE T2 (#5F )
2014 2013
—T-MF —F—=
‘000 '000
+ +
Weighted average number of R+=—A=+—HZ
ordinary shares at 31 December TmAT A S B 4,483,712 4,063,329
Effect of deemed issue of shares under R BIRBE AR QT
the Company’s share option scheme FERR ST Bl B BT
for nil consideration (note 28) & in 2 72 (H7E28) - 4,044
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt+_A=+—H8B2
shares (diluted) at 31 December T E AR INRE ST 8
(%) 4,483,712 4,067,373
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12 FIXED ASSETS 12 EEEE
(a) The Group (a) ~&£E
Motor Interest in
veicles, Ieasehold land
Leasshold  electronic held for own
improvements,  equipment Use Under
fumitreand ~ and other operating
fixtures ~fived assets \eases Total
lndand  Plantand  HEhE 8. Construction Ivestment RS fired assets

buldngs ~ machinery £5. BTRER  npogess  Sublold  properties ﬁ%ﬁ %Z BREE
HHRET EREREE  GARRE ApEREE  fRIE It RENE EELHER 3
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

i i i i i r i r i

Cost or valuation:  FEESfEE -
At 1 January 2014 NZE-IE
H

-A- 826,513 601,139 2,721 149,850 - 1,600,229 177,442 38,195 1,624,866
Bchgeadusimens  EXE 119 (2250 04 B R0 @15 @54 (1380 (52999
Additions g
-through acquistionof -~ &8l

subsidiaries HELA 15,50 6,583 1,330 8,925 9,650 41,993 - 2,481 44,474

- others -k 6,073 3,603 1,240 21,121 177,583 216,220 - - 216,220
Disposals il - - (1,800) (4,344) - (6,144 - - (6,144)
At3 Deoember 2014 R-F-PE

tZA=t-8 832,145 588,825 35,563 112411 185,173 1,814,183 172,938 39296 2,026,417
Representing: R
Cost IAE 832,145 586,625 35,563 112411 185,173 1,814,183 - 39206 1,853,479
Valuation - 2014 [fE--3-m& = 3 = - - - 172,938 - 172,938

832,145 588,825 35,563 172411 185,178 1,814,183 172,938 39206 202647

Accumulated SHNEREY
depreciation and
amortisation;

At 1 January 2014 NZE-RE

-A-8 86,873 61,948 17,649 68,621 - 235,091 - 2,456 231,547
Bchengeadusiments  E % By pHy B (1,799) - 58 - 0 (60
Charge for the year IEENE 2,349 29,001 4,798 21,333 - 79,481 - 1,256 80,787
Wiitten back on disposal ~ HiERAR - - (1, 740) (3,639) - (5,379) - - (5,379
31 Decomber 2014 RZE-ME

tZA=1-H 110,383 88,231 20,169 84,522 - 303,305 - 3,579 306,884

Net book value; BATE:

M 31 December 2014 R-E-RE
+t-R=1-H 121,762 500,594 15,304 87,955 185,178 1,510,878 172,938 3,17 1,719,538
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12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 BIEBEEE)
(@) The Group (continued) (a) ="&EH (&)
Motor Interest in
vehicles, leasehold fand
Leasehold  electronic held for own
improvements,  equipment Use under
fumitreand ~— and other operating
fixtures fived assets leases Total
Lndand  Pentand  BEME HE- Construction vestment RELZEE  fved assels
buldngs ~ mectinery K€ EFRER  npogess Sl popetes  #fEEFZ  BEAE
HiRET  EBEREE  GHRRE HpERdE  AEIE Mt RENE EELHER 4%
§000 §000 §1000 §000 §1000 §000 §1000 §000 §000
i i i i i i i r i
Cost or valuation:  FiABHEE
At 1 January 2013 WoE-ZE-F-B 794081 612,036 22,386 109,906 67615 1,606,724 10,731 39,018 1,656,468
Echange adusiments B % 079 18,049 081 3,484 o 43784 2,582 1,196 47522
Additions g 2,661 587 6,600 39,129 7378 56,360 - - 56,360
Disposals e - - (345) (2,669) - (3,014) - - (3,014)
Surplus on revaluafion  BfERE 107,153 - - - - 1018 - - 1018
Reclassfication ENnE 49,190 (£9,190) - - - - - - -
Adustments s 133 [1579) - - - () - (1974 (19,020)
Transferred from landand g RIETER
buldings toivestment~~ TR
properties (184,732) - - - - (873 16419 ]
Transferred from BRETEIR
construction in progress 40,554 35,380 - - (75,93 - - - -
M3 December 2013 RZEF-=%
+tZA=1-H 828,513 601,139 9,721 149,850 - 1609229 177,442 361% 1,824,866
Representing: Kx:
Cost IAE 828,513 601,139 9,721 149,850 - 1609229 - 3619% 1647424
Valuation - 2013 [fE--5-=% - - - - - - T - TR
828,513 601,139 0727 149,850 - 1609229 177,442 3819 1824866
Accumulated ZNEREH
depreciation and
amortisation:
At 1 January 2013 A-5-2F-F-§ 84,003 33,99 12,974 83177 - 184,209 - 1212 185,421
Exchenge adustments B¢ 8% 674 1,503 294 1629 - 4,100 - 60 4160
Charge for the year RERTE 2079 26,450 4712 16,179 - 70,080 - 1,184 71,264
Writen back on disposal ¥ EERE - - (381) (2364 - (26%) - - (2,69)
Eimiation on revaluation B £ (20,603 - - - - (0609 - - 060
At31 December 2013 R-E-=k
o TOREMCR GES b e eeer - 4% - TS
Net book value: KEYE
At31 December 2013 R-E-=%
+ZA=+-8 4,640 539,191 12,078 81,229 - 1374138 177,442 30,739 1,587,319
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12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 B EBEEE)
(b) The Company (b) &2 F
Office Leasehold Furniture Motor Total
equipment improvements  and fixtures vehicles fixed assets
WAERE HENERE HGHREE 8 ETEELE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2014 RZE-—NE—AF—H 5,649 2,409 467 2,223 10,748
Additions BE 146 - - - 146
Disposals HE (24) = = - (24)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-—mF
+-RA=1t—-H 5,771 2,409 467 2,223 10,870
Accumulated ZEME
depreciation:
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mF—A—H 1,683 2,409 307 1,865 6,264
Charge for the year AEEHE 993 - 46 121 1,160
Written back on disposal HERED (20) - - - (20)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mEF
IR TEAETAR 2656 240 8 bt it |
Net book value: BREHE -
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MF
+ZR=1+-H 3,115 - 114 237 3,466
Cost: KA :
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—Hf—H 3,112 2,409 467 2,223 8,211
Additions BE 2,620 - - - 2,620
Disposals HE (83) - - - (83)
At 31 December 2013 RZB—=F
+=A=1+-H 5,649 2,409 467 2,223 10,748
Accumulated ZEHHTE -
depreciation:
At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=%—-f—H 1,031 2,409 261 1,763 5,464
Charge for the year AEEE 734 - 46 102 882
Written back on disposal HERED (82) - - - 82)
At 31 December 2013 R_F—=
o T=AETR 1688 2409 o7 1866 6264
Net book value: BREHE -
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F

+ZRA=1+-8 3,966 - 160 358 4,484
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12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 Bl EBE(E)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (c) MEZAAREFE
(i) Fair value hierarchy () R EEERS
The following table presents the fair value of the TRIIRAEEREERRKEE M
Group’s properties measured at the balance sheet EEHEZMELRE  EEME
date on a recurring basis, categorised into the BRERBBNBREENEIZR /2
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS AEFEIMREZ=ZHAREERE
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a HHl e ARBEFEMFEBE AR
fair value measurement is classified is determined SBATNHERMAAEE T
with reference to the observability and significance RIEEREEREMET :
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:
— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using - E—AMGE:ERELEE
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted (AIREFTEEHEREESER
prices in active markets for identical assets or TERRM IS 2 RCHABERE) T
liabilities at the measurement date BZANE
- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using - FfHE: FREZREE
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which (AR EE—RREZATMN
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant BB 8%  UWERERT
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are AEBREN 2 EZHR)GTEL
inputs for which market data are not available NAME - TABRIGE 2 8URE

AEHETMSBEZ RIE

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using - B=RMHE: FRATITEREE
significant unobservable inputs LEEEBHAECANE

Fair value at

31 December Fair value measurements as at

2014 31 December 2014 categorised into
wogome  UBBIR-FT-MET-A=t-RZANEHE
+-A=1+—-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZARME E-R E-H E=R
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
The Group AEE
Recurring fair value mEEHRLETE
measurement
Investment properties: RENE:

- Commercial - other parts ~ — ¥ — B EfitE
of the PRC 172,938 - - 172,938
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12 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

B S BRNBEE)

12 BIEEE(E)
(c) MEZAABEHE(E)

Fair value at
31 December

(i)

DA ERIERF(E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into

2013
W-B——f THEIR-_E—=F+_A=1t—HZzAfEHE
+-A=t-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AN E—8 E_5 E=H
$°000 $000 $'000 $°000
T T T T
The Group KEE
Recurring fair value REMH AR EE
measurement
Investment properties: REWE:
- Commercial - other parts ~ — ¥ - B EMitE
of the PRC 177,442 - - 177,442

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
(2013: Nil), or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013:
Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
balance sheet date in which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were
revalued as at 31 December 2014. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, Shenzhen Zhong Heng Xin Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd., who have among their staff
members of China Appraisal Society with recent
experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The management has discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

RBE-_ZT—NF+_A=+—H
HFER E-RARE_H2EL
BIMBB(ZF—=F:8) I
BEMEEEASIELE=R(=F
—ZF 8) AKEZBERERE
BREZHBEEABIADAER
BRI EHERE -

AEEMARENFER TN
FH-_A=1t—HETEMH - EHE
HEVAEMTRIITHEEEE
FEERDAET  ERETART
BMEEFHHESE  UYHEASE
(CRZE TS &2 E S VIR P g il
BER EEEATHRFERSH
HETHER  SEEASHAE
Bhat s b E SRR R AEAER -
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12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 Bl E BEE(E)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued) (c) MEZARBETEE)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (il BEE=ZRAAEGFEZ EN
Valuation techniques Unobservable input
i E R TRAIBRGE 2 8UR
Commercial investment Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on
properties — other parts ML B quality of the buildings
of the PRC EHBFERE 2 RE(TE)

HAREYE - P HEEME
Adjustment on timing of
comparable transactions

BRI LA 5 R Ve 2 J

The fair value of investment properties located R BEEME ZIREWE LR
in other parts of the PRC is determined using REDNERAMSLEREEE @ HE&
market comparison approach by reference to 2EAHEBRYEREG T HKER
recent sales price of comparable properties on ERHBEZEPER  BEmMAEASE
a price per square metre basis, adjusted for a EEFEE BT R EiTE(ET
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the HIHE X HLEAE) AR AR
Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales RHZEHRELAE - WEFEE
and the timing on the comparable transactions. REABRER S R # &R
Higher premium for higher quality buildings and a SHZHHREBRELENRAE 98
favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable BHFEMSZAAERS °

transactions will result in a higher fair value
measurement.
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12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 BEBEE)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued) (c) MEZAAREBEFEE)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) BEE=ZRAAEFFEZEF(E)
(continued)
The movements during the year in the balance FR - ERE=FDABEFELH
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as BEINT:
follows:

$'000
Tt

Commercial investment properties pRIEEYE

— other parts of the PRC — B H 3 [ &
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NFE—A—H 177,442
Exchange adjustments bE 5, 33 B (4,504)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—FE+=_A=+—H 172,938
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 10,731
Exchange adjustments b 5, 3 B 2,582
Transferred from land and buildings to A+t MEFEESIREYEE

investment properties 164,129
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+_H=+—H 177,442

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain REE-_ET—=F+-_A=+—H

properties previously occupied by the Group as
owner-occupied property were transferred to
investment properties and a revaluation surplus
was credited to property revaluation reserve to
account for the difference between the carrying
amounts and the fair values of the properties at the
date of change in use.

Exchange adjustments of investment properties
are recognised in other comprehensive income in
exchange reserve.

No valuation gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 as there has been no change in the fair
values of the investment properties since previous
valuations.

LFEE  ETREBAKEERZ
ME(BERME)BREREYE -
FTERMEEGRBEFAELR
7 MARBEMENAEEEA
HZREEREQAABEZEER -

BREMEZELABNELFHE T
ZEMEEBEER -

REBEE-_ZT-NFR-FT—=F
TZA=+—BLFE  XERIE
BREREAGEEREREER R
RAAREMEZAAER E—RA
BARY EES -
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12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 BEBEEE)
(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is (d) MEREFE2IFTAOT :
as follows:
The Group
REHE
2014 2013
—F-AmF  —F-=
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
In the PRC A [
Hong Kong: 5
— medium-term leases —FhEHE 47,604 49,640
Other parts of the PRC: R E i@
- long leases —REHEE 5,862 -
— medium-term leases —HHEE 876,951 905,181
930,417 954,821
Representing: R
Land and buildings T REF 721,762 741,640
Investment properties REME 172,938 177,442
894,700 919,082
Interest in leasehold land held for own  BIEKEEHEFEAR
use under operating leases ZHEE RS 35,717 35,739

930,417 954,821
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB ERRYN » A& EEABHETE)

12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 BEBEE(#)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
The Group leases out properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
three to ten years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property
are disclosed as investment property.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

(e) RELLHERH ZEETEE

AEBRBELLHEHEYE - AEA
E-RVFRP=Z=1F YLrAEEE
# o ERABGFEEENE o £t
HESTBRELEES -

PIERBEEHERAVRETAREY
EEBIMEOIRBERREDE -

AEEREMNIEENEEHELEAR
EUHMREHEEREB|MOT

as follows:
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
—ZE—UF —_EF—=

$’000 $°000
Tt Tt
Within 1 year —F R 8,165 7,894
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFTA 17,081 21,909
After 5 years AFIE 15,627 19,983

40,873 49,786
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk A ERRIN » A TS E)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 ML EE
The Group AEE

Environmental ~ Environmental Alternative
energy project  water project  energy project
operating operating operating

rights rights rights  Patents and Computer Backlog
RREEEE  RRABEE  HEREE  trademarks software contracts Total
B LY EeR  ENRAR BREL  ARMEN x|
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

T T T T T T T

Cost: B :
At 1 January 2014 R-E-NE-A-H 332,226 21,731 786,061 - - - 1,140,018
Recassffication EEipEd - 131,414 (131,414) - - - -
Exchange adjustments ~ [ER 1% (12,157) (8,208) (20,399) (395) ul (188) (41,444)
Additions BE
-through acquisition of ~ —EBENEB LA

subsidiaries - 760,001 - 27,683 1,107 32,084 820,875
- others ~-Hf 355,015 592 349,821 22,904 - - 728,332

At31 December 2014  R-Z-mE

TZA=1-8 675,084 905,440 984,069 50,192 1,100 31,896 2,647,781

Accumulated ZitEd -
amortisation:

At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-H - 1,672 41,893 - - - 43,565
Reclassification EEipyd - 3,430 (3,430) = - - -
Exchange adjustments ~ [E5 % - (218) (1,185) (53) (1) ul (1,464)
Charge for the year REEEHE - 9,141 19,240 5,323 79 891 34,674
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME

tZA=t-A - 14,025 56,518 5,270 18 884 16,775

Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2014 RZE-IF
+-A=1t-H 675,084 891,415 927,551 44,922 1,022 31,012 2,571,006
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 13 ML BEE (&)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
Environmental  Environmental Alternative

energy project
operating rights

water project
operating rights

energy project
operating rights

RRERER  REKKIER HragRIER Total
B EelE EekE mm
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T T T
Cost: BN
At 1 January 2013 NZE—=F—A—H - 21,131 615,629 636,760
Exchange adjustments B 3 A 4,477 600 19,628 24,705
Additions e 327,749 - 150,804 478,553
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=1+—H 332,226 21,731 786,061 1,140,018
Accumulated Y
amortisation:
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=%—-A—H - 812 22,384 23,196
Exchange adjustments fE i - 36 900 936
Charge for the year AEEHH - 824 18,609 19,433
_At31December2018 ~ R-F-=Ff-A=+—H - 162 41893 43565
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 December 2013 R-E-—=F+-A=+—H 332,226 20,059 744,168 1,096,453

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Direct
costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

REEEHFAIFARE

AREEERIA -

BamRe [BEEK
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14 GOODWILL 14 P52
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—F-mE  ZF-=
$'000 $'000
Tz T+
At 1 January »w—HA—H 20,793 20,793
Additions through acquisition of FHREE B AR E
subsidiaries (note 31(a)) (FizE31(a)) 814,052 -
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 834,845 20,793

Impairment tests for cash-generating units BERECHSEEENZERAN
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating AREFSEEESRERE T EBLES S

units (“CGU”) identified according to business segment as MRS HEESMN
follows:
The Group
r&EHE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Environmental energy project construction RIRBERIBE 2iE &
and operation B 11,255 11,255
Environmental water project construction IRIRKEIEB BER
and operation B 823,590 9,538
834,845 20,793
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14 GOODWILL (continued) 14 2B (E)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

The goodwill of $11,255,000 and $9,538,000 was
allocated to the individual CGU in “Environmental energy
project construction and operation” and “Environmental
water project construction and operation” respectively. The
recoverable amount of the respective CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five year period. Discount rates
of 10% to 12% (2013: 10% to 12%) have been used for
the value-in-use calculations. Management determined
the budgets based on service agreements governing the
relevant operations. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
No impairment is considered necessary at 31 December
2013 and 2014.

Included in the goodwill as at 31 December 2014 was
goodwill of $814,052,000 arising from the acquisition
of subsidiaries during the year (see note 31(a)), which
is attributable mainly to the expected synergies from
combining operations of the Group and the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, such goodwill
has been allocated to the “Environmental water project
construction and operation” segment.

The recoverable amount of the “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segment was based
on fair value less costs of disposal.

The Group’s testing approach included a comparison of
the market capitalisation of “Environmental water project
construction and operation” segment, which is a group
listed on the Singapore Exchange, with its net assets.
Under this approach, the market capitalisation is the fair
value of the “Environmental water project construction and
operation” segment. Cost of disposal were assessed as
insignificant. The market capitalisation was categorised as
Level 1 fair value measurement.

BERECRELEENZRBAEE)

5 211,255,000 7T 9,538,000 E 7 Bl %
EFEIReEESN [RIREREREE
FEBE IDE R [RRKBEE ZEREE ]
DE o BB SEEBMN 2 JWE S ERE
FREBEFE - B AERERBE 2 E
ZHFEUBEE RS REMET - AREHE
FRABEZBERE10%E12% (T —=
F10%E12%) - EEERBEEEEHEE
B REHE  EXBBES - FIE A
R A a8 R M B9 2B R 2 BR B AT R
B RZE—NHFER_FT—=F+=A
=+—H  BFEEREMFEE-

R-EBE—NE+-A=+—BHEQEF
A U B8 BB A B AT EE A 2 2 814,052,000
TL(RMFES31(a) - EEX BIRBEAEEER I
BARAMEREE 2 ERBRE RS M

= o
A

AAEBARAME  AEBECSHRIKE R
RKEIRBRESEL |08 -

[RRKIGIRE BERES | Dz Al RE S
BB AAERBEXAAERS

AEEZARATEBER RFRKBEB Z
EREE I DB(RHMEXBALEHZE
B)2EAMEEEEEFBFLR - RE
W% BAMER [REKBEEZER
BEIDWMZRARME - BERKKFE BN
TRE - BEAMERLBAFE —MARER

=
E°
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14 GOODWILL (continued) 14 8 (E)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

As a significant portion of the net assets of the
“Environmental water project construction and operation”
segment consisted of financial assets and liabilities which
are accounted for under HKAS 39, the Group also adjusted
the market capitalisation to exclude the fair values of the
financial assets and liabilities as disclosed in note 30(f) for
the purpose of deriving the fair value of the non-financial
assets in the “Environmental water project construction
and operation” segment. The derived fair value was then
compared with the carrying amount of the non-financial
assets (including goodwill) of the “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segment. The Group
considered the derived fair value to be a Level 3 fair value
measurement.

Under both approaches, the estimated recoverable
amount exceeded the carrying amount and the Group
concluded that the goodwill was not impaired at 31
December 2014.

None of the goodwill acquired to be deductible for tax
purposes.

15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

15

BEHECRELERENZRBAEE)

R [IRRKHIE B BERES |9 B RAR
MNEEFHRBRUWBEEMMBAEGR
BEEBGHEREIRALK) - BHAEETR
ERBEANE SRV BEERTHAR
ZARBE(RHEI0NHE)  EEAE R
RKBIRBRZESEE | DEFMBEELZ
DNARME - 2% FEABRIAER [RFEK
BHEBRERER | DMIMBEE(RER
B)ZEREEFELR - AKER/FEMRR
ZRREBE=RAAEHNE -

RIE EMME L - AT IRE 2 BBE Rk
HE BAKEHEER_T-—OF+_H
=t HREAEIRRE -

WRERTISREE S TR MM -

N
|

El=UNCIE:

I
The Company
PAN/NG)
2014 2013
—T-MF —E—=
$’000 $’000
Tz T
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, E LMD, HERE
at cost RACAE 603,944 603,944
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGB 9,514,423 7,698,650
10,118,367 8,302,594
Less: Impairment losses W FEEEE (1,438,172) (1,435,572)
8,680,195 6,867,022

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and not expected to be recovered within one year.

BT ER—FAEE -

FEU BN BRARREAREERR 2R R
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary
unless otherwise stated.

15 BB A RIiEZ (&)

L/{T1%§|Ju“j¥T$‘EE EES

EXECIWMBER

BEXBEBX

AER - RRBEHAIN

ﬁﬁ%ﬂxfﬁi’ﬂﬁﬂé AR

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLY
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  held by the held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company B/ AL BETR  AKEZ AALA mHiE  Principal activity
NZEZE REZIE BRBRAER  BERER #h REHE  FEER
China Everbright Water Limited Bermuda  2,487,261,000 shares 78% - 78%  Investment holding
(“CEWL) BRE of $1 each REER
FEEAKBERRE 2,487,261,000/%
(TRAKH]) BREEIT
2R D
Everbright Alternative Energy PRC $125,800,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Dangshan) Co., Ltd.* i 125,800,0007C operation and
(note (c)) maintenance of
FAFER (B BRAR biomass power
(M7E(c) generation plant
Rt BE - EER
HEREENEY
BEH
Everbright Biomass Energy PRC $127,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Hanshan) Ltd.* (note (c)) e 127,000,0007T operation and
FREMEER (W) BB AR maintenance of
(k) biomass power
generation plant
Gl S A
BERTENERE
Everbright Changzhou Hi-tech PRC USD23,000,000 60% - 60%  Design, construction,
Environmental Energy F 23,000,000 7T operation and
(Changzhou) Co., Ltd.* maintenance of waste-
(note (d)) to-energy power plant
KRERHRRER(EM) Rt BEEER
BRAR" (Fzkd) BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental PRC USD15,000,000 90% - 90%  Design, construction,
(Yancheng) Solid Waste i 15,000,000% T operation and

Treatment Co., Ltd.* (note (c))
FRRR (L) EERE
BRAF (M)

maintenance of
industrial hazardous
solid waste landfill
EURS= )
BERETIELR
ElsBEEIE RS
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15 B A RIS (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

197 1B

BERERERLD
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  held by the held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company AL/ s A AL BBIR  A%£EHZ RART mKE  Principal activity
NGER ! RE IS HRBEAEH  BRER o2 REHE  TEEH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB138,986,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Boluo) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) FE AR138,986,0007T operation and
HRRRER(BR)ERAF" maintenance of waste-
(PEH(d) to-energy power plant
FEt o BE EBER
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB137,520,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Changzhou) Co., Ltd.* H AR#137,520,0007T operation and
(note (d)) maintenance of waste-
FABREER(EM)BBRAR" to-energy power plant
(FiaE(d)) Rt BE - BER
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD29,300,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Jiangyin) Ltd.* (note (d)) 23 29,300,000 T operation and
HABREROLR)ERAFN maintenance of waste-
(PE(d) to-energy power plants
Rt BiE - EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB305,460,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Jinan) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) F AR #305,460,0007C operation and
FRRRER BRI AERAA maintenance of waste-
(B &E(d)) to-energy power plant
Rt BiE - EER
BERBEUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB350,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Nanjing) Ltd.* (note (d)) i AR350,000,0007T operation and

RRRRER(R)ERAA
(FirE(d)

maintenance of waste-
to-energy power plant
HERENREER
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

15 B ARIEZR (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEREERLD
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  held by the held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company B/ s A AL BBIR  AfEZ RARF mHE  Principal activity
NSES ] LEE S HBRBRAER  BRER o2 REFE  FEEH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB186,667,000 80% - 80%  Design, construction,
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) F AR #186,667,0007T operation and
HRRRER(ZR)ERAF maintenance of waste-
(GEI) to-energy power plants
Fat o BE EBER
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $135,300,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Pizhou) Ltd.* (note (d)) e 135,300,0007C operation and
HARRRER (BN )BR AT maintenance of waste-
(PEH() to-energy power plant
Rt BEBER
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB98,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Rizhao) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) 23 AE%098,000,0007T operation and
K RRRER(BR)BERAR" maintenance of waste-
(GEO) to-energy power plant
Rt BE - EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $174,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Sanya) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) e 174,000,0007C operation and
KABRER(ZE)ER AR maintenance of waste-
(FZE(d)) to-energy power plant
Rt B EER
BERBEUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $138,430,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.* i 138,430,0007C operation and
(note (d)) maintenance of waste-
HRRRER(SH)ERAE" to-energy power plant
(FI7E(d)) FEt B EE

EERBAREER
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15 P B8 A= (48)

199 1

Proportion of ownership interest

HAREREmL

Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  held by the held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company AL/ s A AL BBIR  A%£EHZ RART mKE  Principal activity
NGER ! RE IS HRBEAEH  BRER o2 REHE  TEEH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD15,840,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Sugian) Ltd.* (note (d)) FE 15,840,000% 1T operation and
HRRRER(BB)AERAE maintenance of waste-
(PEH(d) to-energy power plant
Fit o BE EBER
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB568,000,000 Note (a) - Note (a)  Design, construction,
(Suzhou) Ltd. (“EB Energy F AR %568,000,0007T fii7% () Bt 7% () operation and
(Suzhou)")* (note (d)) maintenance of waste-
FABREER(EM)BRAR to-energy power plants
(T ReER(EM) ) Rt BE - BER
(FirE(a) BERBNRESH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD30,990,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Weifang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) 3 30,990,000% T operation and
KRBRER (T )ERAA maintenance of waste-
(Bt () to-energy power plant
Rt BiE - EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB262,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Zhenjiang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) F AR#262,000,0007C operation and
HABRREER(BETL)BBRAR" maintenance of waste-
(P5E(d)) to-energy power plants
Rt BiE - EER
BERBEUREER
Everbright Environmental PRC RMB88,200,000 100% . 100%  Manufacturing of
Equipment Manufacturing i AR¥88,200,0007T environmental

(Changzhou) Limited*
HRRRRBEE(RM)
BRERE"

protection equipment

BERRR
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

15 B ARIEZR (&)

BEREERLD
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  held by the held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company B/ s A AL BBIR  AfEZ RARF mHE  Principal activity
NSES ] LEE S HBRBRAER  BRER o2 REFE  FEEH
Everbright Environmental PRC USD46,000,000 100% 100% - Provision of construction
Protection (China) Limited* H 46,000,000 7T management services
FABR(PE)ERD A and investment holding
RETRERRBR
REAZR
Everbright Photovoltaic Energy PRC RMB122,090,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction
(Zhenjiang) Limited* H AR#122,090,0007T and operation of
HARKREER(ET)ERAR" photovoltaic energy
plants
FEt o RERES
KREER
Everbright Water (Dezhou) PRC USD12,280,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Limited* (note (&) H 12,280,000% T operation and
HARKIE (BN BRAF maintenance of waste-
(Mizke)) water treatment plant
Rt BEBER
BERTTKEER
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) PRC RMB180,000,000 70% - 70%  Design, construction,
Limited” (notes (c) and (e)) F AR %180,000,0007T operation and
*AKBOIR)BERAR! maintenance of waste-
(i) K (e) water treatment plants
Rt BE - EER
BERTTKEER
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited* PRC USD35,430,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(note (e)) e 35,430,000 0 operation and
*AKBOBR)BERAAN maintenance of waste-
(%) water treatment plants

wit o BE - ERR
BERETKEER
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15 P B8 A= (48)

201 1N

Proportion of ownership interest

HAREREmL

Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  held by the held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company B/ s A AL BBIR  A%£EHZ RART mKE  Principal activity
NGER ! RE IS HRBRAER  BRER o2 REHE  TEEH
Everbright Water (Jinan Licheng) PRC RMB148,530,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Limited* (note (g)) FE  AR148,530,0007T operation and
FARKB(EREN)ARAE maintenance of waste-
(B &E(e)) water treatment plants
and reusable water
treatment plants
Rt BE - EER
BERETKEREK
FKE AR IR
Everbright Water (Xinyi) Limited* PRC $174,590,000 100% . 100%  Design and construction
KARRBEOT)BERRF H 174,590,0007C of waste-water
treatment plant
and surface water
treatment plant
Fet REE KRR
R RKEIE R
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited* PRC USD31,158,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(note (e)) R 31,158,000% T operation and
HARKBOEE) BRAF maintenance of waste-
(B &E(e)) water treatment plants
and reusable water
treatment plant
DXD+ @L @ &
BERTTKEER
RAKE FAEER
Qingdao EB-VW Waste PRC USD15,257,000 Note (b) . Note (b) ~ Construction, operation
Water Treatment Co., Ltd. & 15,257,000% T FiHEE () B#st (o)  and maintenance of

(“Qingdao EB-VW”, currently

waste-water treatment

known as Everbright Water plants
(Qingdao) Limited)* (note (e)) B BEREBRE
BERBTKERER R KRR

(1EBR]  BRAKKE
(5B)ERRR) (M)
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B S BRNBEE)

15 B ARIEZR (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEREERLD
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  held by the held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company B/ s A AL BBIR  AfEZ RARF mHE  Principal activity
NSES ] LEE S HBRBRAER  BRER o2 REFE  FEEH
Everbright Wind Power (Ningwu) PRC RMB225,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Co., Ltd* F AR #225,000,00070 operation and
HRRE(ER)BRAF" maintenance of wind
power projects
Rt BEBER
BERBRNEE
R
On Land Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100% - 100%  Property investment
BRARAF B 2RR A% 17 NERE
Suzhou Wujiang Everbright PRC RMB240,592,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Environmental Energy Co., F AR#240,592,0007T operation and

Ltd.* (note (d))
FMRITEARRER
BRAR (M)

*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment

enterprise.

*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign

co-operation joint ventures.

*

maintenance of waste-

to-energy power plant
Bt B BER

BERENREEK

i E R BN HRALE -

BREHBEEZEIMRTIEGIERERE -
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15 B A AR (&)
The following table lists out the information relating to TRINTAEEBEKXMEQRWNEEKIEE
a material subsidiary of the Group which has material non- feiEas ([ FEIERER ) 2 BR - REERE
controlling interest (“NCI”). The Group acquired CEWL EZT—NFFT_A=F+—HIEFEWREL
during the year ended 31 December 2014 (see note AAKFE(RHEES31(@) - TXAMEFZHEE
31(a)). The summarised financial information presented RMEZEAEEAN R MERYHEZE5E -
below represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
China
Everbright
Water Limited
B 5 KK
ERAA
2014
—E—NF
$’000
Tt
NCI percentage IR ERA DL 22%
Current assets mENE E 1,708,519
Non-current assets FEMENEE 7,369,023
Current liabilities A= (1,405,357)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,155,032)
NCI JEFE R (225,680)
Total equity attributable RN B RER B
to equity shareholders 5,291,473
Carrying amount of NCI FEIE IR R AR TE(E 1,163,624
Revenue Wz 1,050,755
Profit for the year FREF 313,998
Total comprehensive income ZHEIWAERE 209,793
Loss allocated to NCI* ST IR 2 BB (1,001)
Cash inflows from operating activities KEFRE 2B RA 316,604
Cash inflows from investing activities RERBZRERA 430,125
Cash outflows from financing activities BEFH 2R RN (487,981)
* |t represents the post-acquisition loss allocated to NCI from 12 * BEARPETIHEREZNR-_ZE-—NF+_A+Z=
December 2014 (date of acquisition) to 31 December 2014. AWERR) ZE=T—MF+_A=+—H2zK

BREE -
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign
joint venture partner of EB Energy (Suzhou), is committed to
contribute the full amount of EB Energy (Suzhou)’s registered
capital. Net profit, after payment of an agreed sum of
RMB880,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner of EB
Energy (Suzhou), is fully attributable to Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited.

Everbright Water (Qingdao) Holdings Limited (“EW (Qingdao)
Holdings”, formerly known as EB-VW HK Holding Company
Limited), a wholly-owned (2013: 60% owned) subsidiary of
the Company and the foreign joint venture partner of Qingdao
EB-VW, is committed to contribute 60% of Qingdao EB-VW’s
registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital is
contributed by the PRC joint venture partner. EW (Qingdao)
Holdings is fully entitled to the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW for
the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year
of the joint venture period onwards, the net profit of Qingdao
EB-VW is to be shared by EW (Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC
joint venture partner on a 98:2 basis.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the local government authorities in the
PRC (the “grantors”). Pursuant to the service concession
arrangements, the Group was granted rights to construct,
operate and maintain environmental energy, environmental water
and alternative energy projects in the PRC for a period of 20 to
30 years. The service fees are based on the extent of services
rendered and are subject to the approvals from the relevant
local government authorities. During the operating period, the
Group will be responsible to maintain the environmental energy,
environmental water and alternative energy projects in good
condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of the
terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the environmental energy, environmental
water and alternative energy projects are recognised as
“Intangible assets” in the financial statements.

15 B ARIEZR (&)
st -

(@)

ANRE 22 EWER BT KGR (BRM) 2585
BEBMH - ARBRRER(FEMN) ERARAR
AFEEAKR KR (BRMN) 2 EMER o KKk
BREMN) ZFENEBEIMNHBERBARKE
880,000 FH KR (FIM) R HEEBHE)
BEBXKXRRERGMN)ZERERABME °

RRRZ2ERB(ZT—=4: HBE0%ER)
ZMBRARFREERBINT A ERH —H KK
B(ES)BEBRERRR(MEAR(ES)ER] - Al
TR MR BB ERBER AR AFTA
BBRE60%TMER - 82 T40%EHPHE &
BHAUE - AXR(BER)ERNAEHETEFA
2EEZEEERAIFRT - MAFE+RFAE
Hi - FEABFANBHAEKR(FE)IERR
hHAEBHEIRB 22 LIS -

AR B E DR = R E AR TAL
IR AT B - RIBRIFSFEEH#
2 AEEERBETREE EEREBR
BIRREER - REKBRHERER - A=+
E=A+F o  RBBRERVZRBME - WAT
EHEM BT REALLERTAEE - RESH
A AEBEETHEFRRER - REKERH
BERIA B M RAFARR -

RSF A EERLTH W BBLRIE - RPARK
SELERNGHRGTEERNERZBERTRLE
ARt -

RIREEIR - RIRKIBRAERER 2 K& REY
BREDERR [BVEE] -
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15 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct,
operate and maintain waste-to-energy power plants in the PRC
for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has the obligation to
maintain the waste-to-energy power plants in good condition.
The grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry
of the concession periods, the waste-to-energy power plants
and related facilities will be transferred to the local government
authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct or operate
the waste-to-energy power plants and in the event of a material
breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of
the Group to terminate the agreements include failure to receive
payments for solid waste treatment service from the grantors and
in the event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy power plants is recognised as
“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” in the
financial statements.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste-water treatment
plants in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has
the obligation to maintain the waste-water treatment plants in
good condition. The grantors guarantee the Group will receive
minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements.
Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste-water
treatment plants and the related facilities will be transferred to the
local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste-water treatment plants and in the event of
a material breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard
rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include failure
to receive payments for waste-water treatment service from the
grantors and in the event of a material breach of the terms of the
agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing or upgrading the waste-water treatment plants is
recognised as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” in the financial statements.
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16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 16 B = A RIS

The Group
KEE
2014 2013
— P4 =
$’000 $’000
Tt FiT
Share of net assets FT{h & E 558 254,339 254,380

TRIRBERRZER  BERRABIE
FTEAERE  BWEMISSHRE -

The following list contains the particulars of an associate,
which is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market
price is not available:

Proportion of ownership interest

BRI
Group’s held by
Form of Place of effective the held by
business establishment interest Company  a subsidiary
Name of associate structure and operation REEZ BmARR  @EKB2AR Principal activity
il -YNSE ] EBRELR DAVSEER- Sk B ER ®E HE FEXEB
Nanjing Jiangnan Established PRC 51% - 51%  Design, construction,

Veinous Industrial Park e s operation and

Development Company
Limited (“Nanjing
Jiangnan”)

BRI FREEE
ERBRAF
Uz

maintenance of
environmental
protection projects
(Note)

it i EER
HIBERERREE
(HI3E)
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16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
made capital contribution of RMB200,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately $254,380,000) for the establishment of
Nanjing Jiangnan. The Group has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over Nanjing Jiangnan’s
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions, pursuant to the Articles of
Association of Nanjing Jiangnan. Accordingly, Nanjing
Jiangnan is classified as an associate of the Group.

Nanjing Jiangnan is established with local government body
in Nanjing city, the PRC, which enables the Group to further
develop environmental protection projects in Nanjing city.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group held 21% equity
interest in Qingdao Everbright Water Operating Limited
(“Qingdao Everbright”, formerly known as Qingdao Veolia
Water Operating Company Limited) which was classified
as an associate of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Group acquired additional 78% equity
interest in Qingdao Everbright and Qingdao Everbright
became a non-wholly owned subsidiary (see note 31(b)).
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izt REBE_Z-—=F+"A=t+—BLF
E - AEETE AR 200,000,0007T
(188 P #9254,380,000 7T ) AX 32 g T
e REPARIBEZARER  A5H
AT ERFE (Ml A RES) B R
TRAZERE BRZ2EREEMBR
EEIRK - FUt - MRUITEROBAA

SEEZBERT -

MU B AN S A B R E I
F@AXERY  HEAEESUER
RAmE-FERRRIEAR -

LBt E N R RS A E SR A M HRE
ABR

R-ZE—=F+_"A=+—H ' x&£E#
EEEBEHARKBEEBRAB(IEEX
KXl AIBEERBKEGELABRAT)
21%A%HE - HWHEAREBEBE QR
BHE-_Z-WFE+-_A=+—BILEE -
REBWESE L ARNBEINGTS%ARIE  #K
hEESEXAKAEFEZEWNB AR (RKE
31()) °
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16 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of the material
associates, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

16 Bt N R (&)
ATREEEBRENRZMBERRE
HEREMN S BRREELAE  AB
/\??éﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

Nanjing Jiangnan Qingdao Everbright
EZP8ANE]] FEHXK
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=ZF —T—NOF —T—=
$'000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Tz Tz Tz T
Gross amounts of the Bt& R THFEZ
associates’ (note) #@%B (MI3T)
Current assets TRENEE 105,599 345,367 - 16,172
Non-current assets EREBEE 293,810 - = 749
Current liabilities mBBE (769) - - (18,748)
Equity M 398,640 345,367 - (1,827)
Revenue Wz - - 57,708 81,433
(Loss)/profit for the year FAN(EE), BF (81) - (2,220) 2,559
Other comprehensive income  E.fh 2 & Ui 25 1 - 290 (194)
Total comprehensive income 2 HE W 2542458 (80) - (1,930) 2,365
Reconciled to the B AN £ B A B 2N A
Group’s interest in FEZR 7 BER (B =)
the associates (note)
Gross amounts of net e NBEE,/(BE)
assets/(liabilities) of the HE 4B
associate 398,640 345,367 - (1,827)
Group'’s effective interest REEBERERS 51% 51% - 21%
Group’s share of net assets ~ AN&EEE(LE S A a2
of the associate BEFHE 254,339 254,380 - -
Carrying amount in e Bmk
consolidated financial FrREREE
statements 254,339 254,380 - -
Note:  Operating results of Qingdao Everbright up to the date of e BEXAREBERAMBAGZAZE

transfer to become a subsidiary are included in the summary
financial information for the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2013 and the date at which Qingdao
Everbright became a subsidiary, the Group’s share of
accumulated loss of Qingdao Everbright exceeded the
Group’s interest in the associate, the Group’s interest
was reduced to nil and recognition of further losses was
discontinued.

EREHARE T MEL =1
BILEE 2 B AR -

RZE-—=F+-"A=+—BEKEBHXK
RRMERARZA  ARAKEMREES
KRz RETHE BB B A K E PR{5 A RS
NEZHEGE  AERBZERCHET - X
BARRE—THNER -
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17 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17 & ERER
The Group
REH
2014 2013
—T—F —E—=F
$’000 $’000
Fit T
Share of net assets Frib EEF 8 27,289 -

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

AEBEzEECERS(EREDEERAME
WRAR)FHIFWT:

Proportion of ownership interest

B RERER L)
Group’s held by
Form of Place of effective the held by
business establishment interest Company a subsidiary  Principal
Name of joint venture structure and operation REBZ HMARNE MHHEEAR  activity
BEMELTE EBEBEA R EE R B ER BB BE FEEH
Everbright Jiangdong Established PRC 50% - 50%  Design, construction,
Environmental Energy joava o2 operation and
(Ma’anshan) Co., Ltd. maintenance of
(“EB Energy waste-to-energy
(Ma’anshan)”) power plant (note)
FRTRBRREER (G BEr B BER
HDBBRAR(HER HIERBAIR
BER(FEIL) D) B (M)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
made capital contribution of RMB22,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately $27,877,000) for the establishment of EB
Energy (Ma’anshan). The Group has joint control over EB
Energy (Ma’anshan)’s management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions, pursuant
to the Articles of Association of EB Energy (Ma’anshan).
Accordingly, EB Energy (Ma’anshan) is classified as a joint
venture of the Group.

EB Energy (Ma’anshan) was established by the Group with
Ma’anshan City Development Investment Group Limited in
the PRC, the other investor to this joint venture, to carry out
the Group’s waste-to-energy business in specific areas in
Ma’anshan city.

EB Energy (Ma’anshan), the only joint venture in which the
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose
quoted market price is not available.

GEX

REBEE-T-—HNF+-A=+—ALtHF
- REBETE AR 22,500,000 (48
E R #927,877,0007T ) X3 YK BEIR (B8
W) o WBEKXKEER(FEIL) 2 ARER -
ANEBAERZEHERER(FRIL) ZE
BE AELEATENBEREBHE -
At A RER(B&L)WHSEALER
ZEBDE-

AEERSBUNRREBTRABEE
REEBERAD(MEELEZ S —RE
F)VRAP B ARER(FEL) - ARE
BIITEEM BT RBEEER -

RRER(FELU) HAKEE-2ENE
BhE - HYFLEMAAER  TEMS
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17 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 17 B2 hEER(E)

Summarised financial information of EB Energy
(Ma’anshan), adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

AT RIERER(FEIL) ZMBERRE
HEREMN S BRREEFLARE YR
RAEMBmRMMEBRIELNR

EB Energy
(Ma’anshan)
FRBEIR
(B#l)
2014
—T-mEF
$’000
Ft
Gross amounts of EB Energy FREER(FEIL) FIISIE
(Ma’anshan)’s oy k-
Current assets mENEE 50,612
Non-current assets EMBEE 4,343
Current liabilities nBaE (61)
Equity s 54,894
Included in the above assets and liabilities: AFALMEERARE
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEEY 50,175
Revenue W e =
Loss for the year FNEE (1,188)
Other comprehensive income HEt 2w 12
Total comprehensive income FENEBEE (1,176)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest  HAREE R KR (FE1L)
in EB Energy (Ma’anshan) w2 B
Gross amounts of EB Energy (Ma’anshan)’s HREER(ER L) EEFE 2 A%
net assets 54,894
Group’s effective interest REEER#ER 50%
Group’s share of EB Energy (Ma’anshan)’s REFEELHXKNER(EHL) 2 EEFRE
net assets 27,289

Carrying amount in consolidated financial
statements

A MBEIMRARREE

27,289
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18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 HhBA & & E
The Group The Company
REE ZAN/NY
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—OF ZE—=F —T—NOF ZT—=F
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Available-for-sale FERAFES -
equity securities:
Listed in Hong Kong BEBLE™
(note 30(f)(i)) (B EE30(f()) 6,601 8,205 - -
Listed in other parts of the R A&
PRC (note 30(f)(i) (P ZE30(f)(i)) 203,009 164,606 - -

209,610 172,811 - -

Unlisted in other parts of the AR H i & IE FH

PRC (note 30(f)(i) (P ZE30(f)(i)) 3,899 3,899 3,899 3,899

Unlisted overseas JEINE TR
(note 30(f)({)) (B EES0(M)()) 15,503 - - -
19,402 3,899 3,899 3,899

229,012 176,710 3,899 3,899
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19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 fEUfBEZL

B S BRNBEE)

Hib KRIAE ~ e K

AND PREPAYMENTS TEAST TR
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
—T—OF —TE—=F
$’000 $°000
Ft Ft
Debtors JE W AR R 617,112 400,274
Loan receivable R E 5k - 51,156
Other receivables, deposits and HAERFIE - He Kk
prepayments TEfTRIE 5,733,244 3,948,905
6,350,356 4,400,335
Less: Non-current portion B, FERVHAER (D
— other receivables, — H b fEUFROR -
deposits and prepayments e MM FRE (4,376,789) (3,023,616)
Current portion BIERER 1 1,973,567 1,376,719
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19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 EUWERR - EMEWFIE - ek

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) SCUNE: IE(f’“’
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and [EMWERR - M ERIE - e RFENK
prepayments” are debtors with the following ageing HIPEEEKER  EREER 2Rk
analysis as of the balance sheet date: N
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F—-NF —T—=
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Current ENHEA 442,431 269,642
Within 1 month past due wEA TR —1E B 55,687 21,770
More than 1 month but within 3 months #EAERBE—E A
past due BARZR =184 48,569 40,925
More than 3 months but within 6 months BEEA = A
past due BRLZRNEA 9,004 13,208
More than 6 months but within 12 months #EAER B 7N E B
past due BAZR+ @A 17,235 9,466
More than 12 months past due BmERE+ @A 44,186 45,263
_Amountspastdwe @8s® 174681 130,632
617,112 400,274
The ageing analysis of debtors based on the date of REBEHMH(IWEERBH(ORE)) &
invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) as of the B BYEERERREER ZBRESITHOT
balance sheet date is as follows:
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—ET—-NF —T—=
$’000 $°000
Tt Tt
Within 1 month TER—{@EA 354,707 205,510
More than 1 month but within 2 months BE—EAETZRREAR 90,407 59,474
More than 2 months but within 4 months BB E A ETNZ R UE A 80,909 52,339
More than 4 months but within 7 months 2@ E A BT~ %A +1E A 29,057 28,222
More than 7 months but within 13 months BB+l A EFRZ R+ =18 A 17,423 9,466
More than 13 months BB+ =MEA 44,609 45,263

617,112 400,274
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19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 EIWERR - EMEWFIE - ek

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 30(a).

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” of the Group are debtors of $617,112,000
(2013: $400,274,000) of which $35,134,000 (2013:
$53,153,000) and $10,734,000 (2013: $10,979,000) are
due from a non-controlling shareholder and a related
company respectively. Debtors represent revenue from
environmental energy project, environmental water project
and alternative energy project operation services revenue.
There was no recent history of default in respect of the
Group’s debtors. Since most of the debtors are local
government authorities in the PRC and based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of the past due balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

“Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments”
include balances totalling $4,531,875,000 (2013:
$3,329,357,000) which bear interest at rates ranging
from 5.94% to 7.83% (2013: 5.94% to 7.83%) per
annum and represent the considerations paid for the
acquisition of waste-water treatment plants under TOT
arrangements, among which $208,021,000 (2013:
$208,120,000) and $505,981,000 (2013: $513,433,000)
are due from a non-controlling shareholder and a related
company respectively. The amounts are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by revenue to be generated
during the operating periods of the TOT arrangements.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

The loan receivable at 31 December 2013 was unsecured,
interest-bearing at 11% per annum, due from an unrelated
party and repaid in January 2014.

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
at 31 December 2014 is an advance made to a local
government authority in relation to a service concession
arrangement amounting to $31,150,000 (2013: Nil), which
is unsecured, interest-bearing at rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China and will be settled by instalment
until 2017.

All of the current portion of the above balances are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

T FRIB (&)
JEWERFREERBEF=TZENLTHRE
H AEEEERRZE - TERFERM T
30(a) °

AEB 2 [EUKERR - HiERFIE - IH& &
FE A | - BIEEKERF617,112,0007T
— T — = : 400,274,000 7T ) © H &
35,134,000t (=T — =4 : 53,153,0007T) &
10,734,0007t( —Z— =4 : 10,979,0007T) %>
B /5 78 Us FE 478 A% A% B3R 5K I8 K FE Uk B B X B 5k
15 - JEWER AR BIRIREEIRIA B + IRIRKES
HERHEERBEE ZELRBEKZE - AEE
Z FEW R AR I B 4040 8% - AR REB1H
BHEABETEEKRFHEE - BRIEBEL
B TEERADARBHRRIEHRIELE
BEE AACESXZTEHRERNEL
MABERTIER AT 2EUWE - AEBIW
ERZSEREATARER KT —1©
F+-—A=+—H  AEBENEREIATMZE
BEE(ZZ—=F &)

[EUERTR - b EWERIE « e RIBFIE]
BFEA $4,531,875,000C( =& — =4 :
3,329,357,0007T ) Z &% 1 F B E5.94%
E7.83%(=ZF—=4F : 5,94% =7.83%) 5T
HHE - REFEATOTLH N 5K
B2 2ARE - £4208,021,0000(=F
— =% : 208,120,0007T ) 5 505,981,000t
— T — =4 : 513,433,0007T) 7 Bl A& fE Uk
FEYE IR RS SRR OE M FE UK BB A R ROE o B S
FIBE AR EER  WEATOTZHE R 24
BHWR SN R-E—ME+—_A=+—
B AEBFEEREAFEEBR(ZE—=
F ) o

R-ZB—=F+"A=+—HB  BEEXRSK
EER  RESENM%FAENE - KEFH
AL  ERZT—NF—AEE -

EZZ—MF+A=+—HBZHMbEKRX
B RERANRET  BE—FAEHLK
T 4 8 1 Hh A B AR A 1 AT IR B R e Pk 2 B3R
31,150,000 (=T —=%: &) - F@AR
RREEW - RPEARRITAMZ B RGT
B UBR-_Z—tFROHER -

bt EsR 2 PR BNER BB 0 TR EA AT I — F A UK
ElekfER AR
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20 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK

20 BRI EPAH I IEFIAMR

The Group
KEE
2014 2013
—T—MOF —T—=
$’000 $°000
T T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEEASLHRANE
profits less anticipated losses SHEREN - RTEH
B8 18,009,803 12,579,019
Less: Progress billings B EE IR (4,169,060) (2,602,407)
Net contract work BN TR FE5 13,840,743 9,976,612
Representing: R -
Gross amounts due from customers for EREFELHITENRT
contract work FER
- Non-current — 3ERNEA 12,630,020 9,035,315
— Current — BIEA 1,210,723 941,297
13,840,743 9,976,612

[REEFA

WIRERBERLREIFT - 25

Included in “Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work” are amounts of $186,945,000 (2013:
$212,609,000) and $179,561,000 (2013: $201,168,000)
which are due from a non-controlling shareholder and a
related company respectively.

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” represent revenue from construction under BOT
and BT (“Build-Transfer”) arrangements or upgrade
services under TOT arrangements and bear interest at
rates ranging from 5.94% to 7.83% (2013: 5.94% to
7.83%) per annum. Among the total of $13,840,743,000
(2013: $9,976,612,000), $11,121,800,000 (2013:
$7,231,485,000) relates to BOT and TOT arrangements
with operation commenced. The amounts for BOT and
TOT arrangements are not yet due for payment and
will be settled by revenue to be generated during the
operating periods of the arrangements. The amount for
BT arrangements will be settled according to respective
repayment schedules as stated in the agreements.

B ¥E JiE Ui IE 4% A% A% 3R X 18 186,945,000 7T
(ZZT— =4 :212,609,0007T ) & fE Y
B A T 218 179,561,000 ( ZFE— = £ -
201,168,0007T) °

([BRREFPANIREREBBLR]I IR
BOThEZ#&E -—#EB([BT]) REET 2
ERBKR S KETOTRHE T 2 & T

Blzm  EERFE E594% = 7.83%

T =% :594% % 783% ) it &
F| B o fF # %8 13,840,743,000 7t ( =
B== 0 9,976,612,000 7t ) #F » H
f 11,121,800,000 5t ( = & — = &
7,231,485,0007T) B F 2% AEE 2 BOT &
TOTZHE - BEBOTRTOTLZHE TN 2 KIBE

RBEAL AT - WG ABOTRTOTL HE 2 @&
B S - BTRHE TN 2 KB B IRIES R FT
HIRA R FERE B FRAF R R AT ©
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21 INVENTORIES 21 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet () HEBEERBRATFERR
comprise:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E U4 —_EF—=
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Raw materials and operating supplies EME R E RS 74,719 43,468
Spare parts T2 42,731 32,056
117,450 75,524
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories recognised as an b) EERAALIWFABRERCTFESE
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: AHTIAT:
The Group
rEHE

2014 2013
—E-MF —ET—=F
$'000 $'000
Tz T

Carrying amount of inventories consumed T FEREE 2~ EHEE 119,892 105,274




Annual Report 2014

—T-mEER
Notes to the Financial Statements
+ x
B SRR Mt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FEREN  FrE & 2B E)
22 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22 FhEME R W FRIE
The total minimum lease payments receivable under REMEHERKNXEEEERABREE
finance lease, and their present values are as follows: BEWT :
The Group
REHE
2014 2013
—T-MF —E—=
$’000 $’000
Tt T
Within 1 year —FR 1,758 1,804
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBERFARN 7,030 7,216
After 5 years HEFE 28,120 30,665
Total gross investment WEIG & KA %A 36,908 39,685
Unearned finance income REBPBUKA (15,975) (17,695)
Present value of future payments receivable 7R EUYUTIIE 2R E 20,933 21,990
Amounts due within one year included under st AREBEEZ —FNXN
current assets FI 508 (522) (509)
20,411 21,485
The present value of future payments receivable is as RRFEWRIBZIREWT -
follows:
The Group
REH
2014 2013
—T-NF —=—=
$'000 $°000
Tz T+
Within 1 year —FNR 522 505
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 2,421 2,343
After 5 years AFE 17,990 19,142
20,411 21,485
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23 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND DEPOSITS 23 B8 IRITIE A KL RITIER

WITH BANK
Pledged bank deposits are pledged to secure certain bank EERRTEFHREERIERREEE TRT
loans of the Group. BB -
Included in “Deposits with bank” of the Group and AREBRARRZ [IRITERIBEFEHNE
the Company are deposits of $717,358,000 (2013: Bt AT ER7T 2 717,358,000 ( =T —=
$1,000,000,000) placed with a related party bank. £ : 1,000,000,0007T) °
24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 e kR FEEY
The Group The Company
rEHE PIN/NC]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—TNF ZE-—=F —ZT—NF ZT—=
$°000 $'000 $'000 $’000
Tz Tz Tz T
Deposits with banks RITHFER 1,033,938 2,506,297 801,451 2,100,054
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEB RIS 3,060,158 1,919,437 304,469 252,392
4,094,096 4,425,734 1,105,920 2,352,446
Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at the balance REER B2 kReFEWIBRETIIR
sheet date are the following amounts denominated in a H o HUEBEERZIEEE N EEEt
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to & :

which they relate:

The Group The Company
rEE ZA/NC]
2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-ME —T=F —T-NF —T—=F
USD’'000  USD’000  USD’000  USD’000
FET FET FEr FET

United States Dollars = 25,448 43,191 1,753 8,690
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 24 & RIRESFEW(#E)

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” are the following [BERIRESEEY BT 517 B
deposits placed with a related party bank: TERITZFR
The Group The Company
REE ZA/N]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—TNF —T-=F —_T-NF _T—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Deposits with related TR B RS A &
party bank RITZEFR 226,083 393,921 6,872 8,406
25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 25 AT REE
(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of the interest- (a) HAEBEZEEBESTAET :

bearing borrowings is as follows:

The Group The Company
REE PiN/NE]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF ZFE-=F —TMF ZFT—=F
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tz Tt T
Current liabilities mEEE
Current portion of bank RITE FKENHAER (D
loans 2,330,273 1,779,867 739,500 113,250
Notes payable AN 281,096 - - -
Non-current liabilities JERBIEE 2,611,369 1,779,867 739,500 113,250
Non-current portion of RITEFRIERNERER (D
bank loans 6,525,142 5,141,254 1,467,953 1,153,675
9,136,511 6,921,121 2,207,453 1,266,925
All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are FTAEFFENEG BB EDIRBHKARAR -
carried at amortised cost. None of the non-current TEHFmA N EBELATER —FR
interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled BiE -

within one year.
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25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued) 25 st BEE (&)
(b) At 31 December 2014, the interest-bearing borrowings b) RZZE—WFE+=—A=+—H ' BB
were repayable as follows: B2ERBERIAT
The Group The Company
REH PAN/NG)!
2014 2013 2014 2013
—FE —ZT—=F —FT-HNF —T-=F
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tz Tz Tz Tt
Within 1 year or on —FAFIREK
demand 2,611,369 1,779,867 739,500 113,250
After 1 year but within —FRERFR
2 years 1,083,106 2,051,202 75,000 1,063,175
After 2 years but within MERBRERFAN
5 years 3,534,509 2,365,243 896,828 90,500
After 5 years AE% 1,907,527 724,809 496,125 -

6,525,142 5,141,254 1,467,953 1,153,675

9,136,511 6,921,121 2,207,453 1,266,925
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25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued) 25 5t 8 BE &)
(c) At 31 December 2014, the interest-bearing borrowings c) RZE—MF+-_A=+—8 " 58
were secured as follows: BEEZEMBLOT
The Group The Company
REE ViN/NE]
2014 2013 2014 2013
“T-mE -F-=F —F-MF -FT-=F
$'000 $ 000 $'000 $ 000
Tt Tt Tt T
Bank loans - secured BT — 8T 5,961,222 4,320,879 315,000 155,000
Bank loans — unsecured IRITEZR — MKMW 2,894,193 2,600,242 1,892,453 1,111,925
Notes payable — unsecured JE{f £ 15 — K 281,096 - - -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3,175,289 2,600,242 1,892,453 1,111,925
9,136,511 6,921,121 2,207,453 1,266,925

Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by
certain revenue and receivables in connection with
the Group’s service concession arrangements, bank
deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and shares of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such banking facilities,
amounting to $8,332,819,000 (2013: $6,958,916,000),
were utilised to the extent of $5,961,222,000 (2013:
$4,320,879,000) at 31 December 2014. Among the
secured banking facilities, $2,087,404,000 (2013:
$3,635,941,000) are guaranteed by the Company and
were utilised to the extent of $1,311,729,000 (2013:
$2,047,642,000) at 31 December 2014.

Certain banking facilities of the Company are secured by
the equity interests in certain subsidiaries and the land and
building of a subsidiary.

At 31 December 2014, the unsecured banking facilities,
amounting to $5,382,197,000 (2013: $4,769,812,000),
were utilised to the extent of $2,894,193,000 (2013:
$2,600,242,000). Among the unsecured banking facilities
of the Group, $83,295,000 (2013: $180,156,000) are
guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the extent
of $63,295,000 (2013: $160,156,000) at 31 December
2014. All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings
are carried at amortised costs. None of the non-current
interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled
within one year.

AEBETRITHREANAEERBEHFL
BELZTHETZ2HETRE REWFIE « R1T
G BTEERBRERAEEETETH
BRARIZERMHELRE R-ZZE—WF+=
A=+—H - £i8,332,819,000c( =&
— =% : 6,958,916,000 7 ) Z R 1T AL &
2 & F5,961,222,000 L ( =& — =& :
4,320,879,000 7T ) ° E#t B & # R 17 &t
& - HF2087,404,000 (=T — =4 :
3,635,941,0007T) B AR A RIERER - RZZ
—mFE+—-_A=1+—HE®HHE1,311,729,000
T(ZE—=4F : 2,047,642,0007T) °

ARBETRITHEAE THE QR ZRHE
K — KM B B H) L A TR o

R-ZT—mWE+-_A=+—08 - @KHET
BB 2 4% 45,382,197,000T( —E— =4 :
4,769,812,000 7T ) ' B2 B A 2,894,193,000
TT(ZZF— =4 :2,600,242,0007T )  f it
AEBEEBEFIRITEE - £83,295,0007T
—ET— =4 :180,156,0007T ) 1 &R QD FE
BR RZZE—NOF+=-A=+—H B8
F363,295,0007T ( —Z — =4 : 160,156,000
JL) o FTAFERNERET BAE B TH IR B S A AR A
Bk - EHAFT A FERVHAGT BB BT ER —F
NEE o
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25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)
Banking facilities of $6,814,162,000 (2013:
$6,449,045,000) are subject to the fulfiment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. At 31 December 2014,
such facilities were utilised to the extent of $4,409,568,000
(2013: $4,067,293,000). The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
30(b). As at 31 December 2014, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2013:
Nil).

CEWL, a subsidiary acquired by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2014, established a SGD300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately $1,686,570,000) of
multicurrency medium term note programme (the “MTN”)
in July 2013. As at 31 December 2014, SGD50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately $281,096,000) of unsecured
fixed rate notes were outstanding under the MTN. The
unsecured fixed rate notes payable are interest-bearing at
7.5% per annum and redeemable at their principal amount
on the maturity date in August 2015.

Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

—m

25 FTRIEE(#)

1T RL & 6,814,162,0007C (=8B — =4 :
6,449,045,0007L ) B A EHE TEBE LR S
EUBLErRE - WAEBEREHEE
#HOABRBZBMEAREZREE - R
:i mE+-—A=Z+—HB A@E#E
2 &) 4,409,568,000 7 ( = & — = 4 :
4,067,293,0007T) - AEEEE ﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁa
RFEZBITER BHEAEEE iiu.bibéi%f
B2 —FERFRHES00) c R=F
—MFE+—_A=+—H AEBEVTEERE
BIRR@ME s ZH(ZE—=F . &) -

RZT—Z=ZF+H  ARKB(EEERE
E-E-NE+-_A=+—HBILEEKE
2 Bf B A &) B 32.300,000,000 7 113 7t (8
&N #1,686,570,0007T ) Z i@ fE p H =
BitdEl e RZZE—WFE+=-_A=+—0 " &
ZEEERPERTE T 2B BTEIKE
FEEE A50,000,000% M3 7T (HEE R4
281,096,0007T) ° EIKIFT B ZHIZFFH &
K7 5%HTF B jf‘fﬁé:%—ﬁi)\ﬂ{{
EIff AR A REE D

[FHEBEIBETIHE  EAAEER
MEEEE ANz B EHE -

The Group The Company
rEE ZAN/NC]

2014 2013 2014 2013

ME —F-=F —T-NEFE —T—=F

USD’000  USD’000  USD’000  USD’000

TE7 T TET TET

United States Dollars ETT

157,189 193,315 = -
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25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued) 25 stBfEE (#&)
Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” are the following [FTEEEIRETY@EALRITEN
loans from a related party bank:

The Group The Company
REH PAN/NGY
2014 2013 2014 2013
—mE —F-=F —FT-0F —FT=F%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Tz Tz +7T T+

Loans from a related party bank B8 A £RITER 295,925 174,826 - -

Included in loans from a related party bank are: A TRITIRE CERBE:

(i) bank loans of $84,105,000 (2013: $110,881,000) iy RITEF84,105,000t(=F —=4F :
which is unsecured, interest-bearing at rates 110,881,0007E) HRe\ER &P
announced by the People’s Bank of China and will be ARBRITAMZEERGTE R =T
settled by instalment until 2018; — \F R AR

(i) bank loans of $62,300,000 (2013: $63,945,000) which (iy $R17E 762,300,000 (=T — =4 :
is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per annum and 63,945,0007_5) HARER - Tﬁi
will be fully repaid within one year; and E6%:TE + WER—FAEHEE

(i) bank loans of $149,520,000 (2013: Nil) which is (i) $R1TE 149,520,000t (= FE—=
secured, interest-bearing at rates announced by /) HAEEE - ZhBEARETA ﬁﬁ
the People’s Bank of China and will be settled by ZEERHE  UHRZEZ=FHoH

instalment until 2023. i o
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26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 ERERK - Bt FIBNETE M
ACCRUED EXPENSES

The Group
REHE
2014 2013
—T—OF —T—=F
$’000 $°000
Ft Tt
Creditors FERTBETR 1,349,777 965,600
Other payables and accrued expenses B e AR ESTER 945,224 768,157
2,295,001 1,733,757
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA
— cross-currency swap — R X E&EH 22,239 -
— warrants — R HEE 991 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 23230 -
2,318,231 1,733,757
Less: Non-current portion S SEBNERERD
- other payables — H {th B 58 (15,850) -

Current portion BIERER 1 2,302,381 1,733,757
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26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 EfTERFR - HAth 50 &

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” are creditors with the following ageing analysis
as of the balance sheet date:

EstER#)

[FEAER - HMENRKIERESERIH
BIEENER  HRGEER ZRE ST
T

The Group
AEE

2014 2013
—E-HF —E-=F
$’000 $’000
T Tt
Due within 1 month or on demand — & B N E|Hi s iz Bk 141,499 70,396
Due after 1 month but within 3 months —Z={E AR EIH] 87,548 27,686
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =ZXEARE|ER 41,471 23,701
Due after 6 months 7~ B A 1% 5 B 1,079,259 843,817
1,349,777 965,600

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” as at 31 December 2013 of the Group was
an amount of $25,355,000 which was payable to an
associate. The balance was due within one month and
represents service fee for operation of waste-water
treatment plants.

Apart from the above, creditors totalling $1,279,360,000
(2013: $912,941,000) represent construction payables
for the Group’s BT, BOT and certain BOO arrangements,
among which $1,246,000 (2013: $1,279,000) is due to a
non-controlling shareholder. The construction payables
are not yet due for payment. Included in “Other payables
and accrued expenses” of the Group as at 31 December
2013 was an amount of $6,395,000 which was payable
to a non-controlling shareholder. The amount due to non-
controlling shareholder was unsecured, interest free and
expected to be settled within one year.

The cross-currency swap will be settled in August 2015,
where the Group will pay SGD50,000,000 and received an
agreed amount of USD40,176,778.

R—ZFE—Z=ZF+=-A=+—H " ~%HE
Z I EAER  EMENRIERETER]
FoBRE—E2RNT RBEAR KA
25,355,0007T ° ZA&EHRR—EAREE - B
BEESKEERZREE -

Br EXCFraiE s - A A $£1,279,360,0007T
— T — =4 :912,941,0007T ) Z JE i BR
= HATAREEBT - BOTRE{HBOOLRHE
T @EETREMNKIE - H+1,246,0007T
—ET =4 :1,279,0007T) B EN T IEFEAX
RERZHIE - ZETRENFEBRIHY
ff o R—ZE—=F+-_A=+—R1  K~&£HF
Z[EMEMNRERETERIF  SEEN
JE 2 A% A% R FRIE 6,395,000 © Bt F I
AR R 2 I AEEE - &8 0 WEHHR—
FREE -

TXNEREHER-_TE—RAENABEER
Ug - JE B AN £ & 15 2 155 50,000,000 # H0 3
JC 0 WU ER 1% E € %840,176,7783 T °
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26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 ETERR - EMERRIER

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued) FEETE R (#)

The warrants represent the 263,462 warrants outstanding RREBEN —_T—NFE+ -/ =+—8%
as at 31 December 2014 in respect of the warrants issued RITE 2 263,462 RIKETE + B AL RK
to convertible bondholders by CEWL in prior years. Each BRBTFERITTARRESFFEAZR
warrant can be exercised at an exercise price of SGD0.25 RER REREFFBEAUTR_T—HFN
for one ordinary share of CEWL at par value of $1 at any A=+ /N BATRER IR TE(E0.25 5T MK T1T
time until 26 April 2015. ERBREE  SHRREZATBA-—RSR

EE 17T Z S AIKHE & @AY

27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 27 EERBRFITHMER
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (a) EEABRAMTINEAHHRES :
The Group
REHE
2014 2013
—F—MmFE —F-=F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Provision for PRC income tax for the year 74 € B Fr18 51 i 210,399 149,707
Provisional tax paid EATE (177,423) (126,653)
32,976 23,054
Represented by: (A3
Tax recoverable G E A (34,684) (35,359)
Tax payable FEA TR TR 67,660 58,413

32,976 23,054
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The Group
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Annual Report 2014
—E-WFEFR

27T BEBERAMTHER (&)

(b) ERBEERBEERER :
REHE

227 1B

ERGEEEABERERZELERE
(BE)/ BEIDRFRESHIOT :

Temporary
differences
on assets
recognised
under
HK(IFRIC) 12
BE (FH Fair value
(B E 5 adjustment
hERE on available- Undistributed
ZEg )uﬁﬁ for-sale  profits of
£1255% 7  Revaluation  securities  subsidiaries
ZBE ofproperties HEBEHY NG Total
JERER MEER RRERE  KHREF k]
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=F—f—H 471,707 3,878 (752) 157,098 631,931
Exchange adjustments i B R 16,472 344 (68) 5,554 22,302
Charged/(credited) to reserve {EEEEH K/
(FTAREE) - 16,641 (3,264) - 13,377
Charged to profit or loss REZKTR 223,402 - - 76,657 300,059
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F
+-A=1+—8H 711,581 20,863 (4,084) 239,309 967,669
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MFE—-F—H 711,581 20,863 (4,084) 239,309 967,669
Exchange adjustments 0 3t 9% (11,348) (537) (374) (15,158) (27,417)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YEENMI B AR 479,758 - - - 479,758
Charged to reserve HEEDNL - - 14,230 - 14,230
Charged to profit or loss REBERPING 262,902 - - 87,825 350,727
At 31 December 2014 E{‘:E mE
+-A=+—H 1,442,893 20,326 9,772 311,976 1,784,967
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 271 EERBRFITHMEN(#E)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CRIAEERELEEREE : (&)
(continued)
The Group (continued) NEBE(E)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
$'000 $’000
Tz Tt
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the NéGEEEBBEXRER
consolidated balance sheet BB EE TR (49,455) (10,966)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ~ R4REBEEBEBRERZ
the consolidated balance sheet BERIBEREFRE 1,834,422 978,635
1,784,967 967,669
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) REERIELERREE
In accordance with the accounting policy set MEMFEN)MEZETHR - AE
out in note 1(u), the Group and the Company B e AN QR BB R A AT B
have not recognised deferred tax assets in 18 R E T T E & E 544,671,000 7T
respect of cumulative tax losses of $544,671,000 (ZZF — = F : 342,758,000 T )
(2013: $342,758,000) and $411,779,000 (2013: % 411,779,000 £ ( = T — = &F
$297,589,000) respectively as it is not probable that 297,589,0007T) * REARER AT F
future taxable profits against which the losses can be AR NEHEERNAAERGRERY
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction BAMSZBEEESUER -

and entities.
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 27T EEBEBERFIRNER (&)
(continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (continued) (c) RERELEREEE (&)
At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company R-ZZTE—NF+-_A=+—8 " £A%E
have not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of RARRIWE 25T NGB ERE
cumulative tax losses, whose expiry dates are: ERIEEE  HEHBWOT :
The Group The Company
REHE PiN/NE]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—TNFE —T—=F —T-MF —T—=F
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tz Tt Tt Tt
Within 1 year —FR 21,566 - - -
More than 1 year but within —% 148 FE R
5 years 66,157 - - -
Do not expire under RIRIBI TR 15151
current tax legislation TR FE AR HA 456,948 342,758 411,779 297,589

544,671 342,758 411,779 297,589

28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 UMD T 2 BRAR 5
TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a share option scheme which was RRRRE —EERESS - HRZZTZT=
adopted on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the FRAZTRBEHEM - Bt - ARFESFE
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite EREITHNEEFIAEEES (BERNEEE
employees of the Group, including directors of any AIKERARZER)ZEMNITRIHAARER
company in the Group, to take up options at nominal BARNAIRMD 2ERE - BREARTAH
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. BAEA(KARAIESTREZREAEH)
The options are exercisable six months (or a later date as AR REITERE ERET&ZETF
determined by the directors of the Company) after the date EE—=ZFRA-THEALEUREER
on which the options are granted for a period up to ten £) GREREEHTESEARE—RAE
years or 25 May 2013, whichever is earlier. Each option RElEBR2ER - BREFESENRZZ
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary —=FRhAZTRAER

share in the Company. The share option scheme was
expired on 26 May 2013.
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed during the years are as follows,
whereby all options are settled by physical

delivery of shares:

28 LABUD S 2 IR 5 (#8)

(@) TXEIFRERTEZBREZR
HIRR Rk - B FREBREN
BROBUMRB G XNEERK :

Number of Contractual life
instruments Vesting conditions of options
MIE#H RGN BREZ & HFH
Options granted to directors:
BRTEFZBRE
— on 29 September 2003 4,000,000 One year from 9.7 years
“ZZ=FAA-TIA the date of grant 9.74E
A B Eie R — 5
- on 3 August 2006 2,500,000 One year from 6.8 years
“TERFN\A=H the date of grant 6.84F
A B Eie R — 5
— on 3 August 2006 6,000,000 Two years from 6.8 years
“TERFN\A=H the date of grant 6.84F
A% H B HA e Rt A A
Options granted to employees:
BT ES ZBRE
— on 3 August 2006 1,400,000 One year from 6.8 years
“ETRE/\A=A the date of grant 6.8%
M B EE R —F
— on 3 August 2006 1,400,000 Two years from 6.8 years
“ETRE/\A=A the date of grant 6.84
% B EIEET R
Total share options 15,300,000

TR AR
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 UM T 2 R 5 (4)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BREZHE RMEFLFTEEMT :

prices of share options are as follows:

2013

—= —

Weighted

average

exercise
price Number of
hn#EEg options
1TEE SR

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  F#] & AR1T{E $0.705
0.7057T 15,300,000
Exercised during the year FABITHE $0.705

0.7057T (15,300,000)

Outstanding at the end of the year FREARITE - -
Exercisable at the end of the year FLRA] T1T(E - -
The weighted average share price at the date of RBE_T—=F+_"_HA=+—HIF
exercise for shares options exercised during the year - BITHEBRENITE B 2 mEF

ended 31 December 2013 was $5.70. HRER5.707T °
There were no options outstanding at 31 December RZE—NFER_ZE—=F+=A

2014 and 2013. =t+—8 > WEFERITEZBRE -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

29 A~ fFEEME

(a) RERD22E

The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBGEERS O FIRFREH
balances of each component of the Group’s Z%’Tﬁﬁﬁmﬁé%/\_\ﬁ:@b% PiN/NEST =4
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated EEEETDRENREEL 2 EEFIFTE
statement of changes in equity. Details of changes IR
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company ¥ NN
Capital
redemption
Share Share  Special  resere  Capital  Retained
capitel  premium  reseve  EZAEE  reseve  profits Total
BE BOEE WHRE fE ErEE RIEN a3
$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZF-=F-A-A7E5 403841 3370598 - 70 3300 816429 4,594,238
Changes in equity for 2013: “E-CEyEGE
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AFE2EWALE - - - - - (16,900)  (16,900)
Dividends approved in respect of the ERELFERE
previous year (note 29(b)i) (F5E29(0)() - - - - - (121611) (121611
Issue of ordinary shares (note 20(c)f) ~ EfTERR(KE29(0)() 43,000 3,573,816 - - - - 3616816
Shares issued under share option scheme R BB g3 E1%47 [l
(note 291c)() (Ktzo9(c)ii) 150 12,559 - - 3300) - 10789
Dividend declared in respect of the curent  2ERAEERE
year (note 29(b)(i) (P &E29(0)() - - - - - (141,880)  (141,880)
Balance at 31 December 2018 WZE-=F+ZA=1-H
L8 448,371 6,956,973 - 70 - 536,038 7941452
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 KK - i MRS ()

233 1

(continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (continued) (a) BREDH 2B (Z)
The Company (continued) KRAT(E)
Capital
redemption
Share Share  Special  reserve  Capital  Retained
capital  premum  reseve  BAEE  reseve  profits Total
ke BOEE EAEE i EXBE REEA %
$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
T T i i T T i
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-Bz&H 48311 6,956,973 - 70 - 536,038 7,941,452
Changes in equity for 2014 “E-MEERES
Total comprehensive income for the year — AFE2EMALE - - - - - T12,381 712,381
Dividends approved in respect of the BREZEERE
previous year (note 29(o)) (P E291b) i) - - - - - (224,186)  (224,186)
Transition 0 no-par value regime on R-E-ME=F=BHEE
8 March 2014 (note 29(c)() EEHERE(00))) 6,957,043 (6,956,973) - (70) - - -
Dividend declared in respect of the BERREERS
ourrent year (note 29(b)/1) (FrzE20(0)i) - - - - - (224,186) (224,186)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZE-METZA=1-A
LR 7,405,414 - - - - 800,047 8,205,461
(b) Dividends (b) BRE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

() RN FARRAREZ KNEERE

2014 2013
— P4 —T—=F
$ 000 $’000
Tz 7
Interim dividend declared and paid of B2 &k & {2 #Hi
5.0 cents per ordinary share (2013: B &ML @AL5.01L
3.5 cents per ordinary share) —E—=F
R EEA%S.510) 224,186 141,880
Final dividend proposed after the NEEH EI BEED KL
balance sheet date of 6.0 cents per  FEARR B E @A
ordinary share (2013: 5.0 cents per ~ 6.0ll( =T — =4 :
ordinary share) BRI @EALS.010) 269,023 204,186
493,209 366,066

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet
date has not been recognised as a liability at the

balance sheet date.

REEBREZDIRZ RBREL
AEEERERRAE -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(b) Dividends (continued)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

)

29 BeK - Rt MRS ()

(b) RE(#&)

(i) BRE—EHBRFE  LRFAH

JEISN TR AIRRZ FE S

2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=

$’000 $’000

F FIT
Final dividend in respect of the BN E—ESHRFEE
previous financial year, approved I A F A HEAE N S A
and paid during the year, of 5.0 AR BB E A

cents per ordinary share (2013: 3.0  B&5.0(L(=ZE—=4 :
cents per ordinary share) TR EBAR3.01L) 224,186 121,611

(c) Share capital
(i) Authorised and issued share capital

(c) BRA

() ZEREZETHRA

2014
—E-NF
No. of
shares Amount
A28 Gk
000 $’000
¥ Fi

2013
No. of
shares Amount
A% 2 G-t
000 $'000
¥ T

Authorised: (note 1) A7 : (FtsE1)

Ordinary shares of FREE0.10TT2
$0.10 each (note 2) TR (FFsE2)

5,000,000 500,000

Ordinary shares,  Z@mpg
issued and fully B 31T KB
paid: B

At 1 January n—H—H

Issue of ordinary shares 277 L EA%

Shares issued under 1R IEEE IR IEET 2
share option scheme  Z%1T& 5

Transition to no-par R-ZE—MNFE=H
value regime on —HBAEEEEMH
3 March 2014 (note 3)  {&#I/E (Mf:E3)

4,483,712 448,371

- 6,957,043

4,038,412 403,841
430,000 43,000

15,300 1,530

At 31 December Hn+=-—A=+—H

4,483,712 7,405,414

4,483,712 448,371
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Note 1:  Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 622), which commenced operation on 3
March 2014, the concept of authorised share
capital no longer exists.

Note 2: In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
Company’s shares no longer have a par or nominal
value with effect from 3 March 2014. There is no
impact on the number of shares in issue or the
relative entitlement of any of the members as a
result of this transition.

Note 3: In accordance with the transitional provisions set

out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March
2014 any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account and the capital redemption
reserve has become part of the Company’s share
capital.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Issue of ordinary shares

On 20 December 2013, 430,000,000 new
ordinary shares were allotted and issued to
Guildford Limited, the immediate parent of the
Company, at a subscription price of $8.52 per
share. Net proceeds from such issue amounted to
$3,616,816,000 (after offsetting direct expenses
of $46,784,000), out of which $43,000,000 and
$3,573,816,000 were recorded in share capital
and share premium respectively.

Shares issued under share option scheme
During the year ended 31 December 2013, options
were exercised to subscribe for 15,300,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration
of $10,789,000 of which $1,530,000 was credited
to share capital and the balance of $9,259,000
was credited to the share premium account.
$3,300,000 has been transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with policy set out in note 1(t)(ii). The
Company’s share option scheme was expired
on 26 May 2013 and there were no options
outstanding on 31 December 2013 and 2014.

29 &R A -
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Fatm BB (&)

(c) BRA&(#&)

(i)

(i)

FEEREBITRA(E)

skt RER -_Z—NFE=/A=
EMZEFEERRED
622F ) FAEBREAZHS
BEETBREE -

BEFTBEER
622£a)éﬁ135ﬂ*
& 15 :%—mi_ﬂza
BABEEEAENERE - I
B9 1B ¥ B B 1T R D 2 B
S TR 2 B RS
EMTE -

BRIEFHES R BEHN (F
622F ) M R11EI7IRFTEH,
2B  RZE—OF
—A=ZH ERHOEERK
EABERFEEENRNZEM
%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ N ARz — 5P

BfsE2 -

P5ES -

ERRBAABEEDTEE IR

BE - ARARAANE LA BERK
BNEA—ZRERE - UARAZ
RpEEMS  MELEAREARMR
EHER -

RZE—=Z=F+=-_A=-+H8 " K
~ A [ H A EE 2 F Guildford
Limited @E #% N % 17 430,000,000
s Emik - REEATRKSS2
JC o BEIT MR TS RIBRFRE A
3,616,816,000 (B HHEHEZH X
46,784,000t ) © H 743,000,000
7T X%3,573,816,0007T 2 5 5l A BRR%
K&HX{%/E{E °

(iii) RIZFEIIES B RTTD

REE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—81
FE - BREREATTEBRE R
#815,300,000x A~ E) @B - B
#%10,789,0007T ° EH1,530,0007T
BRARA - 79,259,000t
AB& 7% BBk - 3,300,0007T B £ HR
BEEE1@)()FTEBUR 2 RE - B X
HEEREERMEER - AARZE
RiEAZSER —_E—=FHA -+~
BfEgm e R—E—MER-_T—=
+=—A=+—8 " WERITFEZEBR
30
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(1)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share
premium account and the capital redemption
reserve was governed by sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). In accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March
2014 any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account and the capital redemption
reserve has become part of the Company’s share
capital (see note 29(c)(i)). The use of share capital
as from 3 March 2014 is governed by the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 1(t)(ii).

Special reserve

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced
its intention to put forward a proposal for the
reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of $2,372,172,824 (i.e.
accumulated losses of the Company as at 30
September 2003) and the application of the same
amount of credit arising from such reduction
towards the elimination of the accumulated losses
of the Company. The reduction of share premium
account, approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 2 February
2004, was confirmed by an order made by the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”) on 2 March 2004
and became effective upon registration of the said
order by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on the same date.

29 &R A -

e LR ()

(d) FEMERBEH

(i)

(i)

(iii)

JR17 i (B I B 2B (0] (37 1
R-_ZE—WE=ZA=ZB2H © BH
mERMEARERREZBED B
SR FEBCRATHEN ) (EI2E)E
A8BIA M FE4OHIGRE - RIBEFHE S
NEMED (55622F ) fif 11583715
FrEiz @EBRY RZE—NF =
A=A " Eﬂifﬁiﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁ%&ﬁzﬁﬁ%
HEEBEAZEMBEKEARA
Bz — &85 (R EE29(c)() ° Ef
T-ME=A=0# BREAZEH
XHMBAERFUEN(F622F)RE -

BA#E

B AR E BB REN ) FTEBE
BEENRAZEHTBRERRER
SEAERTAEEREEME S KRTT
EZEREZARE -

KR

W_YYEE BEB » ARQ
MHERIRSE 'mm$®7&1
\¥FH§2372172824E(EHZ’§£\\7
B2 ZTE=FNA=+BHZZ5
B518) - W HIRAE (R EBRRFTE &
2R —ESBEERSHEANEKHEAR
AIZ 2FTEE - BIRRGH ZERE
BN _EZENMF_A-_B8E1T2
BREER RS FERERELE TR
—ETNE=- A _HEFTESEE
B (AR DIERBES FUERER
KRARERBEEEQ A EMEE
MBS EEY -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s
creditors, the Company undertakes to the Court
to create a special reserve upon the reduction
of share premium account on the terms set out
below:

(1) that for so long as there shall remain
outstanding any debt of or claim against the
Company which, if the date on which the
reduction of the share premium account of
the Company (the “Effective Date”) were the
commencement of the winding-up of the
Company, would be admissible to proof in
such winding-up and the person entitled to the
benefit thereof shall not have consented to the
said reduction of share premium account or
agreed otherwise, the Company shall credit to
a special reserve in the books of the Company
(the “Special Reserve”):

— any amount arising by reason of a release
of any provision taken into account in
establishing the accumulated losses of
the Company shown in the balance sheet
of the management accounts of the
Company for the nine months ended 30
September 2003; or

— any amount received by the Company
as profit by way of distribution from a
corporation which was a subsidiary or an
associated company of the Company at
the Effective Date (a “subsidiary” or an
“associated company” respectively) which
is made by such subsidiary or associated
company out of profits available for
distribution prior to the Effective Date
or any dividend paid to the Company in
respect of any liquidation of a subsidiary or
an associated company commencing prior
to the Effective Date; and

Annual Report 2014 -
Zelnery 207

29 BeK - Rt MRS (#)

(d) REEHEERBNE)
(i) R (&)
BTRERARAEBAZEZ &
AR AEBTE AR - REDR R GH
i BEREF R  — AR FEE - &R
R

(1) MRRA R B H B 4 B AR A AR
ER(EMBEH]) (FZARK
NANEERRFGB) R FMDE ERMR
RBEEBIARTHERR - Mt
EEBIPRB/ARAFRER
ZREMEEER - BUEER
FHRRZEBATESTAE
AR R D ERR =R - B
RAALE TR EHLEARRB R
BZ%hlEE(TEREEDT

— EBOEAHARRREE=
EE=FNAA=THILNE
AEEKRERCEERER
PR RET B 18 2 (T B 68 P
EEZERE &

— AABR—KRARWEFAE
ERBMND IRz BH
RDAEIRERE BB R M
BAREE QA (55
WEHBAR I [BEA
Al)) - MmEdlieEIIBE
28 B B8 & &) B & 1 B F AR
A 3K B HART Al 5 K 2 B F)
A skAN AR B AR E BB
RERRBERITHZHEBA
A EE 2 N AL 1S 2 IR
B R
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

(2)

the Special Reserve:

— shall not be treated as realised profits of
the Company; and

— shall, for so long as the Company shall
remain a limited company, be treated as
an undistributable reserve of the Company
for the purposes of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the People’s Republic of China) or any
statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof.

Provided always that:

(1)

the Special Reserve may be applied for the
same purposes as a share premium account
may lawfully be applied;

the amount standing to the credit of the
Special Reserve may be reduced by an amount
equal to any increase, after the Effective Date,
in the share premium account of the Company
which results from an issue of shares (other
than for the purposes of any redemption or
purchase by the Company of its own shares)
for cash or other consideration or by way of
the capitalisation of distributable profits or
reserves, and the Company shall be at liberty
to transfer the amount so reduced to the
general reserves of the Company and the same
shall become available for distribution;

the amount credited to the Special Reserve in
accordance with the foregoing provisions of
this undertaking shall not at any time exceed
$1,762,999,500 (the “Limit”);

29 BK - Rt MR B (#)

(d) HEEERBENE)
(ii) FFEEE (&)
(2) BRI

- TEEBAKATZEER
BF R

- REARADASBERRAR -
RIFCRFHRAD (R EAR
HMBEE BRI AP
F=t_—F)IEIRERM
HAffE 2 (BB IERT -
HERGAR/ARE 25D
IR

e

(1) 5 5\ 685 R P AR 38 F  B £ )t 1B
R BERE

(2) HRIFEEERSBEAHADR - &
BREEMABR - AHETRD
(AARRRERKBEARS KD
FHRINBBER S E MR ER
BBENEAI DIRB A KT
SIMARA O EBRENZ
8 o ARA R B BHE AL LR A
ZHERRBZ—REE ME
FAEEAHEDIKZA

(8) RIRAAGE < £l iR FC A% Al
ez eREEARKBEH TG
#381,762,999,5007T ([ B R
#w])
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)
Provided always that: (continued)

(4)

the Limit may be reduced by the amount of any
increase, after the Effective Date, in the paid-
up share capital or share premium account
of the Company which results from an issue
of shares (other than for the purposes of any
redemption or purchase by the Company of
its own shares) for cash or other consideration
or by way of the capitalisation of distributable
profits or reserves;

the Limit may be reduced upon the liquidation,
disposal or other realisation, after the Effective
Date, of a subsidiary, an associated company
or any of the financial or fixed assets of the
Company by the amount of the provision
made in relation to such subsidiary, associated
company or financial or fixed assets as at 30
September 2003 less such amount (if any) as
credited to the Special Reserve as a result of
such liquidation, disposal or realisation; and

in the event that the amount standing to the
credit of the Special Reserve at any time
exceeds the Limit after any reduction of the
Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or (5) above,
the Company shall be at liberty to transfer
the amount of any such excess to the general
reserves of the Company and the same shall
become available for distribution.

The Special Reserve of $112,016,000 credited in
2004 was reduced to Nil during the year ended 31
December 2006 due to an increase in the share
premium account of the Company which resulted
from an issue of shares in 2006.

29 BrK - MRS
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

After the Effective Date, shares were issued during
the prior years through placing and exercise
of share options. Pursuant to the proviso (4)
above, the Limit was reduced by the amount
of any increase in the paid-up share capital or
share premium account of the Company which
results from an issue of shares for cash or other
consideration. At 31 December 2014, the Limit
was reduced to Nil and no further amount will be
credited to the Special Reserve.

(iv) Goodwill arising on consolidation

(v)

The goodwill arising on consolidation has been
set up and dealt with in accordance with the
transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3 (August
2004), goodwill which had previously been taken
directly to reserves (i.e. goodwill which arose
before 1 January 2001) will not be recognised
in profit or loss on disposal or impairment of
the acquired business, or under any other
circumstances.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(y).

(vi) Property revaluation reserve

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain
properties previously occupied by the Group as
owner-occupied property were transferred to
investment properties and a revaluation surplus
of $107,153,000 was credited to property
revaluation reserve to account for the difference
between the carrying amounts and the fair values
of the properties at the date of change in use,
determined using market comparison approach by
independent firms of surveyors.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group is
not distributable as at 31 December 2014 and
2018.

29 &R A -

e LR ()

(d) EEEERE(E)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vii) Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and

29 BeK - Rt MRS (#)

(d) FELEERBN(E)

(vii) A7 EfEE
AREFBEENGEAREZEF
EBFLFRARBZRAEHFERE
RIEW Q) (M)A &t KR

is dealt with in accordance with the accounting B
policies in notes 1(g) and (m).

(viii) Other reserves (vili) B (1
Other reserves comprise: H i B rE:

Wi IFE R s 2 B R EEIE
ZRERN R 5 B B Z REEfR

— the difference between the consideration paid -
for the acquisition of non-controlling interests
and the carrying amount of non-controlling ZEBR IR (R B 4
interest at the transaction date, less the foreign 5 [ /B8 7/ R i E A 2 T
exchange movements on translation of those &
subsidiaries attributable to the non-controlling
interests; and

— the difference between the fair value of -

the Group’s equity interest in subsidiaries
transferred to the acquiree for the acquisition
of subsidiaries and the net assets value
attributable to the non-controlling interests in

AEEEEBZTREBARZ
P 188 = &) (X U i Pl 8 2 =) T 8
BE)PZBEZ DA ERIE
BEDEEEER TR KERR
ZHBRARNR B EEF

respect of the subsidiaries transferred to the B2 =% -

acquiree at the transaction date.

(ix) Reserve fund (ix) FEEZ
Statutory reserve — wholly foreign-owned enterprises AERE-—EIELE
Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which AEBURTEZMBLR(2INE
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, follow EE)RKBERRENELEZHE
the accounting principles and relevant financial SHRAAERBBATEER((HEA
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly REFRA-2HNERE])  RE
foreign-owned enterprises (‘PRC GAAP — WFOE”), SRR BHRE - REBE(EHE
in the preparation of its accounting records and & 5 HIE (81 & (2000)255%] ) - K&
financial statements. Pursuant to the accounting RAABFRRBIHRFEARES
regulations for business enterprises (1% & 514 RAI -2 EREIFBMRE 2B
JZ 81 € (2000)25%%]), the subsidiaries are required HA10% 8 REXTEfMEE - B
to appropriate 10% of the profit arrived at in AETANEETMREITER - 1t
accordance with PRC GAAP — WFOE for each year sh - RBEEIBERA (EMERTMAR
to a statutory reserve. The profit arrived at must AT 1B1R ) 2R TE R 18 07 A A
be used initially to set off against any accumulated BEEADIRES - WEBARZA—H
losses. The appropriations to statutory reserve, BRABNELERHE  EEAER
after offsetting against any accumulated losses, REEFMEARE0% /I - HIRE
must be made before the distribution of dividends FETEARERELADIK -
to equity owners. The appropriation is required Al AR HE R RS R BRI -
until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. This statutory reserve is not
distributable in the form of cash dividends, but may
be used to set off losses or be converted into paid-
in capital.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(e) Distributability of reserves

U]

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under the
provisions of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), was $800,047,000 (2013:
$536,038,000). After the balance sheet date the
directors proposed a final dividend of 6.0 cents per
ordinary share (2013: 5.0 cents per ordinary share),
amounting to $269,023,000 (2013: $224,186,000)
(note 29(b)(i)). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis and considers the cost of capital
and the associated risks. Based on recommendations
of the board of directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, new shares issues
or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 20183.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there were adequate working capital to service its
debt obligation. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, as at 31
December 2014 was 43% (2013: 41%).

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

29 &R A -

(e) RED

()

FA=PSEENE D),

RER
RZZE—NF+_A=+—8 ' RE
NBEBRAKH (F6228) F63 2
HEHE  A#HOSERTARGREZ
fit 1% #4258 5 800,047,000 L (—Z & — =
4 : 536,038,0007C ) ° \,ﬁ%;'%iElfé
EEERRERBERESREAAA6.0
W ZE—=%F: FRT@Z5.010) -
& # 269,023,000 T (= F — =
224186000ﬁﬁ(Mﬁ$29(X)) E\%ﬁi

B hERETEERRAE
EXxEE

AEBEREAZTIZENETRRTE
BHESETRRRBROEARL X - Mﬁ
REBEE  ARRREREAN R

$EIEEE§$ SERRE - TER

EREEMRN 2 BB ERNRBIEL A
% AEEETE BRI EARRE - A0
NEBEARARMEBERR - REES
EZEE  AKREEEBAMIN TR
RZBEBEE - BITHBEOHAERHID
Eﬁ@ﬁ HAOFEE %ﬁﬁ%%o
REBE-_T-—MEER-_FT—=F+t=-A

=1- Hmmm¢rm BHEE - K
RARFEZITE -

AEEZEB2RBREERARERERRT

R AEEZER  RREEEREE
MEYTE BRERWEFAL
&% - R=FE—MEF=A=+—

B AEEZEEEBRLR(AAEE
CHRBBERUNREEMSZH) 543%
TE—=F 41%) e

BT BRRME25ME 2 RITRE
ARAETEBASEV B R HH
G - A R EATAI M B A R &SN
RN BERF TR o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from
the date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in respect
of revenue from environmental energy, environmental
water and alternative energy project operation services
which are settled on a monthly basis. In addition, the
Group has gross amounts due from customers for
contract work and other receivables in respect of the
BT, BOT and TOT arrangements.

At the balance sheet date, “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” and “Gross amounts
due from customers for contract work” of the Group
amounted to $6,350,356,000 (2013: $4,349,179,000)
and $13,840,743,000 (2013: $9,976,612,000)
respectively, of which $1,600,208,000 (2013:
$1,022,831,000) and $2,953,231,000 (2013:
$5,956,981,000) were due from the largest customer
and five largest customers in aggregate of the Group.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. Since the parties to BT, BOT and TOT
arrangements are local government authorities in the
PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low.
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0 HHAREENEMIARNAE

AEMERRLEBBRTASESBAM
% BEEEEAR  ADELER - A=A,
BERSNERR o tSh - REERELERE
2 BRAIRE RS R R A AR AR -

AEBEASZ Bl EREFBARAEER
AERE Eat ke 2 B isEREREBRE TR
RT3 -

(a) FERME
ERERETRENEERR  XHE
ERSEMEHZEERR - EHAR
HEERHEF=tTZATERIIH -

AEBZEREFIEREBRFER « R
RKERFERBE ZELERBEKEZ
FEUGRIE - BRIFKIERR AURER © tEoh -
KNEB A ABEBT - BOTRTOTLZH 2
JEWBFAHNTRERFBAENEMEK

REER  AEBZIERER
HtmksE  2e kHEMNZKE]
FITRERKEEFAHNIEREREE D
A % 6,350,356,000 7L ( = & — = F :
4,349,179,000 7t ) K& 13,840,743,000 T

— =& — =4 :9976,612,000 T ) °
H f1,600,208,000 7T ( = F — = 4
1,022,831,0007T ) }2,953,231,0007% ( —
T—=4F : 5956,981,0007T) 7 Bl AAE
ESAREPRARMNAAREA R - 12
ERBzEeSEEREEEBRTIESE
PHEEZEREmMEZY - ARBT » BOT
MTOTLEE R 2514075 A BlE Ho BT
- MAEERAEERBRBE -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company to its subsidiaries, the Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of the financial guarantees at
the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 36. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from “Debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments” as well as
“Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” are set out in notes 19 and 20 respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

30 BEREEER TR IARNAEME)

(a)

(b)

EERK(E)

BRTARRRBETHEBARELZME
BRI REBUEREIASSAE
B A RREZEERRZER - RE
BH - AEERUHEHFEERMAEZ
EERBRERE#HNRME6 - A5H
[FEUBREN ~ HibfBUFE « e RFEN
FE R EREFPAH TIEFUBLARE AT
HEERRCE—THBERE - DRI
RHEE195%20 °

REBETER
AEEENBYEEERABTRRR
TEETHF ERESAEBZEHRE
SREFUNRNERRESFR - W
EEBHEERESRE  NAES AT
EEQMETAEE - AEEZHE
EEHERRBESMBEMEREYE
ERm2BITRN  BREEARFTER
MRS HEBREEZVHEEBEINGE RSN
WAGREERE WENEHLREHR
PEEFR o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.
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0 AR EENEMIARNAE(E)

(b) REEEER(E)

TRINRAEERARBREER 23
METAPBABEZRBAOHMRE
o WARTHRMBRRERE(BRIERE
MNRH(MBEE)REEERBITLZ
MERFABZNE) RAKERAREAE
ERERAFECRFAHASEEMIL -

The Group AEH
2014 213
RmE 5=
Total Total
contractual Morethan  More than contractual Morethan ~ More than
unaliscounted Within 1 year 2 years undiscounted Within 1 year 2 years
cashflow  fyearor  butwithin  but within cashflow  1yearor  butwithin  but within
Camying  AT4AEZ o demand 2years  Syears  Moethen  Caming AR  ondemand 2years  5years  Morethan
amount  FERE  FAw  FR WEK Swas  amt  RERE  EAY FE BEK Sy
KEE g REX ERERN  BRER Rk EREE g% BEx EmEMN BIER BEK
§000 §1000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §1000 §1000 §000
T T T T T T T T n n n T
Interest-bearing HERE
borrowings 9,136,511 10,703,197 3,032,888 1,398377 4133202 2138730 6,921,121 7833421 2076310 2288531 2680025 788556
Creditors, other payables %3 - EtEf 38
andaccrued expenses  REFER 2318231 2,317,240 2,301,390 15,850 - - 1783757 1,733,757 1,733,767 - - -
11,454,742 13020437 5334278 1,414,207 4133202 2,138,730 8654878 9567178 3810067 2288531 2680025 788556
The Company ¥ NN
2014 2013
E-mE 5%
Total Total
contractual Morethan  More than contractual More than -~ More than
undiiscounted Within 1 year 2 years undiscounted Within 1 year 2 years
cashflow  fyearor  butwithin  but within cashfow  fyearor  butwithin  but within
Caryng F478% ondemand  2yews  Syeas Mot  Caming THAHE ondemand  2yes  Syears
anont~ B&j “EfE EE §ER byes  amnt  BERE  —ERY —FE WEK
Bk g % EmER  ERER RER EKEE 28 REX ERFR ELER
§1000 §000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §1000 §1000 §000 §000
T T T T T T T v T v T
Interest-bearing borrowings 352 & 2207453 2400560 794906 112353 980660 512650 1266925 1331009 143540 1004703 92847
Other payables andaccrued — EfpERFER B R
£Xpenses 50,179 50,179 50,179 - - - 35,692 35,692 35,692 - -
2,257,632 2450748 845085 112,353 980660 512,650 1,302617 1,366,791 179241 1,004,703 92,847

Fi,nanci(?l quarantees BfeZBIEER
Issued

Maximum amount quaranteed S HERSE (1z36)
(note 36) - 1,375,024 1,375,024 -

- - 207798 220779 - -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BEREEER TR IARNAEME)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits,
loan receivable, bank loans and notes payable.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group
does not use financial derivatives to hedge against the
interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings
(being interest-bearing financial liabilities less loan
receivable, bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) at the balance sheet date.

(c) RI=mE

AEEEHZANEZRR  TEHETEH
ZHRERBATEEY  ROIGFX - EBY
B |ROTERRENRE - FBHN
ERBEEMNEHS L ZERSANEED H
AR SRENERR RAAENEAE
B AEEVEFNBERITETARY
A RER o AREZF RN A EE
EEEER » FFEIN T ()

(i) FIEBER
TREINAEERARBRER R
ZEEFE (AT EMBREREE
WER RTERRBAERAESF
B 2 M XM -

The Group rE
2014 2013
—Z-mE —F-=
Effective Effective
interest rate $000 interest rate $:000
ERAZ v ERF= T
Net fixed rate borrowings/ EEEE/(FH)FE
(deposits):
Bank loans BITER 2.89% - 7.50% 1,267,769  4.70% - 6.00% 388,786
Less: Loan receivable W ERER - - 11% (51,156)
Deposits with bank RITER 0.97% - 4.25% (824,110)  1.95% - 4.25% (1,345,404)
Cashand cash equivalents B2 EREEEY 0.45% - 3.05% (1,033,938)  0.30% - 3.71% (2,506,297)
(590,279) (3,514,071)
Net variable rate FEREEFE
borrowings:
Bank loans RITER 1.45% - 8.00% 7,868,742  1.44%-7.21% 6,532,335
Less: Other receivables, o EEIEE  BER
deposits and prepayments L EE 6.00% (31,150) - -
Pledged bank deposits BEBRITER 0.35% - 1.35% (231,943)  0.35%-1.27% (43,468)
Cashand cash equivalents ~ BARBAZEYM  0.01% - 1.49% (3,060,158) 0.01% - 1.27% (1,919,437)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, SOy 4060430
Total net borrowings BEEFH 3,955,212 1,055,359
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BEEEER TR IARAEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FIEER(E)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) () FIEBLL(E)
The Company P/ /NI
2014 2013
“E-ME —E3-=F
Effective Effective
interest rate $:000 interest rate $:000
ERM= T ERA% T
Fixed rate deposits: EREZ:
Deposits with bank BAER 0.97% - 1.18% (717,358)  1.95% - 4.10% (1,300,000)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELSED 0.90% - 1.30% (801,451)  0.30% - 1.74% (2,100,054)
(1,518,809) (3,400,054)
Net variable rate FEREEFE:
borrowings:
Bank loans BITER 1.48% - 2.711% 2,207,453 2.06% - 2.80% 1,266,925
Less: Cash and cash B RE kR EEY
equivalents 0.02% - 0.39% (304,469) 0.01% - 0.39% (252,392)
1,902,984 1,014,533

Total net borrowings/(deposits) & / (T73h) F& 384,175 (2,385,521)
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of one percent
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit before taxation by approximately
$39,552,000 (2013: $10,554,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before
taxation that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the balance sheet date, the impact on the
Group’s profit before taxation is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2013.

(d) Currency risk

Majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. Presently, there is no hedging policy
with respect of the foreign exchange exposure. The
Group’s transactional currencies are Chinese Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars as substantially all the turnover
are within Hong Kong and other parts in the PRC. With
the natural hedging of the revenue and costs being
denominated in Chinese Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, the Group’s transactional foreign exchange
exposure was insignificant.

With respect to borrowings and creditors denominated
in United States dollars (“USD”), the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations is insignificant as Hong
Kong dollars is pegged to USD.

30 BEREEER TR IARNAEME)

(c) RI=mE (&)

(i)

HREZ T
RZZE—NE+_-_A=+—8 " &
AEEMG  MARBELEH T
FIEELH MABEMTER
RERFTE  AEEZBRBAIAF
5 &% 4 #8049 39,552,000 7T
—T—=% :10,554,0007T) °

ERABERESFIE L ANEEZRR
RIBRN PR EL 2 N & F) - GUK
EoMBRERNEZEPINEERCK
B4 YERAREMFSEASEMN
FEYREEREASEREAR
BNERBZEHMTE - HREXR
SERGEEAMTEZZEFERIE
TETAMEEZRESRMNEME
& HYAKERBAMBNZZE
EENNREBMEL 2 HE X H
FWAERBE - BESIMBR-F
—=F 2z 2 HAREELETT -

(d) SMERER
AEBKRE DX B AIEBER 28
B¥EE BRI - ASEIWEFEINE
B EHREE c AEE IR HEER
AREREE  RRAERNEMBEEHE
BHIREBBRPEEMME o &R
ARKARAANRE R BEEE - MEE
EBREMIER  MAKEERS LM
EEZERERER -

ERUERTHEZBEREMNER - @
REBTERETEE  MEREKHZTE
EI
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(e) Equity price risk

30 BEEEER TR IARAEE)

(e) BRAEE P

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-
sale equity securities (see note 18). The Group’s listed
investments are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long
term strategic purposes. The management monitors
regularly the performance of the investments against
expectation, together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (2013: 10%) in that relevant stock
market index (for listed investments) or the price/
earning ratios of comparable listed companies (for
unquoted investments) as applicable, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity as follows:

AEBEAZBEARE (WBERRFERAN
EH - HRME18) 2R AEBRESHE
B AKREZ EMREHEREBH AR
SARRBIR EBBSR LT -
AEEZFEMREHSRYIRER D
mEd - -EEEEHNEERRAREZE
RERHRE  YFEEERERGR
BAKE 2 KRR TS -

RZZFE—WOF+ZA=+—H ' BX&E
EfhEr - nEBERMIERGEAR EHK
B)R A HER T AR CTAE(CGER
RIELEMRE) (BREERB) LA/ TH
10%(ZZF—=4F : 10%) * MATAEAM
TERESERFTE  AEEZEREEDR
2 H A ES D AS =G N/ R AT

The Group AEH
2014 2013
—F-mE “F-=%
Effect on other Effect on other
components components
of equity of equity
HiEn e HiER
52 Atz 52
$:000 $:000
v i
Change in the relevant BERLAERER
equity price risk variable:  TEEZZ &1 -
Increase 7 10% 19,856 10% 15,202
Decrease T 10% (19,856) 10% (15,202)
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(e) Equity price risk (continued)

U]

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index or other relevant
risk variables had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the balance sheet date.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index or the relevant risk variables, that none
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments would
be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock market index or other relevant risk
variables, and that all other variables remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the balance sheet date on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

30 BEREEER TR IARNAEME)

(e) RA&EEER(E)

U]

ERFERELSTIELARE ZRAE R
ZEHMEM A REEL 2 AR EH o BUX
DM RR A 45 Bk H A AE B L B T
TARZEPNEERDREL - XD
AREFAEAREMFBLNEE R
EASEHERAERRRZER®T
B i TREAKERARE ZA
fo (B 2 AR 15 52 AE B A 15 B AR B /R
TERRZEFENELHEEMEE
2 AREZHERETERSIEM
P Th 5 Bk H A AE B Rl B N E = N B
MR REHREE  UARABEEMT
ERZBFAE - ARAOTIR_FT—=
F 2o 2 HRELELETT o

DAREFE

() BRAAEGEZHBEEERRE

NAERERR
TRITAEEREERREE T
BERGECEMIANARE A
CRIAGEATEMBRESER
FA13 [ A EFEIMREZ =1
ARERBERA - RREFEME
B BB 2R TN HE RS
BEZABEEREERERREME
E

- FRMHE:ERE -RBE
(MEtERRHMEREESRE
ERBMS 2 REHBERE ) 5T

BZRRE
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BEEEER TR IARAEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f) DAEFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BAREFTECZHEEERAE
value (continued) (#&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NRERERR(E)

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using - BZRHE: FRELEE
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which (BIRBEREE —RME 2T
fail to meet Level |, and not using significant HRE 2H8E  WERNMEAT
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are ERBIZEBHIB)FTEZ
inputs for which market data are not available ARlE - TAERIGE 2 BURE

REEETISEE 2 28Uk
— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using — FB=HHE: FATAUEBRER
significant unobservable inputs LEEHBHAECANE
Fair valug at Fair valug at
31 December Fair value measurements as at 31 December Fair value measrements s at
2014 31 December 2014 categorised into 2013 31 December 2013 categorised into
NE-BE  TERR-S-RET-AZT-B  WZE-2F THERRCE-ZFtzR=t-A
121 PAN 25 L
=1-H Level 1 Level2 Level 3 =t-f Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
L0RE Ea £2h - A 4 5k £24
$000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i fr i fr n D n i
The Group £}
Recuring fairvalue ~ #5#477 1 £+
measurements
Assets: BE:

Avalable-for-sale squty  EERAEE -

securtis:

- Listed i 209,610 209,610 - - 172,811 172,811 - -

- Unlisted = A 19,402 - 3899 15,50 3899 - 3899 -
Ligoiltes: Bg:

Derivative financial fTEeBIA:
instruments:
-Oross-cumency swap ~ — RN EMEE 2,239 - 2,239 - - - - -
- Warrants - HRES 991 - 991 = - - - -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 BEREEER TR IARNAEME)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f) DAEFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BAREGTEZHBEEEREE

value (continued) (%)
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and RBE-_T—=FR-_FT—NF
2014, there were no transfers between Level 1 +ZA=+—HLEFER F—H
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The REZFKzELEEMEL - &
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between FHEEBANBLE=/MA - &
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the balance sheet JHEREREREBRABBEEE
date in which they occur. HHER AR BERER 2 EHNER -

Falr value at Fair valug at
31 December Falr valug measurements as at 31 December Fair value measurements &s at
2014 31 December 2014 categorised info 2013 31 December 2013 categorised info
NE-BE  TEAR-S-RETZAZT-B RIE-ZF THEAMCE-ZEtZRzt-A
. hnBiE . hnEHE

=t-H Level 1 Level2 Level 3 =1-8 Level 1 Level2 Level 3
0B 2h iR =8 0RE Ea -k E
$000 §000 $000 $000 §000 $000 §000 $000
n r n fr n n n S

The Company LY

Recurring fair valve #5447 1312

measurements
fssets: g5
Avalablefor-sele equty  FEERAES -
securttis:

- Unlisted = Al 3,899 - 3,899 - 3,899 - 3,809 -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

30 BEEEER TR IARAEE)

(continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f) 2REFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BAAEFECHEEEREBRE
value (continued) (&

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The fair value of available-for-sale equity securities
in Level 2 represent an investment in a property
investment company, with its investment
properties (being significant part of the total
assets) stated at fair value. The fair value of such
investment is determined based on net asset value
of the investee which is approximately the fair
value.

The fair value of cross-currency swaps in Level
2 is estimated by the discounted cash flow
approach, assuming that the Group entered into
an offsetting position in the swap at the valuation
date, such that the fair value at the valuation date
would be the sum of the present value of the net
payoffs from the original position and the offsetting
position on the scheduled payment dates. The
cash flows associated with the assumed offsetting
position on the scheduled payment dates were
estimated based on the forward exchange rates
with matching maturities at the valuation date. The
net payoffs were discounted to present values at
the risk-free rates with matching maturities and
currencies.

The fair value of warrants in Level 2 is estimated
using the Binomial Valuation model.

F-MAREFTEMER 2 A ERM
ISE2¢7
F_MZBERABSFZAAER
R—FKYERERAZRE » %A
AZBREMEERBREEEKRE
MIBAAREIER BFHEREZA
RERBHERERR CEEFEE
o EREEFEEAAEREE -

F_RZRXEBEBM 2 RET
BB RBBAMGEE - REAEE
REERHFTIHEFEZIEHE
o ARNEERHzAAERKER
RIEEMNK B HRRA R Fat
HEREFHEAERZRE - HE
FERBEENRBEBNRSRTIIZ
B K JE B P ¥R 2 R R EE R AR (B
it FREBEMBCHEREREYN
fEm B 2B ER R W RRERE
BE -

F_MZRBERBZRIARETIER
“IRABERAGE -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

30 BEREEER TR IARNAEME)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f) AAREFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BATEFTEZHEEEREE
value (continued) (4 )
Information about Level 3 fair value measurement BRAE=MAREFEZEN
The fair value of unquoted equity investments is FELFTRAIEEZ ARBIIRRE
estimated with reference to the expected future BRAREZEHAKESRMMA -
cash flows of the investments.
The movements during the year in the balance WEBE=BAAREFEZEHRRF
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as N2 ZBIT:
follows:
Unlisted available-for-sale FELMAERTES $'000
equity securities T
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and WR-_Z—=F—H—H
1 January 2014 —E-—=F+-A=t+—HK
—EF—-mFE—-—H—H -
Purchase of a limited partnership in HEEE—AREESHN K
an investment fund BRETEINAT 15,503
At 31 December 2014 W_ZE-—NHFE+-_A=+—H 15,503

Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, bank deposits, current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and
creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short
term maturity of these financial instruments. The
carrying amounts of non-current portion of other
receivables and deposits, gross amounts due from
customers for contract work and interest-bearing
borrowings approximate their fair values.

(1)

The fair values of the above financial assets and
liabilities are determined based on the discounted
cash flow approach. The estimated cash flows are
based on the management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is market-related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

(i) AFRAEIERZTHTAZAAE

ReERREFEY  BYRERENR - R
Tl - REKIA - He kB

MRE D - A RE MK
R HMENRBAREFERFRA
BZAAERNEZREETYES
RER RARLETSRT AR
BNEF s B HA A 2 H o EL i IR
BERkRe 2RI  BEEP
BRIENEEBREREEZER
EEERE 2 AARERE °

LA BEERMBABZ AR
DR RBIVEFTEEE - REt
ReRnBREZTZREMRFFTE
MERERASREEBERUTAZ
MIZRBLE -



Annual Report 2014
—E-WFEFR

255 1N

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &Rk MRt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 7ERESN + FiE S BB E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

30 BEEEER TR IARAEE)

(continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued) () DREFEE)
(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at (i) KIERAEIRZ @B TAZIAE
other than fair value (continued) (&

As set out in note 15, the Company had amounts
due from/to subsidiaries which are interest-
free, it is not considered practicable to estimate
the fair values of the amounts because the cost
of obtaining discount and borrowing rates for
comparable borrowings would be excessive.

31 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited

(“HanKore”, currently known as China
Everbright Water Limited)

On 30 December 2013, the Group entered into
a framework agreement with HanKore, pursuant
to which, the Group transferred its investments in
environmental water segment to HanKore and in return
HanKore agreed to allot and issue shares to the Group.
Upon the completion of the transaction, the Group
held more than 50% of the enlarged share capital of
HanKore and HanKore became a subsidiary of the
Group.

On 2 June 2014, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreement with HanKore, pursuant to
which, the Group transferred its equity interest
in China Everbright Water Investments Limited
(“CEWIL”), which holds all of the environmental water
projects of the Group, to HanKore and HanKore
issued 1,940,269,305 new shares to the Group and
became a subsidiary of the Group. The transaction
was completed on 12 December 2014. Effectively
the Group transferred 22% equity interest in CEWIL
to the shareholders of HanKore and gained control
over HanKore. The Group holds approximately 78%
equity interest in HanKore after the completion of the
transaction.

MM 15 E - AAFRAFE
W B R RRIE - BRNIEA
TEAME - AREGERUEENRS
REREFRNEORABS @ BA
RARBTIERBFTEBREZRA
& -

31 W B B A 7
(a) ENBENZEEERA T (ER ]

BRHPBXARKBERAFE)

RZFB—=F+-"A=1tH AEEH
EMEIMAERZE - Bt - AKERE
KIETRERKBEB DB REERET
ER - MR AR B R R BT RD

AEENERM - EEBRXHTHRIE -
AEBERFEEMBEARKER50%
MEMKBEEEKH BT -

MN-T—FENA-H  NEBFEER
FIVEEHZ - Bt AEEEZEE
i Bl RKEIEEER AR (K
AKBERE ] (BEAEEMRBRRFE
KIFEB ) IR FIER - miEB R BT
1,940,269,3058% ¥TR% 17 T AL - WHK
AXEENHBAR - REAXKSERZ
T—mE+—-A+-—HRK EAEE
BEOO% ARG ERETERZ
RE%  AEBER EESERAIEG
o RMRFTERE  AEBFFHERLY
78% A% HE o
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31 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited
(“HanKore”, currently known as China

Everbright Water Limited) (continued)

The net assets acquired and the goodwill arising from

the transaction are as follows:

B S BRNBEE)

31 WEEMT B AT (&)
(a) ERBENFEBERAT (EN]

BBPEEARKBERQE) (E)

T

WEMSEEFBEARRGELEZEHEN

Fair value
on date of
acquisition

AUk E B HA
ZAnfE
$’000
T
Property, plant and equipment W - BERE&E 17,910
Intangible assets mEEE 810,951
Gross amounts due from customers for EWEE A4 TIRRTEA%E &
contract work and other receivables H th e U FRI8 2,730,857
Inventories & 6,209
Trade and other receivables JFEE U5 AR 3 R L A FE U SR IR 206,885
Tax recoverable ALY [E1F I8 9
Pledged bank deposits EHEIFRITFR 142,104
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEY 288,494
Borrowings BE (1,131,531)
Trade and other payables JE A~ BR SR % LA JE A< IR (352,693)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE (479,758)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EEFELE(EARE) 2,239,437
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M AR (492,491)
Net assets acquired WIBFTIS B EF5E 1,746,946
Goodwill recognised EEREE 814,052
2,560,998
Purchase consideration BERE
— Fair value of 22% equity interest in — R T IEE R 2 22%
CEWIL transferred to non-controlling FHARKGIRERE 2 AR E
shareholders 2,560,998
Cash consideration HEeRE -
Cash acquired WEmSHEe 288,494
Net cash inflow REMAFRE 288,494
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31 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 31 WEEHI B R E (&)
(a) HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited (a) ERBRERBEEEERAT ([ER] -

(“HanKore”, currently known as China
Everbright Water Limited) (continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of $21,445,000
for this acquisition. These costs have been expensed
and included in “Administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2014,
HanKore contributed revenue of $41,293,000 and loss
of $17,044,000 to the Group’s net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Had the acquisition taken
place on 1 January 2014, the consolidated revenue
and profit for the year of the Group would have been
$6,813,421,000 and $1,563,363,000 respectively. In
determining these amounts, management assumed
that the fair value adjustments to the acquired assets
and liabilities that arose on the date of acquisition
would have been the same if the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2014.

Measurement of fair values

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair
value of material assets and liabilities acquired are as
follows:

Assets acquired Valuation technique

Property, plant and Discounted cash flow
equipment

Intangible assets

Gross amounts due from
customers for contract
work and other receivables

Discounted cash flow
Discounted cash flow

BBPEXEAKBERQE)(E)

AEBERRERIELER HHKA
21,445,0007C ° Lt ERAENEFE HL
KPP FATITHRERIA -

REE-_FT—WmOF+=_A=+—8H
HFEE BRBEHZE-_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—BH8A EREBKE
41,293,0007T f 72 78 & B )5 28 K 75 2R /&5
$817,044,0007C ° WEBERXZTIN_F
—mE—A— AT AEBZERLE
A BRI 5 R £6,813,421,0007T
1.1,568,363,0007T ° L& E I F ¢ 5
B EEERIMEEREN =2 —MN
F—A—RH%4E WEMBSEERARE
RIWEBEE 2 AR BERBERFTE -

AR EFE
AEWRBMBEREERBEZIAAGE
FrE M 2 hERMmn T

BB REE 1 tE &M

E RN G BamhE A

BIVEE BamhEA
RBEFPAEHIIE B mEA
TOALRER M H A

FEUs R IR
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B S BRNBEE)

31 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Qingdao Veolia Water Operating Company
Limited (“Qingdao Veolia”, currently known as
Qingdao Everbright Water Operating Limited)
On 24 July 2014, the Group entered into an agreement
with Veolia Water S.A. (“Veolia”), the controlling
shareholder of the Group’s associate, Qingdao Veolia,
pursuant to which Veolia agreed to sell and the Group
agreed to purchase additional 78% equity interest in
Qingdao Veolia at a consideration of RMB1,800,000
(equivalent to approximately $2,253,000). The Group
holds 99% equity interest in Qingdao Veolia following
the completion of the transaction.

Lianyungang Suzukigumi Hazardous Waste
Treatment Limited (“Suzukigumi”)

On 15 January 2014, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to purchase
100% equity interest in Suzukigumi at a consideration
of RMB26,040,000 (equivalent to approximately
$33,302,000). Suzukigumi became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and was renamed to Everbright
Environmental (Lianyungang) Hazardous Waste
Treatment Limited following the completion of the
transaction.

31 WEEHEB AR (&)

(b)

(c)

EERUBKEKELERAG(ES

B ABEEXARKBELER
YNCTD)

N-ZFE—OE+A=-+WNA  AEEHR
Veolia Water S.A.([ BIZHE | - 2N 55 [ B
BNRE BB TR R ) 5T S W
FoB RUBKREHE  mMALE
REEINEE SR HERT8%E
KB A AR 1,800,000t (HHERL
2,253,0007T) - ER B TEHIE + AEE
BESBEHEIIW%ALHE

BEEARAABRRYEEARLA
(EEBKAE]D
R-ZE-—NFE-A+HA  AEEHEF
VYE=FERIMUGE  BEEEERAA
100% Ak 1 - KB & A KR % 26,040,000
7T (HEE 1 4933,302,0007T ) ° EE B
AEXSAEEZ2EMBAR - AR
RPTEREDBRBNAARKRCEEE) BE
RYREARRAA e

Net cash acquired from the acquisition of (d) WEEKMIB AR SRS FEE
subsidiaries
2014
—T—MmF
$’000
Tt
Acquisition of HanKore (note 31(a)) Ue B ERH(FIFE31(a)) 288,494
Acquisition of other subsidiaries W s B Ath B /BB 2 )
(notes 31(b) and 31(c)) (Fft3%31(b) &231(c)) (25,804)
262,690

32 ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On

24 July 2014, the Group entered into an agreement

with Veolia, the non-controlling shareholder of the EB-
VW HK Holding Company Limited (“EB-VW”, the Group’s
60% owned subsidiary), pursuant to which Veolia agreed
to sell and the Group agreed to purchase the remaining
40% equity interest in EB-VW at a consideration of RMB
90,200,000 (equivalent to approximately $113,637,000).

EB-

VW becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group

and was renamed to Everbright Water (Qingdao) Holdings
Limited following the completion of the transaction.

32 W R IR IR AR 2R

MN-B—mELA - +HE - "REBERT
(KRB HARGEESZERBRAE (X
KEMNHEESE | NEBMBEBE0%EZ 2
BB AT ) Z IEIER AR ET S sk » B 1k
BYKRELHE  MAEBREEEXK
BB BB T40%ME  REAARE
90,200,0007T (48 & 7 #9118,637,0007T ) °
RRBIBEERBAEB 22 EMB A

=

YRR EREDBRIEKKRE(FS)

BRARAT -
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32 ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING 32 WhsIFE it = ()

INTERESTS (continued)
The Group recognised:
— adecrease of non-controlling interests of $131,428,000;

— adecrease of other reserves of $2,181,000; and
- anincrease in exchange reserve of $19,972,000.
The carrying amount of EB-VW’s net assets in the Group’s
financial statements on the date of acquisition was

$330,664,000. The following summarises the changes in
the Group’s ownership interest in EB-VW:

REBEER:
- FEIEREAEEIR 42131,428,0007T ¢

- EfbE#E#ERA2,181,0000T 0 K&

- [EN M IN19,972,0007T °

AN B B 75 3R 3R PR R U B B B KBS T
BBz EEFEERMEA330,664,0007T °

TERBEARERAABIBETE 2 EHE
femEE):

$'000
Tt
The Group’s ownership interest at AEBR-_T—HFE—H—AZ
1 January 2014 Tz&ﬁ%ﬁs 131,105
Effect of increase in the Group’s AEBHmAREREN 2
ownership interest 131,428
Share of comprehensive income SMEEmEUA 5,171
The Group’s ownership interest at rEER-_ZE—NOF+=-A=+—Hz
31 December 2014 BEAEER 267,704
33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 HEEH AT Z2EARRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRTUHEFHEREREMBOABEELRZS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered RSN - AR E G B A T {TT?'JEK
into the following material related party transactions. RS o
(a) The Group entered into the following related party (a) AEEE—KEBALRITEISLT T 5
transactions with a related party bank: AEATRS :
2014 2013
— O —T—=F
$’000 $’000
Tz T
Dividend income from listed securities EWEHFREWA 10,477 3,539
Interest expense B H 16,949 11,803

Interest income F B A 22,356 2,207
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 HEBA T2 EAR Z (&)

(continued)
(b) The Group entered into the following related party (b) R&EEE —RBA QNTIEIS T 5 B
transactions with an associate: ALRS
2014 2013
—Z—mF —F—=
$'000 $'000
T T
Service expense for operation of BRESSKERMZ
waste-water treatment plants PR R 2 (F17E33(g))
(note 33(g)) 31,185 57,549
(c) The Group entered into the following related party (c) REEEEIEIERRETEI S T N5 BEHE
transactions with a non-controlling shareholder of the AT S
Group:
2014 2013
—T-lF —E—=
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Revenue from environmental water RIRKIEIER BEE R
project operation services Wz 55,292 89,300
Finance income BgA 26,753 27,710
(d) The Group entered into the following related party (d) AEEEEEB AT REIEEBEEE Y
transactions with a related company and subsidiaries BB AREIN T THBEHALTRS
of non-controlling shareholders of the Group:
2014 2013
—T—OF —F—=
$'000 $'000
T T
Revenue from environmental water project IRIR/KFTE B & & R 7%
operation services Wz 56,161 47,900
Finance income B U A 52,596 53,468
Technical service expense RS & 818 1,325
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 EH#EBA LT Z2EAR S (£)
(continued)

(e) The Group entered into the following related party (e) AEBLHE—RKRARMB ARG
transactions with a fellow subsidiary: B ALTRS :
2014 2013
—T-MF —T—=
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Purchase of a limited partnership in BELE—AREESH
an investment fund —XRXAEREBEEEINAT 15,503 -
(f) The Group paid key management personnel (f) 25BEEXNFTFTETEEEABZHRHE
compensation, including amounts paid to the RESXMARRES 2 HIEAE (RS
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain BEIREXNTETHRSFHEE CHKE
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, (RMFEOR#ER)MAT -
as follows:
2014 2013
—T-MF —T—=
$’000 $’000
T T
Salaries and other short-term employee  #H& M EMEHES
benefits L=V 65,359 65,874
Retirement scheme contributions IRRET B 3,033 1,906
68,392 67,780
Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see e BETFATEINEAIRN(RWE
note 6(b)). 6(b)) °
(9) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the (9) REZE=-_ZT—NFE+-_A=+—HLLF
Group entered into certain continuing connected B AEBFVTETHERERS -
transactions. The Company’s independent non- ARG ZBUERNTESTCEREEAR
executive directors have reviewed these transactions. 5  FARSHABEESTERSET [ HE
Details of which are disclosed under the paragraph FERS BT -

“Continuing connected transactions” in the Report of
the Directors.
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34 COMMITMENTS
(a) At 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding

purchase commitments in connection with the
Group’s construction contracts not provided for in
the financial statements of $1,844,637,000 (2013:
$1,122,456,000).

34 FEIfE
(a) RZE—WE+=-RA=+—01 ' ~x&£E
WAREFBHRERPBEEEEAREEEZE
B H 7 B AYEAB1,844,637,0007T (=
T—=4 :1,122,456,0007T) °

(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease (b) R=ZFE—NME+=ZA=+—H  BRET
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are ARRMEEEEFBERNNEA
payable as follows: EfRBENT :

The Group

REHE

2014 2013
—E—F —E-=fF
$'000 $’000
T T
Within 1 year —F R 2,429 1,076
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 2,746 119
5,175 1,195

(c)

(d)

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years. None of these leases
includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the purchase of a
limited partnership in an investment fund not provided
for in the financial statements of $23,270,000 (2013:
Nil).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to a joint venture not provided for in the financial
statements of $65,415,000 (2013: Nil).

35 PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of assets pledged are set out in note 25. The
aggregate net book value of assets and equity interests in
subsidiaries pledged amounted to $13,801,583,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: $10,695,111,000).

AEBRBELKLHEEARZEYE - A
MEE-— RS RP—Z=0%F - BYT
BExEET -

(c) RZE—WE+=-RA=+—01 ~x&£H
WAREHEHRES  BEEEE— AR
EEEH—"FRARETAUDRFZER
#¥E23,270,0007 0 (=T —=4F : #E){E
R o

d RZE—WE+=-RA=+—01  ~&£E
WARETERERPFREECETEZE
K#EYE65,415,000L( ZFE—=F | &)
EL B o

35 EEHH
ERBEEFBRNKI 25 - RZZT—MF
+_A=+—H CEBREELKHBRRRK
ez BRE F (A% A13,801,583,000 T ( —
T—=4 :10,695,111,0007T) °
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36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 kB ERIE

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued
financial guarantees to five wholly-owned subsidiaries.
The directors do not consider it is probable that a claim
will be made against the Company under the guarantees.
The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantees issued is the facility
drawn down by the subsidiaries of $1,375,024,000 (2013:
$2,207,798,000).

Due to the related party nature of the instruments, the
directors considered it is not practicable to estimate the
fair values of the financial guarantees and therefore they
have not been recognised in the Company’s financial
statements.

37 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

The Company issued various announcements in respect
of the restructuring (the “Restructuring”) of the holding
companies of the Group on 1 August 2014, 10 November
2014, 25 November 2014 and 8 December 2014. Upon
the completion of the Restructuring, the directors consider
the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be Guildford Limited and China Investment
Corporation, which are incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the PRC respectively. Neither of them
produces financial statements available for public use.

38 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE

BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a) Subscription Agreements entered into by
CEWL
On 19 January 2015, CEWL entered into subscription
agreements with each of International Finance
Corporation and Dalvey Asset Holding Limited
(together “the Investors”). CEWL has agreed to allot
and issue and the Investors have agreed to subscribe
for an aggregate of 120,690,957 new ordinary
shares in CEWL at an issue price of SGD0.94 per
share, representing gross proceeds of approximately
SGD113,449,500 (equivalent to approximately
$664,389,000), which will be utilised as working capital
to fund the growth and expansion of CEWL's business.

B % H B K ER

HELEER ARARABERZEKHBRA
EHBER BEERE BHEREAE
AT KA BEARIE Bt ¥R\ A R &) B H &
R PNEER ARQAIE LM BETS
ERIZEaAEABENEBAREIRR
2 B & 1,375,024,000 T ( — T — = 4 :
2,207,798,0007T) °

HRNERTABRABMALIEE  HEZRA
TERBFERMBER2AAE  RALER
ARz HBHRRDERGAER

37 AR MERARERAL
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5B AR » FTE S TS E)

38 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 38

BALANCE SHEET DATE (continued)

(b) Redemption of fixed rate notes
SGD21,750,000 (equivalent to approximately
$127,373,000) of the principal amount for 7.5% fixed
rate notes of SGD50,000,000 due on 1 August 2015
together with the accrued interest shall be paid on 2
March 2015 due to the exercise of redemption rights
by the holders subsequent to the year end.

39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 39
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2014 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

MERIRIEARFTIH(E)

(b) EEIEREE
AREFELEERREBRBEATEE
EEF - R _ZT—RAF/\A—HEIH
7K 8850,000,000%1 N3 T2 7. .58 F B
Z g 221,750,000 M3 T (A E R
49127,373,0007C ) :E R FEFTFIE - AR
—ET-RE=ZA-_B%ff-

EAMERBEE_T-HFE+_HA
=t —BUEFERRERZEF
HMER Re i 2 Rl RER &

REtEHBHRETZEE - BESHAS
ERAMBORIERT KA ER - ZFER] R E
ARBE—T-—ME+_A=T—RALFE
WARER - WEMBERRTERBZEFER
KR AERI o A] BE BN ER B AR RE RO (E R S 4
AT

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
B AT BHjsk
ZIERBZ g5t
AR AR
Annual improvements to BB BEHRE A —E—FFES 1 July 2014
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle ZECFEH L FENE —E-WFE+A—H
Annual improvements to BB HRE R —FE——FF 1 July 2014
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle ZE—CFEH FENE —ZET-MOFELHA—A
Amendments to HKFRS 11, BB BWMELERE 115 2185 — 1 January 2016
Accounting for acquisitions of (WG &R B Em s @i 5% —ZE—-XF¥—A—H
interests in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 16 and BB ERE16R R BB S ER] 1 January 2016
HKAS 38, Clarification of FEI8RLNER] — [ B ER ITE —E—-RF—AF—H
acceptable methods of depreciation R#EE 72|
and amortisation
HKFRS 15, Revenue from BB W EERE155 — 1 January 2017
contracts with customers [ER &ALz ] —ET—+F—H—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BB R EERFEIH — 1 January 2018
[Z@ T A/ —E-NF—AF—H
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39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 9 EAMEREE_T—NF+_H

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application but is
not yet in a position to state whether these amendments
and new standards would have a significant impact on
the Group’s or the Company’s results of operations and
financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation from the Company’s first financial
year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company’s
financial year which began on 1 January 2015) in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9. So far it was concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only
affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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At 31 December

R+-A=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—T-mE  —F-=F —E--F —E——F —E-EF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
T Fr T T T
Assets and liabilities BEREBE
Fixed assets ETEE 1,719,533 1,587,319 1,471,047 887,597 413,877
Intangible assets BIVEE 2,571,006 1,096,453 613,564 1,069,730 638,728
Goodwill HE 834,845 20,793 20,793 46,133 46,133
Interest in associates NIl Ty 254,339 254,380 - - -
Interest in a joint venture HEPERERS 27,289 - - - -
Other financial assets HigBEE 229,012 176,710 196,692 184,284 244,949
Other receivables, deposits Hip el g
and prepayments %eRBENTE 4,376,789 3023616 2,603,369 2,181,165 2,399,734
Gross amounts due from EWEFPA4 TR
customers for contract work FRRE 12,630,020 9,035,315 6,889,550 5,963,047 4,629,124
Finance lease receivables MERERIGIE 20,411 21,485 21,384 21,608 -
Deferred tax assets ELRBELE 49,455 10,966 27,508 12,836 14,080
Net current assets REEETA 3,505,685 4,671,973 1,854,906 973,731 868,932
26,218,384 19,899,010 13,698,813 11,340,131 9,255,557
Non-current liabilities ErHEE (8,375,414)  (6,119,889)  (5,028,404)  (4,678,567)  (3,506,908)
NET ASSETS BEFH 17,842,970 13,779,121 8,670,409 6,661,564 5,748,649
Share capital B 7,405,414 448,371 408,841 367,546 365,246
Reserves A 8,857,842 12,925,893 7,945,918 5,822,478 4,972,806

Total equity attributable to equity N2 FIRRE fE{E
shareholders of the Company R 16,263,256 13,374,264 8,349,759 6,190,024 5,338,052
Non-controlling interests R 1,579,714 404,857 320,650 471,540 410,597

TOTAL EQUITY BREH 17,842,970 13,779,121 8,670,409 6,661,564 5,748,649

G
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Five Year Summary fZHEZ£EHE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 85+ 5E)
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+-HLFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“T-E —T-=F —F-Cf —T——F %%
$'000 $000 $000 $°000 $'000
T T Tr Tr T
Results ES
Continuing operations SELEET
Turnover LEm 6,355,120 5,319,866 3,409,938 3,486,697 2,781,438
Profit from operations LR 2,680,443 2,127,232 1,483,202 1,260,280 922,298
Finance costs BEER (380,775) (315,579 (312,640 (240,778) (167,322)
Share of loss of associates FriEsE A RE R (41) - - - (688)
Share of loss of a joint venture e Er£ER (594) - - - -
Profit before taxation BREAIZF 2,299,033 1,811,653 1,170,562 1,019,502 754,388
Income tax FigH (533,990) (447,455) (266,554) (254,713) (165,010)
Profit from continuing operations B EKL 5% 7 BT 1,765,043 1,364,198 904,008 764,789 589,378
Discontinued operation RIFCEETR
Profit from discontinued operation 4 [F &2 %55 7 B
(net of tax) (BR#i%) - - 250,096 80,475 63,787
Profit for the year KEFEAT 1,765,043 1,364,198 1,154,104 845,264 653,165
Attributable to: FE{5 3R
Equity shareholders of the RARRE
Company 1,703,147 1,324,667 1,123,269 801,441 616,433
Non-controlling interests IR ER 61,896 39,531 30,835 43,823 36,732
Profit for the year AEERH 1,765,043 1,364,198 1,154,104 845,264 653,165
Basic earnings per share GREARRT 37.99 centsfli 32.60 centsfll  29.65 centsfli  21.86 centsfll  16.92 centsfll

The consolidated operation results of Greenway and its
subsidiaries, which was disposed of by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012, are presented as discontinued
operation in the financial statements.

EFEBERA - Greenway R EWB AR Z 546
MEXE2F BRIEREER (AEBREEZ
T——HF+ - A=+—HIFE Y EGreenway
FEKTBRAT]) -
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Major Properties held by the Group A&£BfsE2EEYE

Location

Ho b

Existing use
W&

Term of lease

HEFH

Percentage
of interest

Frib#Ezm A D

Units 2703 and 2704, 27th Floor
Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

BEBERBEBE T
BRESEA L

Tt EE=RETENOE

25th Floor to 28th Floor

Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza
No. 1003 Shennan Avenue
Futian District, Shenzhen
IR EE

HREE KB 100355

R R ESARE25E £28/E

Units 3 and 4, 11th Floor
Qingsong South Lane
Dalian Development Zone
the PRC

RE R ERERSAREE
+—EB=RkMET

Room 1301-1309

Central Business Building

No. 88 Fuhua Road One

Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC
FEERERITEAR
BE— 3\ /\ B LB AE

—=F—F—=FNE

24th Floor

Tower of Education

Science & Technology Building
Zhuzilin, Futian District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

A Bl E R AR
BHEERT R
BERBRE=_+HE

Block JO7, Zhongguancun Science Park

No. 156 Wenquan Town
Haidian District
Beijing, the PRC
PR AR
R B — TR
PR RREHXEJO7 5

Commercial

EES

Commercial

CES

Residential
F=

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Medium

&

Medium

5

Medium

&

Medium

5

Medium

5

Medium

&

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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